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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Best Pacific International Holdings Limited
(the “Company” or “Best Pacific”, together with its
subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group” or “we”), | am
pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Following the declaration of 2019 novel coronavirus
disease (“COVID-19") epidemic an international public
health emergency in January 2020, and subsequently a
global pandemic in March 2020, most countries in the
world had been experiencing unprecedented challenges
for most time of 2020. As part of the countermeasures
to the global pandemic, governments around the world
paused both manufacturing and social activities at different
points in time throughout the year, which had led to far-
reaching economic and social consequences around the
globe. Inevitably, the textile and garment industry had to
face the same challenges and coupled with the continuous
political and trade tensions between the People’'s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) and the United States of America (the
“U.S.”), many companies within the space were actually
pbattling for survival.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TERE

With the serious disruption to industrial and commercial
activities and the associated changes and shifts in
consumer demands and spending patterns, the global
gross domestic product (“GDP”) in 2020 was projected to
be around US$130 trilion according to the International
Monetary Fund, which was almost US$9.6 trillion less, as
compared to that in 2019.

Despite the difficult business environment and operating
conditions in 2020, the Group had made tremendous
efforts to stabilize its production and operations. Our
long-term strategy to improve agility and resilience and
efforts in building an international manufacturing footprint
had received overwhelming applause and appreciation
from both existing and new customers. The Group was
helpful to our customers by shifting their production
among our different manufacturing plants across the
world during times of lockdown at a specific production
site. On the other hand, the team had continued to seize
the enormous potentials of the sportswear and apparel
markets and the Group had achieved an encouraging
growth of approximately 36.0% in its sales of elastic fabric
for sportswear and apparel use during the year ended 31
December 2020. The achievement of such has further
reinstated Best Pacific’s ambition to be a leading textile
player and to sustain its long term strategy to develop this
specific market segment.
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Despite the exceptionally difficult time in 2020, the
Group had successfully secured a new syndication loan
facility amounting to HK$1.8 billion in June 2020, which
had contributed to the financial and risk management
of the Group. The management will continue to deploy
resources to the future development of the Group and we
will continue to work with our customers and business
partners, striving to deliver a promising return to our
shareholders in the long run.

Lu Yuguang
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE N wm MO

BUSINESS REVIEW

The invasion of COVID-19 around the world in 2020 had
led to a serious disruption to economic and social activities
in many countries. Temporary suspension of operations
at the Group’s different manufacturing sites had been
mandated by the local authority at different points in time
since the first quarter of 2020. Alongside with the adoption
of various emergency public health measures, the rapid
and continuing spread of the virus since the second
quarter in 2020 had compelled other countries including
the U.S. and Europe to announce nationwide lockdowns.
According to the U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis, the
real GDP of the U.S. decreased by around 3.5% in 2020,
compared with an increase of GDP growth of around 2.2%
in 2019. These countermeasures and together with the
mixed uncertainties had caused businesses to refrain from
making investment decisions and individuals to control
their spending, which then resulted in increased inventory
levels at retailers and a consequent weak demand for
textile and apparel products. The unfavourable impact on
global consumer markets inevitably posted an adverse
impact on our financial performance, especially in the first
half of 2020.

Despite the rather difficult business environment in 2020,
our farsighted internationalization plan had given the
Group the ability in adjusting its operations to cope with
the challenges brought about by both COVID-19 and
U.S.-PRC trade tensions. With an aim to cater to the
best interests of our clients, which included the reduction
in production lead time as well as other trade and tariff
considerations, production orders had been strategically
assigned and processed at the specific manufacturing
site within the Group, in the PRC, the Socialist Republic
of Vietham (“Vietnam”) and the Democratic Socialist
Republic of Sri Lanka (“Sri Lanka”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Operation in Vietham

According to the General Statistics Office of Vietnam,
Vietnam was one of the few countries recording positive
growth in GDP in 2020. As compared to 2019, the GDP
of Vietham in 2020 was reported to grow by around 2.9%.
Subsequent to the successful launch of Phase | and
Phase Il at our Vietham manufacturing base by the second
half of 2020, customers have shown their keen interests
on the relevant capacities.

Looking forward, with Vietnam being perceived as one of
the key beneficiaries of the Sino-U.S. trade tension and in
order to meet the foreseeable upsurge in market demands
for innovation textile products, we will continue exploring
the feasibility of further capacity expansion into the region.

Operations in Sri Lanka

Throughout 2020, the sporadic temporary closure of
the operations in Sri Lanka as a result of the pandemic
and other human resource matters had caused some
disruptions to the operations of the two joint ventures (the
“JVs”). However, leveraging on the strategic partnership
with the two reputable apparel and textile manufacturing
leaders, namely MAS Holdings (Private) Limited (“MAS”),
and Brandix Lanka Limited (“Brandix”) and their related
groups, we believe the JVs will facilitate the Group in
gaining market share in the longer run.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE N wm MO

In response to the above-mentioned uncertainties during
the financial year 2020, the Group had executed various
control measures to save costs in areas including human
resources, sales and marketing as well as administrative
functions. Starting from the third quarter of 2020, Central
governments around the globe had been taking a
proactive stimulus policy approach to promote consumer
spending and economic growth. The general public also
seemed to have learnt to live with the virus and the retail
stores of most lingerie and sportswear and apparel brands
had reopened, subsequent to the relaxation of certain
control measures in different jurisdictions. Online shopping
had also become a new norm and the global consumer
markets had gradually opened up with demand for apparel
products observing sequential improvements. Thanks to
the growing health consciousness of the general public,
the market demand for comfortable and innovative
apparel is always on the rise and the athleisure trend has
grown in popularity around the world. Our devotion to the
manufacturing of comfortable and highly functional sports-
related products had contributed to our significant sales
growth in the related product segment. Our sales revenue
of sportswear and apparel fabric materials segment
increased to approximately HK$1,696.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, representing a year-on-year
growth of approximately 36.0%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In order to cope with the adversity as brought about
by COVID-19, Best Pacific had reacted proactively by
taking various actions and measures, which included the
continuous capacities automation, optimisation of human
resource structure and further enhancement on production
efficiencies. Coupled with a relatively strong rebound in
market demands in general in the second half of 2020,
we observed the following improvements in the Group’s
financials, with () revenue increased by approximately
48.4% from approximately HK$1,406.7 million in the first
half of 2020 to approximately HK$2,087.6 million In the
second half of 2020; and (i) an improved net profit margin
of approximately 8.2% for the six months ended 31
December 2020.

BEE N MO
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For the six For the six
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2020 2020 Change
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IEAREA ER{EA )
(HK$'000) %
(F%T) Bt
Revenue (HK$'000) WA (F&7T) 2,087,623 1,406,651 680,972 48.4
Gross profit (HK$’000) E7 (FET) 501,753 341,607 160,146 46.9
Gross profit margin (%) EFE (Both) 24.0 24.3 (0.3% point)
(03EEDE)
Net profit (HK$’000) SERE (F&T) 172,012 77,181 94,831 122.9
Net profit margin (%) FAEE (Bot) 8.2 5.5 2.7% points
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE N wm MO

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue is primarily derived from the sales of
its major products, which include elastic fabric, lace and
elastic webbing.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue
amounted to approximately HK$3,494.3 million,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$143.5
million, or approximately 3.9%, from approximately
HK$3,637.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. The decrease in overall revenue during the year was
mainly attributable to the decrease in the volume of lingerie
materials sold, as a result of less orders from customers
during the pandemic time of COVID-19.

A comparison of the Group’s revenue for the years ended

Bt %55 [0 B
A
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FREM B E R - BARNMEMNET o

@
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31 December 2020 and 2019 by product categories is as =+ —BIFEZWRAKE uuiﬁ Nz 0)sd
follows: BT
For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1+—-HLEE
2020 2019 Change
S 32 —T-NF b4
Revenue % of Revenue % of
(HK$’000) Revenue (HK$'000) Revenue (HK$'000) %
L O NI 1 ON: WA 1EBRAE
(F#&x) Batk  (FET) Batk  (FET) AT
Elastic fabric B E R 2,660,926 76.2 2,641,075 72.6 19,851 0.8
Elastic webbing  S#E&EH 749,025 21.4 910,165 25.0  (161,140) (17.7)
Lace B 84,323 2.4 86,522 2.4 (2,199) 2.5)
Total Fe 3,494,274 100.0 3,637,762 100.0 (143,488) (3.9
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from
sales of elastic fabric amounted to approximately
HK$2,660.9 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$19.9 million, or approximately 0.8%,
as compared to the year ended 31 December 2019. In
particular, our sales revenue of lingerie fabric materials
decreased from approximately HK$1,394.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
HK$965.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020,
representing a year-on-year decline of approximately
30.8%. It was mainly due to the general stagnant
consumer markets as impacted by COVID-19 and the
forced operational restructuring of some key lingerie
retailers during the year. Nevertheless, leveraging on
the Group’s high product quality, strong innovation and
research and development capabilities, the Group had
successfully entered into certain core programmes
with some new partnering brands in the sportswear
and apparel segment. Despite the adverse impacts as
brought by COVID-19, the Group had recorded a year-on-
year growth of approximately 36.0% in sales revenue of
sportswear and apparel fabric materials.

With the overall lukewarm lingerie market, sales from
elastic webbing and lace was on the decline, revenue
from sales of elastic webbing amounted to approximately
HK$749.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$161.1
million, or approximately 17.7%, as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2019. We had started
supplying elastic webbing products to several face mask
manufacturers during the pandemic time. The relevant
income, amounted approximately HK$39.5 million, which
partly offset the decrease in sales volume of other elastic
webbing products during the year ended 31 December
2020.

Revenue from sales of lace decreased from approximately
HK$86.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately HK$84.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. The year-on-year decrease of revenue
from sales of lace by approximately 2.5% was mainly due
to the decrease in sales volume of lace in the year ended
31 December 2020, as compared to the year ended 31
December 2019.

Cost of sales

The Group’s cost of sales mainly comprises costs of raw
materials, manufacturing overheads, and direct labour
costs.

BEE N MO
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Cost of sales - by nature of expense

HERAN - RAXMHESD

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=1T—HLHFE

2020 2019 Change
—g-%% = —h4E 29
Cost of Cost of
sales % of cost sales % of cost
(HK$'000) of sales (HK$'000) of sales  (HK$'000) %
HERE SHERE HEKE HEKR
(F#&xT) Batk  (FET) Bot  (FHT) Bot
Raw materials FRETE 1,289,819 48.7 1,446,828 52.3  (157,009) (10.9)
Manufacturing
overheads HAERX 1,036,207 39.1 1,023,099 37.0 13,108 1.3
Direct labour HEATL 306,146 11.5 276,603 10.0 29,543 10.7
Others Hit 18,742 0.7 18,423 0.7 319 1.7
Total wst 2,650,914 100.0 2,764,953 100.0  (114,039) @4.1)
The Group’s cost of sales for the year ended 31 December NEBHE T - TF+-_A=+—HIFF
2020 amounted to approximately HK$2,650.9 million, r s ER $ 7/&3 492 650.98 878 7T+ WA

representing a decrease of approximately HK$114.0
million, or approximately 4.1%, as compared to the year
ended 31 December 2019.

As a response to the pandemic, the Group had adopted
various cost-saving measures in the year so as to curb
with the adverse impact brought by COVID-19. In addition,
our raw materials purchase costs had slightly declined
for most time during the year ended 31 December
2020. It had offset part of the adverse impact from the
diseconomies of scale caused by the decrease in sales
volume of lingerie materials, as well as some of the costing
pressure from the appreciation of Renminbi.

Following the expansion of our overseas manufacturing
bases in Vietham and Sri Lanka and the associated
increased headcount, the direct labour cost for the year
ended 31 December 2020 increased by approximately
10.7% when compared to the year ended 31 December
2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cost of sales - by product category

BEE N MO

HERK - REmERED

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1+—HLEE

2020 2019 Change
—E-sF —E-NEF 2
Cost of Cost of

sales % of cost sales % of cost
(HK$’000) of sales (HK$'000) of sales  (HK$'000) %

HEMA SHERA  HEKER  HEKAK
(F#&x) Btk (FErT) Aotk (FHT) ANt
Elastic fabric AR E R 2,090,444 78.9 2,107,709 76.2 (17,265) (0.8
Elastic webbing S8 /M &5 510,291 10.2 614,152 222  (103,861) (16.9)
Lace B4R 50,179 1.9 43,092 1.6 7,087 16.4
Total et 2,650,914 100.0 2,764,953 100.0 (114,039) 4.1)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the cost of sales
of elastic fabric as a percentage of the total cost of sales
increased by approximately 2.7 percentage points year-
on-year while the cost of sales of elastic webbing as
a percentage of the total cost of sales decreased by
approximately 3.0 percentage points. It was mainly due to
the promising growth in sales volume of sportswear and
apparel fabric materials and the decrease in sales volume
of elastic webbing in respect of the lukewarm lingerie
market during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Gross profit, gross profit margin and net profit margin

HE_Z-_TF+_A=1+—BHIFE =&
MEYE R A SR ANMGBEERANE D
LERIEL 3 R 492,718 & 5 B - 38 14 4% A A
SHEKR MG BEER AN T D LA 493.0
EEDE  EBHMNEEHRE MREMEY
EHESHREEEBEER  URZERKTISR
KT BT I 2R A FTE »

£F - ERERFFHEE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+—HLEFE

2020 2019

—ECEFE —E-NF
Gross profit Gross profit
Gross profit margin  Gross profit margin
EX EFF EAH EVAES
(HK$°000) (%) (HK$’000) (%)
(F#&7) (A7) (F%7T) (Antk)
Elastic fabric o8 1 Ak A TE R 570,482 21.4 533,366 20.2
Elastic webbing SRR 238,734 31.9 296,013 325
Lace S 34,144 40.5 43,430 50.2
Total 4t 843,360 24.1 872,809 24.0
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The Group had maintained a comparable profitability
level as compared to last year with the overall gross
profit decreasing from approximately HK$872.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
HK$843.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Net profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 amounted to approximately HK$249.2 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 16.7% as
compared to approximately HK$299.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The Group recorded a net
profit margin of approximately 7.1% for the year ended 31
December 2020, representing a decrease of approximately
1.1 percentage point, as compared to the year ended 31
December 2019. The decrease in net profit margin for
the year ended 31 December 2020 was mainly due to (i)
the net foreign exchange loss as a result of the general
appreciation of RMB during the year ended 31 December
2020; and (ii) the slower than expected ramp up at our
new expansions, as adversely impacted by COVID-19.
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Other income

The Group’s other income mainly consists of government
grants, compensation income, bank interest income, net
proceeds from sales of scrap materials and others. The

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

following table sets forth the breakdown of the Group’s

other income for the years indicated:

BEE N MO

Ht A

AEENEMRATEBRRFMEE -
BHA -~ RITHEHA ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂxlﬁ
FRENEM o TREINAKERAREEDN
H W A BFAT

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=1T—-HLHFE

2020 2019

—E-BE —NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET FET

Government grants BB & 13,036 6,052

Compensation income BRE WA 11,584 1,260

Bank interest income ERITH BULA 8,238 6,996

Net proceeds from sales of scrap materials $5%& EER TS 518 £ 58 5,547 10,435

Others Hih 5,401 7,395

Total st 43,806 32,138
The increase in other income by approximately 36.3%, EMWABBE_T-—LF+A=1+—H

from approximately HK$32.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately HK$43.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, was mainly due to the
increase in government grants and compensation income

received.

ii&‘ﬂﬂazn?ﬁ%/%nibu,\bse.S%i%z
EZR-RES A=+ -HLEFEND
A38EBAIL TERHRABEN®EEE
N BB UG AIE DI R -

BRBERIERERAR / —E-_SFFR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Other gains and losses

Other gains and losses mainly consisted of net foreign
exchange (loss) gain, gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment, gain from change in fair value of a
derivative financial instrument and others. The following
table sets forth the breakdown of the Group’s other gains
and losses for the years indicated:

Hftsm R g8

Hit s kBB 2EEINNE (BE) W
FE HEYE  BEMRERS  TTER
MTARTEEFHRELEM - TRHIIAK
SERARFEE MY S K EEAA -

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-BLFE

2020 2019

—ECEHF —ET-NF

(HK$°000) (HK$000)

FET FAET

Net foreign exchange (loss) gain 3 (E518) W F5E (26,327) 13,803

Gain on disposal of property, plant and  HEWE - BEKERERE 72 42

equipment

Gain from change in fair value of PTESR T EAFEZSRES 1 1,792
a derivative financial instrument

Others Hib 537 (3,843)

Total et (25,717) 11,794

Net remeasurement of credit loss allowance for
trade receivables

Net remeasurement of credit loss allowance for trade
receivables represented the result of impairment
assessment under expected credit loss model on trade
receivables. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
net remeasurement of credit loss allowance for trade
receivables amounted to approximately HK$6.3 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$4.0 million
from approximately HK$2.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. Such increase was mainly the results of
the temporary delay in settlement of payments by certain
customers as caused by their deteriorating financial
position during the year ended 31 December 2020.

ESRWRACEERBREENTERA

B ORNFRBEESEREENTEFED
EESRBFIBRHAEESEEEXNE TR
BFEER HEz T - TF+_A=+—
BILFE  E5RKFBEEEEEBEEN
AEFBEAOACIEES L BRHE_ZT—
NF+_A=Z+—BLFEMY23HES
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RANETEEREE T -_TF+-A=
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of
employee benefit expenses, transportation, marketing and
promotional expenses and other selling and distribution
expenses. For the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2020, the Group’s selling and distribution expenses
represented approximately 4.7% and 4.5% of its total
revenue, respectively.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses primarily consist of employee
benefit expenses, depreciation, motor vehicle expenses,
bank charges and other administrative expenses. For the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020, the Group’s
administrative expenses represented approximately 6.1%
and 7.3% of its total revenue, respectively. The increase in
ratio of administrative expenses against total revenue was
mainly due to the the slower than expected ramp up at our
new expansions, as adversely impacted by COVID-19.

Research and development costs

The Group is dedicated to cater to the changing market
preferences by introducing innovative lingerie, sportswear
and apparel materials. For the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2020, the Group’s research and development
costs represented approximately 2.7% and 2.3% of its
total revenue, respectively. The decrease in research and
development costs was mainly due to the integration of
research and development projects and other cost-saving
measures launched during the pandemic time in the year
ended 31 December 2020.

BEE N MO

HERDHEEX
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs mainly represent interest
expenses for bank borrowings and lease liabilities. The
finance costs decreased by approximately 16.6% from
approximately HK$90.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately HK$75.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The decrease in finance
costs was primarily due to the overall decrease in average
borrowings balance of the Group as well as market
interest rate during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Income tax expense

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime passed by
the Hong Kong Legislative Council in March 2018, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to
be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. The two-tiered profits
tax rates regime is applicable to any year of assessment
commencing on or after 1 April 2018.

Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax for the qualifying
group entity had been calculated at 8.25% on the first
HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits and at
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC companies is 25% for both years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2020, unless there is any
applicable preferential tax treatment.

The Company’s subsidiaries, Dongguan Best Pacific Textile
Company Limited (“Dongguan BPT”) and Dongguan New
Horizon Elastic Fabric Company Limited (“Dongguan
NHE”), had obtained the qualification as high and new
technology enterprises since 2010 and 2016, respectively,
which were renewed for an additional three years from the
year ended 31 December 2019. Hence, Dongguan BPT
and Dongguan NHE had been subject to the preferential
tax treatment and the applicable tax rate for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 was 15%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Withholding tax on dividends was calculated at 5% of the
estimated dividend to be received from the subsidiaries in
the PRC during the year.

Pursuant to the relevant Vietnam Enterprises Income
Tax rules and regulations, the applicable tax rate for the
subsidiary operating in Vietnam is 20%. The subsidiary
in Vietnam is eligible for tax holiday for two financial
years since the first financial year of taxable profit and
tax concession at a tax rate of 10% for the following four
financial years. With the new incentive in place during the
year ended 31 December 2018 and by fulfiling certain
stated requirements as set by the Ministry of Industry and
Trade, the subsidiary in Vietham had been eligible for tax
holiday for four financial years since 2018, tax concession
at a tax rate of 5% for the following nine financial years
and tax concession at a tax rate of 10% for the next
following two financial years.

Pursuant to the Inland Revenue Act, No. 24 of 2017 in
Sri Lanka, the applicable tax rate for the subsidiaries
operating in Sri Lanka is 28%. By fulfiling certain export
requirements as set by the Board of Investment of Sri
Lanka, the subsidiaries of the Group in Sri Lanka had
enjoyed a preferential tax rate of 14% for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2020. In addition, one of these
subsidiaries is currently eligible for tax holiday till the year
ending 31 December 2024.

Taxation arising in any other jurisdiction is calculated at the
rate prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

The effective tax rate was approximately 14.1% (for the
year ended 31 December 2019: 11.2%) for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The increase in effective tax
rate was mainly due to the increase in withholding tax
being recognised as more dividends are expected to be
distributed from subsidiaries.
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BEE N wm MO

Liquidity, financial resources and bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2020, net working capital
(calculated as current assets less current liabilities) was
approximately HK$794.3 million, representing an increase
of approximately HK$787.3 million as compared with 31
December 2019. The current ratio (calculated as current
assets/current liabilities) is at 1.4 times as at 31 December
2020 as compared to 1.0 time as at 31 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, net cash
generated from operating activities increased from
approximately HK$407.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately HK$754.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly due to
the Group’s better management on its inventories level.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to
approximately HK$212.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2020, as compared to net cash used in
investing activities amounting to approximately HK$512.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2019. As
impacted by the pandemic, the decrease in net cash used
in investing activities was mainly due to less investments
being made during the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, net cash used
in financing activities amounted to approximately HK$47.8
million, as compared to net cash from financing activities
of approximately HK$210.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. The increase in net cash used in
financing activities for the year ended 31 December 2020
was mainly due to the overall stronger cash positions and
less reliance on bank borrowings of the Group through out
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net gearing ratio
was 36.7% (as at 31 December 2019: 59.1%), which was
calculated on the basis of the amount of net debt position
(sum of bank deposits and bank balances and cash, less
total bank and other borrowings) as a percentage of total
equity. Details of bank borrowings are set out in Note 27
to the consolidated financial statements. The Group was in
a net debt position of approximately HK$1,107.4 million as
at 31 December 2020, as compared to a net debt position
of approximately HK$1,546.7 million as at 31 December
2019.

Working capital management

BEE N MO
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For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLFE

2020 2019 Change
—E-TF —hE -y
(days) (%)
(R&) (BHt)
Trade and bills receivables =) e
turnover days JEWE B A R e 81.8 74.5 7.3 9.8
Trade and bills payables B o EMNFIAR
turnover days N IR EE R 82.8 81.7 1.1 1.3
Inventory turnover days FEBEKE 137.2 127.4 9.8 7.7

The increase in trade and bills receivables turnover days
for the year ended 31 December 2020 by approximately
7.3 days was primarily due to the temporary delay in
settlement of payments by some customers whose
businesses were adversely impacted by COVID-19.

The trade and bills payables turnover days remained
relatively stable for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
the year ended 31 December 2020.

The increase in inventory turnover days from 127.4 days
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to 137.2 days
for the year ended 31 December 2020 was primarily
attributable to the Group’s continues expansion plans
across the years and the adverse impacts as brought
about by COVID-19.
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Capital expenditure

The capital expenditure in 2020 primarily represented
payments for expansion contracted for in prior years. The
Group’s total addition to property, plant and equipment
decreased from approximately HK$522.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
HK$290.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020,
which was mainly attributable to the relatively conservative
investment appetite of the Group during the pandemic
time in 2020.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group pledged certain bank
deposits, amounting to approximately HK$77.9 million (as
at 31 December 2019: approximately HK$76.8 million), to
secure the bills payables issued by the Group.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

Events after the reporting period

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group has no
other significant events after the reporting period and up
to the date of this annual report.

Foreign exchange risk

A substantial portion of the Group’s revenue is denominated
in US$ and HK$ and a portion of its purchases and
expenses are denominated in RMB, Vietnam Dong and Sri
Lanka Rupee. The Group manages its foreign exchange risk
by performing regular reviews and monitoring on its foreign
exchange exposure. Our finance department monitors our
foreign exchange risk on a continuous basis by analysing
our domestic and overseas sales orders on hand, expected
domestic and overseas orders from customers and
estimated foreign currency payments for our purchases
and expenses. We intend to manage our foreign exchange

B
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risks by () managing our sales, purchases and expenses
denominated in HK$ and RMB through our subsidiaries in
Hong Kong and the PRC, respectively, managing our sales,
purchases and expenses denominated in US$ through
our subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Vietnam and Sri Lanka,
and managing our purchases and expenses denominated
in Vietnam Dong and Sri Lanka Rupee through our
subsidiaries in Vietnam and Sri Lanka, respectively; and
(i) holding cash and bank deposits denominated in HK$
primarily by the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong
Kong, holding cash and bank deposits denominated in
US$ primarily by the Company and its subsidiaries in
Hong Kong, Vietnam and Sri Lanka, and holding cash and
bank deposits denominated in RMB, Vietnam Dong and
Sri Lanka Rupee primarily by our subsidiaries in the PRC,
Vietnam and Sri Lanka, respectively.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total
of 7,825 full-time employees (as at 31 December 2019:
7,437). The increase in the number of employees was
mainly due to the overseas expansion during the year.

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was set up for reviewing
the Group’s remuneration policy and structure for all
remuneration of the Directors and employees of the Group,
having regard to factors including but not limited to salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors/employees, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group, and whether the
remuneration is commensurate with performance.

There has been no significant change in the Group’s
remuneration policy, and the Group will continue to provide
regular training and competitive remuneration packages
to its staff. The Group’s remuneration packages include
salary, bonuses, allowances and retirement benefits based
on employee’s performance, skills and knowledge. The
Group also provides additional benefits to its employees
that include subsidised accommodation, meals, accident
and medical insurance and share options granted to
eligible employees under the share option scheme of the
Company from time to time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE N wm MO

Dividend policy

The Board intends to maintain a long term, stable
dividend payout ratio of not less than 20% of the Group’s
distributable profit for the year, providing shareholders with
an equitable return.

The Board has resolved to declare a final dividend of
HK7.4 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2020 (the “Final Dividend”) (for the
year ended 31 December 2019: HK5.8 cents). The Final
Dividend is expected to be paid on or about 30 July 2021
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 8 June 2021, subject to the
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company on 28 May 2021 (the
“AGM”).

The Board has resolved not to declare any interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2020 (for the six months
ended 30 June 2019: nil).

FUTURE STRATEGIES AND PROSPECTS

The global future economy is still under the shadow by
uncertainties stemming from the Sino — U.S. trade war
and COVID-19. Nevertheless, we have seen a strong
sales rebound since the second half of 2020. With mass
COVID-19 vaccination by the general public around
the world, the pandemic situation is expected to be
stabilised and the pace of market recovery is anticipated
to accelerate in 2021. In recent months, the market
sentiment has continued to improve and we have seen
healthy business development with both our sportswear
and lingerie customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Best Pacific will continue to differentiate itself from its
market peers and we are set to uphold our core value
“Built on Innovation and Technology” to cater for the rising
market demand for innovative apparel products, especially
amid the current popular athleisure trend. This growing
health consciousness will continue in the coming future
and the sales revenue from our sportswear and apparel
fabric materials segment is expected to remain as one of
our growth drivers in the near future. While keeping a close
eye on both domestic and international markets, the retail
markets in the PRC is perceived to recover the fastest in
2021. The Group has prepared to seize more business
opportunities from the newly developed sportswear and
apparel clients in the PRC market.

As at 31 December 2020, the overall annual designed
production capacities of elastic fabric, elastic webbing
and lace of the Group were approximately 226.2 million
meters, 1,872.2 million meters and 45.0 million meters,
respectively. In order to cope with the growing market
demands, the Group will continue its capacity expansion,
both domestically and in overseas, at a moderate pace in
the coming years. Being one of the pioneer market player
to establish manufacturing facilities in Vietham, we are
optimistic about the industrial and economic development
in the country. We will continue to explore the feasibility
of further capacity expansion in Vietham, with an eminent
focus on maximizing the relevant investment returns.
As expected, COVID-19 pandemic has delayed, to a
certain extent, our 2020 expansion plan in Sri Lanka and
we will revisit the relevant plan and strive to improve the
manufacturing efficiencies at our Sri Lanka operations as
sSoon as we can.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE N wm MO

Because of the rebound of crude oil price, as well as
the relatively low level of petroleumn refinery activities, the
market prices of many oil by-products and chemical raw
materials had soared since the fourth quarter of 2020.
Nevertheless, the tension in employment market in the
PRC and Vietnam will also continue to add weight to
our staff costs in the near future. We are trying hard to
digest these pressures, including but not limited to further
optimisation of production efficiencies, benefits from
economies of scale alongside the market recovery, as well
as exploring the possibilities of price adjustments on our
products with our customers and partnering brands.

Best Pacific will continue to grasp the vast opportunities
arising from the sportswear and apparel sector. We
strongly believe that, through our continual expansion, it
will underpin Best Pacific’s long-term sustainability and
ensure its ability to deliver value for its shareholders in the
long run.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
trading of elastic fabric, lace and elastic webbing. Details
of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2020 are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s turnover and results by operating segment
are set out in Notes 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial
statements and Management Discussion and Analysis of
this annual report.

There is no change in the principal activities of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on page 103.

The Board recommends the payment of the Final Dividend
of HK7.4 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31
December 2020. Subject to approval by shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming AGM, the Final
Dividend will be distributed on or about 30 July 2021
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 8 June 2021.

The Board has resolved not to declare any interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2020 (for the six months
ended 30 June 2019: nil).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 25 May 2021 to 28 May 2021, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be effected. In order to determine the identity of
shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the
AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged not later than
4:30 p.m. on 24 May 2021 with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM, the proposed Final Dividend will be payable to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 8 June 2021 and the register
of members of the Company will be closed from 4 June
2021 to 8 June 2021, both days inclusive, during which
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In
order to qualify for the proposed Final Dividend, all share
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates shall be lodged not later than 4:30 p.m. on 3
June 2021 with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT

A review of the business of the Group during the year, a
discussion on the Group’s future business development as
well as the Group’s relationships with its key stakeholders
are set out in the Chairman’s Statement as well as the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 5 to 7
and pages 8 to 28 of this annual report. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Group’s Five-
year Financial Information Summary on pages 267 to 268
of this annual report. Saved as disclosed in this annual
report, the Group has no other significant events after the
end of the financial year ended 31 December 2020 and up
to the date of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A description of possible risks and uncertainties that
the Group may be facing are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement as well as the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 5 to 7 and pages 8 to 28 of this
annual report. The financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group are set out in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has been committed to operating in
compliance with applicable environmental laws and
regulations and has taken steps to ensure that any waste
and by-products produced as a result of its operations
are properly treated and discharged so as to minimise the
adverse effects to the environment. With the relevant ISO
certification issued by renown notified body on the main
manufacturing sites, we are regarded to have exercised
quality environmental and energy management throughout
the manufacturing process. At present, the Group has
its on-site sewage treatment plants that treat sewage
generated from its production process, in particular,
dyeing and printing processes, by chemical and biological
treatments. Processed sewage is required to meet certain
chemical standards prescribed by the environmental
protection department before it is discharged to the
municipal sewage treatment network. The environmental
protection department has also set up monitoring
equipment at the Group’s sewage treatment plants to
ensure the processed sewage meets the prescribed
standard before discharge. As the operating scale of the
Group has expanded, the use of resources, the levels of
gas emissions and waste disposal increased proportionally
but all were under control during the year under review. We
will continue to closely monitor the resources consumed
and the levels of gas emissions and waste disposal and
will take appropriate measures with a view to minimising
the impact of the Group’s operations to the environment.

Further details on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance (including the relevant key performance
indicators) will be disclosed in the Group’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2020 to be separately
published by the Company in due course.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC, Hong Kong, Vietnam,
Sri Lanka and the U.S.. The Group has compliance
procedures in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws and regulations which have a significant impact on
the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2020, to the
best knowledge and belief of the Board, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations in the Cayman lIslands, the PRC, Hong Kong,
Vietnam, Sri Lanka and the U.S..

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Group’s subsidiaries are set out in Note
40 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in issued share capital of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in
the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” on
pages 106 and 107.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$651.5 million, of
which approximately HK$76.9 million has been proposed
as the Final Dividend for the year ended 31 December
2020.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
amended and restated articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$2,468,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, sales
to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 39.8% of the Group’s total sales for the year
(of which sales to the Group’s largest customer accounted
for approximately 13.6%). Purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 18.8%
of the Group’s total purchases for the year (of which
purchases attributable to the largest supplier accounted
for approximately 5.1%).

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as
at 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities for the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lu Yuguang

Mr. Zhang Haitao

Mr. Wu Shaolun

Ms. Zheng Tingting

Mr. Chan Yiu Sing (appointed on 10 February 2021)
Mr. Lu Libin (appointed on 10 February 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming
Mr. Ding Baoshan
Mr. Sai Chun Yu

According to Article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing
Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting and any Director appointed by
the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Besides, Article 84(1) of the Articles stipulates that at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3),
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years.
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Pursuant to the aforesaid provisions in the Articles, Mr.
Chan Yiu Sing (“Mr. Chan”) and Mr. Lu Libin, being
appointed by the Directors on 10 February 2021, shall
hold office until the forthcoming AGM while Ms. Zheng
Tingting (“Ms. Zheng”), Mr. Ding Baoshan (“Mr. Ding”)
and Mr. Sai Chun Yu (“Mr. Sai”) will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM. All the above Directors, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 71 to 79 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors (except for Ms. Zheng,
Mr. Chan and Mr. Lu Libin) had entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an extended term of
three years commencing from 22 May 2020. Ms. Zheng
had entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an extended term of three years commencing from
23 November 2018. Each of Mr. Chan and Mr. Liu Libin
had entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an extended term of three years commencing from
10 February 2021. Each service agreement will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party by giving to the
other party at least three months’ prior notice in writing.
Each of the independent non-executive Directors had
been appointed for an extended term of three years with
effect from 22 May 2020.

In view of the addition of Directors to the Board on
10 February 2021, each of the executive Directors
(except for Mr. Chan and Mr. Lu Libin) had entered into
a supplemental service agreement with the Company.
Pursuant to which, the term that the total amount of
bonus together with the total salary and benefits to be
paid to all the executive Directors of the Company in
each year ending December 31 be less than 10% of the
audited consolidated net profit after taxation but before
extraordinary items of the Group for the relevant financial
year (and before deducting such discretionary bonus,
salary and benefits) was repealed. On the other hand,
the Group has introduced additional incentive schemes
with salary payments not exceeding 10% of the basic
salaries to be paid monthly to employees if the Group
accomplishes the monthly key performance indicators
set. Such incentive scheme also applies to all executive
Directors and the relevant service agreements have been
revised accordingly.
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All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles and Appendix 14 to the
Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). None of the Directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

EMOLUMENT POLICY - DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined
by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

Details of the emoluments of every Director for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the sections headed
“CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” and “CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” below and “RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS” in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors of the Company had any interest in any
competing business with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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Mr. Lu Yuguang (“Mr. Lu”) and Grandview Capital
Investment Limited (“Grandview”), being the controlling
shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”), have each provided a written
confirmation to the Company confirming that he/it has
complied with the terms of the Deed of Non-competition
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The independent
non-executive Directors of the Company have also
reviewed the status of compliance by each of the
Controlling Shareholders and confirmed that, as far as they
can ascertain, each of the Controlling Shareholders has
complied with the terms of the Deed of Non-competition.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS -
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as the
case may be) of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required to be entered into
the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO or which were otherwise required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were set out below:
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()] The Company ()] VNN
Number of Approximate
shares/ percentage of
Long/short underlying shareholding
Name of Director  position Capacity shares  Notes (%)
BREA
) B3,/ 188 BA
BEENA %/ %R 4 ROBE W (%)
Mr. Lu Yuguang Long position Beneficial owner 3,000,000 1
ERXEE 59S) BaBAA
Long position Interest held by his
controlled corporation 637,500,000 2
e HXEAERANER
640,500,000 61.59
Mr. Zhang Haitao Long position Interest held by his spouse 2,794,000 3
REEEE 59) HEBRHanEs
Long position Interest held by his
controlled corporation 75,000,000 4
e HXEAERANER
77,794,000 7.48
Ms. Zheng Tingting  Long position Beneficial owner 2,794,000 5
Lljeyty av=) BaEAA
Long position Interest held by her spouse 75,000,000 6
59) HEBRHAnEs
77,794,000 7.48
Mr. Wu Shaolun Long position Beneficial owner 3,000,000 7
RmELE 55) BaBEAA
Long position Interest held by his
controlled corporation 37,500,000 8
55) HEXEBRANER
40,500,000 3.89
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Notes:

These 3,000,000 ordinary shares were issued by the
Company to Mr. Lu, the Chairman and an executive Director
of the Company, upon exercise of his share options granted
by the Company on 19 May 2014 pursuant to the pre-
IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) of the Company, details of which are set out in the
section headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES” in this report.

These 637,500,000 ordinary shares were held by Grandview,
which was wholly owned by Mr. Lu. Under the SFO, Mr.
Lu was deemed to be interested in such shares held by
Grandview.

These shares represented 2,794,000 ordinary shares held
by Ms. Zheng, the Chief Operating Officer and an executive
Director of the Company and the spouse of Mr. Zhang Haitao
(“Mr. Zhang”), the Chief Executive Officer and an executive
Director of the Company. Under the SFO, Mr. Zhang was
deemed to be interested in such shares held by Ms. Zheng.

These 75,000,000 ordinary shares were held by Sunbrilliant
Capital Investment Limited (“Sunbrilliant”), which was
wholly owned by Mr. Zhang. Under the SFO, Mr. Zhang was
deemed to be interested in such shares held by Sunbrilliant.

Among these 2,794,000 ordinary shares, 2,000,000 shares
were held by Ms. Zheng upon exercise of her share options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, and
794,000 shares were acquired from the market.

Ms. Zheng is the spouse of Mr. Zhang. Under the SFO,
Ms. Zheng was deemed to be interested in the 75,000,000
ordinary shares held by Sunbrilliant as mentioned in Note 4
above.

These 3,000,000 ordinary shares were issued by the
Company to Mr. Wu Shaolun (“Mr. Wu”), an executive
Director of the Company, upon exercise of his share options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

These 37,500,000 ordinary shares were held by Lakefront
Capital Investment Limited (“Lakefront”), which was wholly
owned by Mr. Wu. Under the SFO, Mr. Wu was deemed to
be interested in such shares held by Lakefront.
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(1m Associated Corporation (within the meaning of
the SFO)

Grandview Capital Investment Limited

m HEZE(ERRIFZRHMEMRH)

Grandview Capital Investment Limited

Approximate
percentage of

Long/short Number of shareholding

Name of Director position Capacity shares (%)

FERBEA

Bt

EEnE %, %RR 4 BB E (%)

Mr. Lu Yuguang Long position Beneficial owner 10,001 100
ERNEE e EmEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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+—HB ARREFHEZBTERAEHMER
AR REEZEZE (TERAEHFRBEK
BIEEXVEL) MR - HMERNDRESFTHER
BREBEHFRBAEGHEXVEETRESH Y
B EEMEARRA LB LTS SIAR
(BEREFESLKPEGRNOZSEEXMET
ASGIEREEENEZIORE) - HIRE
B K B E R0 35216 B & s0 R % 6 B it
RARIFERNECMAMNERI AR - iR
BIZESTRIM B BT S AN A MR AR
RERTAR °
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS -
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, so far as was known to
the Directors of the Company, the following persons/
entities (other than the Directors or chief executive of
the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
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EMH - UTAL /B (BEFREAQAE
ZITBABRSIN) RARBIRBAD KARRIA D
R SRR S EARERF REGRES
XVEBSE 2 Ko 370 BRI SLAR TR AN A B BBk 52 T
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TRUST

7R

EDBEAA

Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions 336K B ARRRI T EE LM ERK
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which KB
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
Number of Approximate
shares/ percentage of
Name of substantial Long/short underlying shareholding
shareholder position Capacity shares Notes (%)
FIREEAY
B 1, 1EHE8 Bk
TERREE BB ¥, %R 4 BRAEE M (%)
Grandview Capital Long position Beneficial owner 637,500,000 1 61.30
Investment Limited 5=} EnEBA
Sunbrilliant Capital Long position Beneficial owner 75,000,000 2 7.21
Investment Limited e EnlEAA
FMR LLC Long position Interest held by its 91,518,800 3 8.80
S=Y controlled
corporations
AP EE R A
et
Pandanus Associates Long position Interest held by its 74,974,000 4 7.21
Inc. S=Y controlled
corporations
HE P RERE
o
Pandanus Partners L.P.  Long position Interest held by its 74,974,000 4 7.21
e controlled
corporations
E?%%E%ﬁm
FIL Limited Long position Interest held by its 74,974,000 4 7.21
S=Y controlled
corporations
AP RE R A
3
FIDELITY PURITAN Long position Beneficial owner 55,310,000 5 5.32
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Notes:

| 42 |

Grandview was wholly owned by Mr. Lu, the Chairman
and an executive Director of the Company and Mr. Lu was
deemed to be interested in the 637,500,000 ordinary shares
of the Company held by Grandview pursuant to the SFO.
Mr. Lu’s interests in shares are disclosed in this annual report
in the section headed “DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS -
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND/OR DEBENTURES”.

Sunbrilliant was wholly owned by Mr. Zhang, the Chief
Executive Officer and an executive Director of the
Company and Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested
in the 75,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company held
by Sunbrilliant pursuant to the SFO. Ms. Zheng, the Chief
Operating Officer and an executive Director of the Company,
is the spouse of Mr. Zhang and was accordingly deemed to
be interested in the 75,000,000 ordinary shares which Mr.
Zhang was deemed to be interested in for the purposes of
the SFO. Mr. Zhang’s and Ms. Zheng’s interests in shares
are disclosed in this annual report in the section headed
“DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS — DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR DEBENTURES”.

FMR LLC was deemed to be interested in the 91,518,800
ordinary shares of the Company through its 100% controlled
corporations and 483A Bay Street Holdings LP, which was
owned or controlled as to 18% by Bay Street Holdings LLC.

Pandanus Associates Inc. is a general partner of and has
100% control over Pandanus Partners L.P., which owned
or controlled 37.01% of the voting rights in FIL Limited, FIL
Limited then indirectly owned or controlled 82% of the voting
rights in 483A Bay Street Holdings LP. By virtue of Part XV
of the SFO, each of Pandanus Associates Inc., Pandanus
Partners L.P. and FIL Limited was deemed to be interested
in the 74,974,000 ordinary shares of the Company via 483A
Bay Street Holdings LP and its 100% controlled corporations.

FIDELITY PURITAN TRUST held the 55,310,000 ordinary
shares of the Company directly.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020,
the Directors were not aware of any other persons/
entities (other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted two share option schemes on
8 May 2014, namely the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and the share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which is governed by Chapter 17 of the Listing

Rules.

(a)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company conditionally approved and adopted
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme pursuant to a
resolution of the shareholders passed on 8 May
2014. The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is to recognise and reward the contribution
that certain Directors and employees of the Group
who made or may have made to the growth and
development of the Group and the Company’s IPO.

The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme are substantially the same as the terms
of the Share Option Scheme which has also been
conditionally adopted by the Company pursuant to
the aforesaid resolution, except that:

(@

The subscription price is, subject to certain
adjustments set out in the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, equivalent to 50% discount
to the offer price under the IPO.

The maximum number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme is 30,000,000
shares, representing approximately 2.89%
of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of this annual report (i.e.
1,039,808,000 shares).
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Eligible participants under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme are the Directors and
employees of the Group who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, will contribute or have
contributed to the Group.

Subject to any restrictions applicable under
the Listing Rules, and notwithstanding the
terms of grant thereof, all options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
subject to the following vesting period:

(i) as to 20% of the aggregate number
of shares underlying the option on
the date of the first anniversary of the
date of grant;

(ii) as to 30% of the aggregate number
of shares underlying the option on the
date of the second anniversary of the
date of grant; and

(iii) as to 50% of the aggregate number
of shares underlying the option on the
date of the third anniversary of the
date of grant.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme will lapse upon the
expiry of the option period of 5 years.

No further options will be offered or granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on
or after the listing date of the Company on
23 May 2014 (the “Listing Date”).
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(b)

On 19 May 2014, the Company has conditionally
granted options to subscribe for a total of
26,470,000 shares of the Company to certain
directors and employees of the Group under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2020, there was no outstanding
option under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Share Option Scheme

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme,
which shall be valid and effective for 10 years from
its adoption date, are summarised below:

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to reward the eligible participants who have
contributed to the Group and to encourage them to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shareholders.

(b)
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Eligible participants

The Board may at its discretion make offers inviting
the Directors and employees of the Group and any
advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners,
joint venture business partners, promoters or service
providers of any member of the Group who the
Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group, to take
up options to subscribe for shares of the Company,
subject to such conditions as the Board may think fit.

Total number of shares available for issue

under the Share Option Scheme

@) 10% limit
Subject to the following paragraph, the
maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the number of shares of
the Company in issue on the Listing Date
(not taking into account any shares which
may be allotted and issued pursuant to the
over-allotment option under the IPO) (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”). Options lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and (as the case may be)
such other share option schemes of the
Company will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

The Company may, from time to time,
refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit by
obtaining the approval of the shareholders
in general meeting, provided that the total
number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
under the limit as refreshed must not exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue
as at the date of the shareholders’ approval
of the refreshed limit.
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The Company may also seek separate
approval of the shareholders in general
meeting for granting options beyond the
Scheme Mandate Limit or the refreshed limit,
provided that the options in excess of such
limit are granted only to eligible participants
specifically identified by the Company before
such approval is sought.

b)  30% limit

The overall limit on the number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue
from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time. Where any further grant
of options to a grantee would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant exceeding 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue, such further grant must be
separately approved by the shareholders in general
meeting with such grantee and his associates
abstaining from voting.

Performance target

The Share Option Scheme allows the Board,
when offering the grant of any option, to impose
any condition including any performance target,
which must be met before the option shall vest and
become exercisable.
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Minimum period for which an option must be
held

The Board may at its discretion, when offering the
grant of any option, impose any minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

Exercise price

The exercise price shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion but in any event
shall be not less than the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(b) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company.

Amount payable upon acceptance of option

HK$1.00 is payable by each eligible participant to
the Company on acceptance of an offer of option.

The Company has not granted any share options
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption
on 8 May 2014.

The total number of shares available for issue
upon exercise of all share options which are not
yet granted under the Share Option Scheme is
73,530,000 shares, representing approximately
7.07% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report (i.e.
1,039,808,000 shares).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in Note 39
to the consolidated financial statements also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, which are required
to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The following transactions between certain
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) and
the Group have been entered into and/or are ongoing for
which relevant disclosure had been made by the Company
in the prospectus of the Company dated 13 May 2014
(the “Prospectus”) or disclosed by way of announcement
in compliance with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

a. Memorandum of Understanding in relation
to the proposed acquisition of assets to be
acquired from Textprint Lanka (Private) Limited

On 8 January 2020, Trischel Fabric (Private) Limited
(“Trischel”) (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company) entered into the legally binding
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU”) with
Textprint Lanka (Private) Limited (“Textprint”),
pursuant to which Trischel has conditionally
agreed to purchase and Textprint has conditionally
agreed to sell the assets which mainly consist of
printing machines, washing machines, boilers,
steamers, fabric inspection machines, dryers and
other equipment for printing synthetic fabrics and
the associated finishing processes (the “Assets”)
at a consideration of no more than US$4 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$31.2 million).
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Textprint is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of MAS, which indirectly holds 49% of the issued
share capital of Trischel. Accordingly, Textprint
is a connected person of the Company at the
subsidiary level under Rule 14A.06(9) of the Listing
Rules. One or more of the applicable percentage
ratios in respect of the transaction contemplated
under the MOU exceeds 1% but all of them are less
than 5%. Accordingly, the transaction contemplated
under the MOU is subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the MOU were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 8 January 2020.

Subsequently, on 29 January 2021, Trischel and
Textprint entered into an assets sale and purchase
agreement for acquisitions of the Assets. Further
details of the acquisition were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 January 2021.

Renewal of leases of certain premises for the
use of production plant and dormitories in
Humen Town and Houjie Town

As disclosed in the Prospectus, on 1 January 2014,
the Humen branch of Dongguan NHE, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as lessee
and Mr. Lu, as lessor, the Chairman and controlling
shareholder of the Company, entered into a lease
contract in relation to the lease of certain buildings
with a gross floor area of approximately 5,835
square meters in Humen Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province, China (the “Humen Lease
Contract”), for the use as a production plant and
dormitories for the staff of the Group for a term of
three years from 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2016. Besides, Dongguan NHE as lessee and Mr.
Lu as lessor entered into two lease contracts in
relation to the lease of certain buildings with a total
gross floor area of approximately 17,370 square
meters in Houjie Town, Dongguan City, Guangdong
Province, China (the “Houjie Lease Contracts”),
for the use as administrative offices, a production
plant and dormitories for the staff of the Group for
a term of three years from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2016.
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To ensure the continuous use of those buildings,
each of the Humen Lease Contract and the
Houjie Lease Contracts was renewed for a term of
three years commencing from 1 April 2017 to 31
March 2020. Further details were disclosed by the
Company in its announcement dated 31 March
2017.

On 31 March 2020, the above lease contracts
were again renewed for a term of three years
commencing from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023.
The terms under the renewed lease contracts are
substantially the same as those of the original
agreements, save for the monthly rents.

Under the renewed Humen Lease Contract, the
monthly rent during the first year (i.e. financial year
ended 31 December 2020) shall be RMB105,905
(equivalent to approximately HK$117,555) and
the monthly rent for the second vyear, third year
and fourth year shall not exceed RMB116,525,
RMB128,195 and RMB141,032 respectively
(equivalent to approximately HK$129,343,
HK$142,296 and HK$156,546 respectively).

Under the renewed Houjie Lease Contracts,
the total monthly rent during the first year (i.e.
financial year ended 31 December 2020) shall
be RMB315,266 (equivalent to approximately
HKB349,945) and the maximum total monthly rent
for the second year, third year and fourth year
shall not exceed RMB346,879, RMB381,619
and RMB419,833 respectively (equivalent to
approximately HK$385,036, HK$423,597 and
HK$466,045 respectively).

The rental so charged by Mr. Lu under the lease
contracts is determined with reference to the
historical rents and the prevailing market rents for
similar premises in the same or nearby areas or
similar locations in the PRC.
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As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios (other than the profits ratio) in respect of the
transactions contemplated under the renewal of
the lease contracts, on the basis of the estimated
values of the right-of-use asset and upon
aggregation, are more than 0.1% but less than
5%, the transactions contemplated are subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements
but exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Further details were disclosed by the
Company in its announcement dated 31 March
2020.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

a.

Lease of certain premises for the use of
production plant and dormitories in Humen Town

As disclosed in the section head “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS” in this annual report, Dongguan
NHE and Mr. Lu entered into a lease contract (the
“Renewed Humen Lease Contract”) for renewal
of the Humen Lease Contract for a term of three
years commencing from 1 April 2017 to 31 March
2020. The terms under the Renewed Humen Lease
Contract are substantially the same as those under
the Humen Lease Contract, save that the maximum
monthly rental payable for the financial year ended
31 December 2020 should be RMB116,525.
The rental so charged by Mr. Lu is determined by
reference to the historical rents of those buildings,
the prevailing market rents for similar premises in the
same or nearby areas or similar locations in China,
the terms and conditions of the Renewed Humen
Lease Contract, the historical trend and the expected
increase in the rents in the PRC property market
and inflation. Further details of the Renewed Humen
Lease Contract were disclosed by the Company in
its announcement dated 31 March 2017.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, rental
paid to Mr. Lu by the Group under the Renewed
Humen Lease Contract amounted to RMB317,715
(equivalent to approximately HK$353,205).

Lease of certain premises for the use of
production plant and dormitories in Houjie
Town

As disclosed in the section head “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS” in this annual report, Dongguan
NHE and Mr. Lu entered into another two
lease contracts (the “Renewed Houjie Lease
Contracts”) for renewal of the Houjie Lease
Contracts for a term of three years commencing
from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020. The respective
terms under the Renewed Houijie Lease Contracts
are substantially the same as those under the
Houjie Lease Contracts, save that the maximum
aggregated monthly rental under the Renewed
Houjie Lease Contracts for the financial year ended
31 December 2020 should be RMB346,879. The
rental so charged by Mr. Lu is determined by
reference to the historical rents of those buildings,
the prevailing market rents for similar premises in
the same or nearby areas or similar locations in
China, the terms and conditions of the Renewed
Houjie Lease Contracts, the historical trend and the
expected increase in the rents in the PRC property
market and inflation. Further details of the Renewed
Houjie Lease Contracts were disclosed by the
Company in its announcement dated 31 March
2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, rental
paid to Mr. Lu by the Group under the Renewed
Houjie Lease Contracts amounted to RMB945,798
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,051,446).
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Lease of certain property for daily production
and operational use in Machong Town

On 25 September 2015, Dongguan BPT, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
lessee, and Dongguan Quality Clothing Company
Limited (“Dongguan Clothing”) as lessor entered
into a lease agreement (the “Machong Lease
Agreement”) in relation to the lease of a property
with a total leasing area of approximately 21,868
square meters in Machong Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province, China for the Group’s daily
production and operational use at a monthly rental
of RMB328,020. The lease was for a term of three
years from 1 October 2015 to 30 September 2018,
and was terminable by mutual agreement.

To ensure the continuous use of the property, on 28
September 2018, Dongguan BPT and Dongguan
Clothing entered into a lease agreement (the
“Renewed Machong Lease Agreement”) for
renewal of the above lease agreement for a term of
three years commencing from 1 October 2018 to
30 September 2021. The terms under the Renewed
Machong Lease Agreement are substantially the
same as those under the above lease agreement,
save that the monthly rental payable under the
Renewed Machong Lease Agreement for the first
year of the lease (i.e. from 1 October 2018 to 31
December 2018) shall be RMB393,624 and the
maximum annual rent for the second year and third
year of the lease shall not exceed RMB5,195,837
and RMB5,715,420 respectively. The rental so
charged by Dongguan Clothing is determined by
reference to (i) the historical rents of the property;
(i) the prevailing market rents of similar properties in
the same or nearby areas or similar locations in the
PRC; (i) the conditions of the property, including
but not limited to the location of the property as well
as the facilities associated with the property; and (iv)
the historical trend and the expected increase in the
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rents in the PRC property market. Dongguan BPT
shall be responsible for all the charges for the utility
services to be used in respect of the property. The
annual caps for the transaction amounts payable
by Dongguan BPT under the Renewed Machong
Lease Agreement for the financial year ended 31
December 2020 was RMB7,900,000 and for the
financial year ending 31 December 2021 shall be
RMB6,087,000. Further details of the Renewed
Machong Lease Agreement were disclosed by the
Company in its announcement dated 28 September
2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
rental and charges for the utility services paid
to Dongguan Clothing by the Group under the
Renewed Machong Lease Agreement amounted
to approximately RMB7,262,581 (equivalent to
approximately HK$8,187,741).

Dongguan Clothing had originally been owned as
to 50% by Ms. Wu Wanxiong (the spouse of Mr.
Lu, the Chairman and an executive Director of the
Company, the sister of Mr. Wu, an executive Director
of the Company and the mother of Mr. Lu Libin, an
executive Director of the Company), 30% by Ms.
Zheng (the Chief Operating Officer and an executive
Director of the Company and the spouse of Mr.
Zhang, the Chief Executive Officer and an executive
Director of the Company), 10% by Mr. Wu Junijie
(the son of Mr. Wu) and 10% by Mr. Lu Canping
(the nephew of Mr. Lu). As at the date of this annual
report, Dongguan Clothing is owned as to 40% by
Ms. Wu Wanxiong, 40% by Ms. Zheng, 10% by Mr.
Wu Junjie and 10% by Mr. Lu Canping. Accordingly,
Dongguan Clothing is an associate of Mr. Lu, Ms.
Zheng, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Wu and Mr. Lu Libin, and
therefore is a connected person of the Company
pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SRS

BEBEMVMEFRAN ARG AE
FrEHBEYIE REHBAREE_Z
TEF+_A=+—HIFRFER
BREMEHERZREINNEE
FRAARET7,900,0005T © MREE
—E - —F+_A=t+—HIHEE
BB AREB,087,0007T © K&
iR ERZENE —PFBERAQA
RERSA-ZT—-N\ENALA=-+N\B
HNERHFE -

BE-T-_TFFT_A=1+—HILF
B AEBEREBLKETMAEEDZ
MEREERIAANES EABRBEAE
B AN ARET 262,581 (FHE
R#I8,187, 74178 7T) °

REERBREABREELZ L (KAQF
ETHERATEFTELENRSB AR
AIMITEE R B ER KK R AR R
TEFEIYWRENTR) Bzt
(ARAERECERNTESTHARR
NATHBHE RN ITESRLENR
B) REGLEE (REENRZTF) &
ERFTE(BEEAENER) D5l#
H50% ~ 30% * 10% N 10% 2 A% #& -
RAFHRBAH @ KRB mARBIER
T Bt REGEERERFL
A5 Bl B B40% ~ 40% ~ 10% K2 10%
I Bt REEERABERE -
B4~ RIAEE REERETWE
ERBE AL BWARE ETHELE
14A.07TIE AR AR ZBBEAL -

BEEFERERAR/ —E-TFFR



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Sales of elastic fabric and elastic webbing to
Dongguan Clothing

On 3 May 2016, Dongguan BPT and Dongguan
NHE (as suppliers) entered into a sales agreement
(the “Sales Agreement”) with Dongguan Clothing
(as purchaser) in relation to the sales of elastic
fabric and elastic webbing for a term of three
years commencing from 4 May 2016 to 3 May
2019. Further details of the Sales Agreement were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 3
May 2016.

On 3 May 2019, Dongguan BPT and Dongguan
NHE (as suppliers) entered into a sales agreement
(the “Renewed Sales Agreement”) with
Dongguan Clothing (as purchaser) in relation to
the sale of elastic fabric, elastic webbing, lace,
printing and embroidery for a term of three years
commencing from 4 May 2019 to 3 May 2022.
Pursuant to the Renewed Sales Agreement, the
selling prices for elastic fabric shall be between
the price range of RMB5 to RMB200 per meter
(tax inclusive); the selling prices for lace shall be
between the price range of RMB0.5 to RMB80 per
meter (tax inclusive); the selling prices for printing
and embroidery shall be between the price range
of RMB5 to RMB40 per meter (tax inclusive) or the
price range of RMB0.5 to RMB15 per piece (tax
inclusive); and the selling prices for elastic webbing
shall be between the price range of RMB0.5 to
RMB2 per meter (tax inclusive). The selling price
ranges for the goods under the Renewed Sales
Agreement were determined after arm’s length
negotiation between the parties thereto and with
reference to (i) the historical and prevailing market
price of the same and similar goods in the area,
(i) the historical and prevailing selling prices of
Dongguan BPT and Dongguan NHE for the goods,
and (iii) the credit worthiness and potential business
growth of Dongguan Clothing. The annual caps
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for the transaction amounted under the Renewed
Sales Agreement for the financial year ended 31
December 2020 was RMB45 million and for the
financial years ending 31 December 2021 and
2022 shall be RMB60 million and RMB30 million
respectively. Further details of the Renewed Sales
Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 3 May 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
sales to Dongguan Clothing by Dongguan
BPT and Dongguan NHE under the Renewed
Sales Agreement amounted to approximately
RMB42,564,786 (equivalent to approximately
HK$48,292,894).

Dongguan Clothing had originally been owned as
to 50% by Ms. Wu Wanxiong (the spouse of Mr.
Lu, the Chairman and an executive Director of the
Company, the sister of Mr. Wu, an executive Director
of the Company and the mother of Mr. Lu Libin, an
executive Director of the Company), 30% by Ms.
Zheng (the Chief Operating Officer and an executive
Director of the Company and the spouse of Mr.
Zhang, the Chief Executive Officer and an executive
Director of the Company), 10% by Mr. Wu Junjie
(the son of Mr. Wu) and 10% by Mr. Lu Canping
(the nephew of Mr. Lu). As at the date of this annual
report, Dongguan Clothing is owned as to 40% by
Ms. Wu Wanxiong, 40% by Ms. Zheng, 10% by Mr.
Wu Junjie and 10% by Mr. Lu Canping. Accordingly,
Dongguan Clothing is an associate of Mr. Lu, Ms.
Zheng, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Wu and Mr. Lu Libin, and
therefore is a connected person of the Company
pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.
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Sales of synthetic fabric and webbing to the
Brandix Group

On 6 November 2017, Best Pacific Textile Holdings
Limited (“BPTHL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a framework agreement
(the “Brandix Framework Agreement”) with
Brandix for a term of three years commencing
from 6 November 2017. Further details of the
Brandix Framework Agreement were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 6 November
2017.

The annual cap for the transaction amounts
under the Brandix Framework Agreement for the
period from 1 January 2020 to 5 November 2020
was US$64 milion. From 1 January 2020 to 5
November 2020, sales to Brandix under the Brandix
Framework Agreement amounted to approximately
USD10,404,445 (equivalent to approximately
HK$81,154,671).

On 6 November 2020, BPTHL and its affiliates
(collectively, the “BPTHL Group”) (as seller)
and Brandix and its affiliates (collectively, the
“Brandix Group”) (as purchaser) entered into
a sales framework agreement (the “Renewed
Brandix Framework Agreement”) relating to
the sale and purchase of the synthetic fabric and
webbing (or any other products as may be agreed
between the parties) from time to time on normal
commercial terms and subject to and upon the
terms and conditions to be agreed between the
relevant members of the BPTHL Group and the
Brandix Group, setting out, among other things, the
products to be supplied, specifications, quantity,
price, delivery method and payment arrangement.
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The annual caps for the transaction amounts under
the Renewed Brandix Framework Agreement for
the period from 6 November 2020 to 31 December
2020 was US$7 million and for the financial years
ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023 shall
be US$43 million, US$63 million and US$64 million
respectively. During the period from 6 November
2020 to 31 December 2020, the sales to the
Brandix Group by the BPTHL Group under the
Renewed Brandix Framework Agreement amounted
to approximately US$2,424,821 (equivalent to
approximately HK$18,913,604). Further details of
the Renewed Brandix Framework Agreement were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 6
November 2020.

As at 6 November 2020 and the date of this annual
report, BPTL, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, is owned as to 75% by the Company,
via Best Pacific International Sri Lanka (Pannala)
Limited, and 25% by Brandix. Accordingly,
Brandix, as a substantial shareholder of BPTL, is a
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary
level under Rule 14A.06(9) of the Listing Rules.

Sub-lease of a land for the use of production
plant by MAS Fabric Park

On 22 December 2006, Trischel, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company since completion
of the acquisition on 1 August 2018, entered into
an agreement (the “Sub-Lease Agreement”) with
MAS Fabric Park (Private) Limited (“MAS Fabric
Park”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
MAS and a substantial shareholder of Trischel, for
sub-leasing a piece of land, situated in Nangalla
and Thulhiriya Villages in the District of Kegalle,
Sabaragamuwa Province, Sri Lanka, with an
approximate area of 3.37818 hectares, to Trischel
for a term of 98 years and 7 months commencing
on 22 December 2006 and ending on 29 July
2105.
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Pursuant to the Sub-Lease Agreement, the initial
ground rent was US$29,218 per annum as at
signing of the Sub-Lease Agreement, which shall
be adjusted annually in line with the ground rent
charged or chargeable at other industrial zones
as published by Board of Investment of Sri Lanka
(“BOI”), a governmental authority in Sri Lanka, and
shall be paid on or before 22 December each year.

The annual caps for the transaction amounts under
the Sub-Lease Agreement for the financial year
ended 31 December 2020 was US$68,000 and
for the financial years ending 31 December 2021
and 2022 shall be US$81,000 and US$97,000
respectively. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the ground rent paid to MAS Fabric Park
by Trischel under the Sub-Lease Agreement
amounted to approximately US$34,831 (equivalent
to approximately HK$271,682). Further details of
the Sub-Lease Agreement were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 4 December
2017.

Since completion of the acquisition on 1 August
2018, Trischel has become a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company in which 51% is
indirectly owned by the Company, via Best Pacific
International Sri Lanka (Thulhiriya) Limited, and 49%
is owned by MAS Capital (Private) Limited (“MAS
Capital”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
MAS. Accordingly, MAS Fabric Park, as an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of MAS, has become a
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary
level under Rule 14A.06(9) of the Listing Rules since
1 August 2018.
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Utilities services provided by MAS Fabric Park

On 22 December 2008, Trischel also entered into
a services agreement (the “Services Agreement”)
with MAS Fabric Park, pursuant to which MAS
Fabric Park shall provide Trischel with electricity,
steam, water, effluent discharge and fire hydrant
water supply. The Services Agreement shall
come into force and will be valid so long as the
Sub-Lease Agreement remains valid and effective.

The initial monthly base service charge payable
by Trischel to MAS Fabric Park was US$5,000 as
at signing of the Services Agreement which shall
be adjusted annually with reference to the London
Interbank Offered Rate (“‘LIBOR”). In addition to
the monthly base service charge, Trischel shall also
pay to MAS Fabric Park the utilities fees in amounts
calculated with reference to the actual number of
units or volume of use.

The annual caps for the transaction amounts under
the Services Agreement for the financial year ended
31 December 2020 was US$3,495,000 and for
the financial years ending 31 December 2021 and
2022 shall be US$8,093,000 and US$9,462,000
respectively. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the total service charge paid to MAS Fabric
Park by Trischel under the Services Agreement
amounted to approximately US$2,893,481
(equivalent to approximately HK$22,569,152).
Further details of the Services Agreement were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 4
December 2017.
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Installation, maintenance and operation
services in relation to a biomass thermic oil
heater provided by MAS Fabric Park

On 15 July 2016, Trischel entered into a MOU
with MAS Fabric Park in relation to provision
by MAS Fabric Park to Trischel of installation,
maintenance and operation services in relation to
a biomass thermic oil heater for a term of 10 years
commencing from 15 July 2016 and ending on 14
July 2026. MAS Fabric Park shall bear the total
cost of investment on purchasing and installation of
the said heater pursuant to the MOU.

MAS Fabric Park shall charge Trischel at a rate
determined according to the MOU for the energy
consumed subject to review (and agreement
between the parties to the MOU) annually in line
with the percentage change in firewood prices and
costs of labour, maintenance and electricity relating
to the operation of the oil heater. MAS Fabric
Park shall in addition to the above costs, charge a
minimal administrative charge.

The annual caps for the transaction amounts under
the MOU for the financial year ended 31 December
2020 was US$1,127,000 and for the financial
years ending 31 December 2021 and 2022 shall
be US$2,321,000 and US$2,715,000 respectively.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
total service charge paid to MAS Fabric Park by
Trischel under the MOU amounted to approximately
US$495,015 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,861,117). Further details of the MOU were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 4
December 2017.
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Sales of synthetic textiles and textile related
products to the MAS Group

On 4 December 2017, BPTHL, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
framework agreement (the “MAS Framework
Agreement”) with MAS Capital for a term of three
years commencing on the date on which the
completion of the acquisition takes place, i.e. 1
August 2018.

On 31 December 2019, BPTHL and MAS Capital
entered into a supplemental agreement (the “MAS
Supplemental Agreement”) to revise the annual
cap for the financial year ended 31 December 2019
and for the financial year ending 31 December
2020, and to decide the annual cap for the financial
year ending 31 December 2021. Save for the
annual caps as amended and decided under the
MAS Supplemental Agreement as abovementioned,
all other terms of the MAS Framework Agreement
remain unchanged.

Pursuant to the MAS Framework Agreement (as
amended by the MAS Supplemental Agreement),
the BPTHL Group (as seller) has agreed to sell
synthetic textiles and textile related products
including synthetic fabrics to MAS Capital and
its affiliates (collectively, the “MAS Group”) (as
purchaser) from time to time on normal commercial
terms and subject to and upon the terms and
conditions contained in the purchase orders to
be agreed between the relevant members of the
BPTHL Group and the MAS Group, setting out,
among other things, the products to be supplied,
specifications, quantity, price, delivery method and
payment arrangement.
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The annual caps for the transaction amounts
under the MAS Supplemental Agreement for the
financial year ended 31 December 2020 was
US$84 million and for the financial year ending 31
December 2021 shall be US$55 million. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the sales
to the MAS Group by the BPTHL Group under
the MAS Supplemental Agreement amounted
to approximately US$54,901,393 (equivalent to
approximately HK$428,230,865). Further details of
the MAS Supplemental Agreement were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 31 December
2019.

Since completion of the acquisition on 1 August
2018, Trischel has become a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company in which 51% is
indirectly owned by the Company and 49% is
owned by MAS Capital. Accordingly, MAS Capital,
as a substantial shareholder of Trishel, has become
a connected person of the Company at the
subsidiary level under Rule 14A.06(9) of the Listing
Rules since 1 August 2018.

Shared services from MAS Capital

On 1 August 2018, Trischel, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company since completion
of the acquisition on 1 August 2018, entered
into a framework agreement (the “MAS Capital
Framework Agreement”) with MAS Capital for
a term of three years commencing from 1 August
2018 to 31 July 2021.
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Pursuant to the MAS Capital Framework
Agreement, MAS Capital shall provide the
centralised group services in relation to the
operation of Trischel and its subsidiaries (collectively,
“Trischel Group”) in various areas, including legal,
corporate finance, treasury, business strategy,
risk and control, human resources, sustainability,
corporate social responsibility, consultancy services
and information technology, etc. as requested by
Trischel from time to time. The service fees to be
charged by MAS Capital in respect of the services
under the MAS Capital Framework Agreement
shall be determined either at the standard charging
rate of MAS Capital (if any), or if no such rate, at a
service fee to be determined with reference to the
costs incurred by MAS Capital plus a percentage
mark-up, which shall be negotiated between the
parties at arm’s length basis.

The annual caps for the transaction amounts under
the MAS Capital Framework Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2020 was US$646,000
and for the financial year ending 31 December
2021 shall be US$441,000. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the total service fee paid by
Trischel to MAS Capital under the MAS Capital
Framework Agreement amounted to approximately
US$337,121 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,629,544).

Further details of the MAS Capital Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 1 August 2018.
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Shared services from MAS Legato

On 1 August 2018, Trischel, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company since completion of
the acquisition on 1 August 2018, also entered
into a framework agreement (the “MAS Legato
Framework Agreement”’) with MAS Legato (Pvt)
Ltd (“MAS Legato”) for a term of three years
commencing from 1 August 2018 to 31 July 2021.

Pursuant to the MAS Legato Framework
Agreement, MAS Legato shall provide the
centralised group services to Trischel Group in
relation to general ledger, account payables and
account receivables processes, etc. as requested
by Trischel from time to time. The service fees to be
charged by MAS Legato in respect of the services
under the MAS Legato Framework Agreement
shall be determined either at the standard charging
rate of MAS Legato (if any), or if no such rate, at a
service fee to be determined with reference to the
costs incurred by MAS Legato plus a percentage
mark-up, which shall be negotiated between the
parties at arm’s length basis.

The annual caps for the transaction amounts under
the MAS Legato Framework Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2020 was US$66,000
and for the financial year ending 31 December
2021 shall be US$45,000. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the total service fee paid by
Trischel to MAS Legato under the MAS Legato
Framework Agreement amounted to approximately
US$30,912 (equivalent to approximately
HK$241,114).
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Since completion of the acquisition on 1 August
2018, Trischel has become a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company in which 51% is
indirectly owned by the Company and 49% is
owned by MAS Capital, which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of MAS. Accordingly, MAS Legato, as
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of MAS, has
become a connected person of the Company at
the subsidiary level under Rule 14A.06(9) of the
Listing Rules since 1 August 2018.

Further details of the MAS Legato Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 1 August 2018.

Independent non-executive Directors’ confirmation

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions conducted
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and confirmed
that such transactions have been entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(©) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.
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Review by the Company’s auditor

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Our auditor has issued its
unmodified independent assurance report on continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 on pages 52 to 67 of this annual
report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the independent assurance report has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was
established by the Board with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Sai, Mr. Cheung Yat
Ming and Mr. Ding. Mr. Sai is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 80 to 95 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was
held by the public as at the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this report.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 15
June 2020, the Company (as guarantor) and its six wholly-
owned subsidiaries (as borrowers) entered into a facility
agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) with certain banks
in Hong Kong for a syndicated loan comprising HK$1.8
billion equivalent multicurrency term loan and revolving
credit facilities, with a maturity of 42 months from the
date of first drawdown of the term loan facility. The Facility
Agreement contains specific performance obligations
on Mr. Lu, the controlling shareholder of the Company,
requiring that he shall at all times:

(i) maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company and that such
issued share capital shall remain unencumbered;

(ii) be the single largest shareholder of the Company;
(iif) be the Chairman of the Board of the Company; and

(iv) maintain control over the management and
business of the borrowers, the Company and the
material subsidiaries.

As of the date of this annual report, Mr. Lu is an executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board as well as the
controlling shareholder of the Company, holding direct and
indirect interests in 640,500,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 61.59% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report, and is
treated as the single largest shareholder of the Company.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, if Mr. Lu breaches
any of his specific performance covenants as mentioned
above, the borrowers shall prepay the syndicated loan
together with the interests and all other amounts accrued
in connection therewith in full within 21 days (or such
longer period as the borrowers and the agent of the
syndicated loan may agree) from the date of the notice
delivered by the agent to the borrowers.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he/she may incur
or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Group throughout the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had
no other significant events after 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020 have been audited
by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution will be
submitted at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as independent auditor of the
Company.

By order of the Board
Lu Yuguang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Below is the biographical details of Directors and senior
management of the Group as at 31 March 2021:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LU Yuguang (E/€5%), aged 55, is the Chairman of the
Company. He was appointed as a Director on 14 June
2013 and re-designated as an executive Director of the
Company on 21 January 2014. Mr. Lu is also the chairman
of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Lu has
approximately twenty-six years of experience in the textile
industry and he formulates overall management plans and
oversees the strategic business development of the Group.
He is currently the legal representative and the chairman of
Dongguan NHE, the chairman of the board of directors of
Dongguan BPT and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Lu first started to engage in the textile industry
in August 1994 when he was a chairman of Dongguan
Runda Elastic Weaving Company Limited (“Dongguan
Runda”), a company engaged in the manufacturing,
production and sale of elastic webbing and throughout the
years, Mr. Lu has been an active entrepreneur in Dongguan
City and Guangdong Province. Mr. Lu has been a member
of the Dongguan High-Tech Industry Association (3R 7=
TEFRMEZEHE) since July 2009 and a committee
member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of the Dongguan Municipal (RZ=m B iHZE &
2) since December 2011. Since July 2017 and April 2017,
Mr. Lu has been appointed as the president of Dongguan
City MaChong Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment (REMINEIRETEHEMBEDE) and an
executive director of World Dongguan Entrepreneurs (it
R A ®) respectively. In January 2018, Mr. Lu was
appointed as the vice president of the Dongguan City
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment (e
SN E WD), In March 2019, Mr. Lu was appointed
as the vice president of the Dongguan Trademark Brand
Development Promotion Association (522 1 2 12 & o 3¢
BARFEMRHED). In July 2009, Mr. Lu was awarded with the
“Chinese Enterprise Management Innovation Achievement
Award” (BB IRBIFTAKBLEE) by the China Academy
of Management Science (B % E R EM3EbT). Mr. Lu
is the brother-in-law of Mr. Wu and the father of Mr. Lu
Libin. As at 31 December 2020, Mr. Lu was the controlling
shareholder of the Company. Details of Mr. Lu’s interests in
the share capital of the Company are set out in the section
headed “DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS - DIRECTORS’
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR
DEBENTURES” in this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREBEEN

Mr. ZHANG Haitao (3/8)%), who was formerly named as
Mr. ZHANG Dahai (55 X/8), aged 51, is the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. He was appointed as a Director on
14 June 2013 and re-designated as an executive Director
of the Company on 21 January 2014. He was also
appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee
on 20 March 2018. He is currently a director and the
general manager of Dongguan BPT and Dongguan
NHE and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Zhang formulates and executes overall corporate
directions and business strategies of the Group. He
has approximately twenty-six years of experience in the
textile industry. Mr. Zhang has worked in the Group since
February 2003 and held the position of general manager
at Dongguan BPT. Prior to working in the Group, Mr.
Zhang worked for Pioneer Elastic Fabric (China) Company
Limited (BRFTsE M4 (R ED) BBRAR]) as the business
manager between March 1995 and March 1998. Between
January 1998 and April 1999, and later from July 2001
to May 2010, Mr. Zhang was the general manager of
Dongguan Runda. Mr. Zhang has been a director of the
Guangdong Textiles Association (&R & #1417 2) since
November 2009 and an individual life member of the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited (&%
KR E) since September 2013. Since December 2019,
Mr. Zhang became the Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong
Intimate Apparel Industries’ Association Ltd. Mr. Zhang
completed a fashion technology course at Beijing Institute
of Fashion Technology (3t mARZEZER) in July 1992 and
further obtained a master degree in software systems at
the University of St. Thomas in the U.S. in May 2001. Mr.
Zhang is the spouse of Ms. Zheng, the Chief Operating
Officer and an executive Director of the Company. As
at 31 December 2020, Mr. Zhang was interested in the
shares of the Company, details of which are set out in
the section headed “DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS -
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND/OR DEBENTURES” in this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. WU Shaolun (= > @), aged 56, is an executive Director
of the Company. He was appointed as a Director on 14
June 2013 and re-designated as an executive Director of
the Company on 21 January 2014. He is currently a director
and the deputy general manager of Dongguan BPT and
Dongguan NHE, and a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. Wu is principally responsible for the Group’s
infrastructure and the general management of Dongguan
BPT and Dongguan NHE. He has over twenty-five years of
experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Wu worked in Dongguan Runda as the deputy general
manager from April 1995 to May 2010. Since February 2003,
Mr. Wu has been the deputy general manager of Dongguan
BPT. In addition, he has been the deputy general manager of
Dongguan NHE since 2010. Mr. Wu has been a member of
the Dongguan High-tech Industry Association (SR = #T5%
T ZH%2) since July 2009 and a director of the Dongguan
City Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment (32
SEMAMNEIRE R E) since November 2013. Mr. Wu is
the brother-in-law of Mr. Lu and the uncle of Mr. Lu Libin. As
at 31 December 2020, Mr. Wu was interested in the shares
of the Company, details of which are set out in the section
headed “DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS - DIRECTORS’
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR
DEBENTURES” in this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXNSREEEZN

Ms. ZHENG Tingting (£[151Z), aged 46, is an executive
Director of the Company, the Chief Operating Officer and
vice-president (marketing) of the Group and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group, is responsible for the
overall operations, manufacturing and developing and
implementing the sales and marketing strategies of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group in December 2006,
Ms. Zheng joined the Guangzhou office of Parker Pen
(Shanghai) Limited as a sourcing specialist in January
2004. In December 2006, Ms. Zheng joined Dongguan
Runda and worked as the vice-president when she left in
May 2010 and she has since joined Dongguan NHE in the
same capacity. Also, starting from December 2006, Ms.
Zheng worked as a sales manager in Dongguan BPT and
since December 2008, she has been promoted as the
vice-president (marketing) of the Group. Ms. Zheng has
also been promoted as the chief operating officer of the
Group since 1 September 2014. Ms. Zheng graduated
from the English department of Xi’an Translation College
(P2 BZEEIIZ) in the PRC in June 1996. Further
in January 2017, she graduated from the Northwestern
University and The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology with a master degree in business
administration. Ms. Zheng is the spouse of Mr. Zhang,
the Chief Executive Officer and an executive Director of
the Company. As at 31 December 2020, Ms. Zheng was
interested in the shares of the Company, details of which
are set out in the section headed “DISCLOSURE OF
INTERESTS — DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR DEBENTURES” in this
annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHAN Yiu Sing (12 £), aged 42, is an executive
Director of the Company, the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Group and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chan is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting, budgeting
control, financing and fund management, as well as
ensuring and maintaining the standards of corporate
governance of the Group. Mr. Chan has over fifteen years
of experience in audit, investment, accounting and finance.
He joined an international audit firm in February 2006 and
was a manager of such audit firm until May 2012 prior to
joining the Group in February 2013. Mr. Chan graduated
from the University of New South Wales in Australia with
a master’s degree in commerce in June 2005 and a
bachelor’s degree in accounting and finance in October
20083. He has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since September 2009.

Mr. LU Libin (E3/#), aged 28, is an executive Director
of the Company and has been the Chief Strategy Officer
of the Group since June 2019. Mr. Lu Libin is primarily
responsible for assisting the Board in formulating future
development strategies and directions for the Group.
Mr. Lu Libin joined the Group as the sales manager in
June 2017, and was responsible for coordinating various
departments and operations across different countries.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lu Libin worked as an
associate in the investment banking division at BOCOM
International (Asia) Limited from January 2016 to May
2017. Mr. Lu Libin obtained his bachelor’s degree in
finance from the University of Connecticut in the United
States of America in January 2016. Mr. Lu Libin is the
son of Mr. Lu, the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company, and the nephew of Mr. Wu, an executive
Director of the Company.
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EXNSREEEZN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Yat Ming (55 —"5), who was formerly named
as Mr. CHEUNG Yiu Tai (5R#%), aged 52, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 8 May 2014. He is also a member of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He has extensive
experience in the fields of investment, real estate and
property market research, corporate finance and auditing.
Prior to joining the Group, he was a staff accountant
and semi-senior accountant at Arthur Andersen & Co.
in Hong Kong and China from August 1991. In August
1994, he joined Citicorp Commercial Finance (HK) Limited
as an administration and accounting manager and was
promoted with Citibank’s corporate title of assistant
vice-president in September 1996. In October 1997,
he joined Salomon Brothers Hong Kong Limited as an
equity research associate. He joined Donaldson, Lufkin &
Jenrette as a research associate in its equity department
in May 1999. In November 2000, he joined HSBC Markets
(Asia) Limited as its head of Hong Kong and China
property research. In 2005, he joined Cohen & Steers Asia
Limited as an executive director and a vice-president in
its investment research department and was promoted in
January 2007 as a senior vice-president and Asia Pacific
chief investment officer. In June 2009, he joined DBS
Vickers (Hong Kong) Limited as its head of research.
From August 2011 to June 2013, he worked as the chief
investment officer of Neutron Greater China Equity Long/
Short Fund as managed by Neutron INV Partners Limited.
From June 2013 to February 2020, he worked as the
executive director, chief executive officer and responsible
officer of New Century Asset Management Limited, which
is the manager of New Century Real Estate Investment
Trust, a REIT listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
1275). From March 2014 to March 2020, he served as
an independent non-executive director of Springland
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1700). From February 2020
to March 2020, he served as the chief executive officer
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of FEC Hospitality REIT Pte. Ltd. Since 17 March 2020,
he has been the chief executive officer of Neutron Pacific
Limited. He became a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
January 1995, a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in September 1999 and a fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales in September 2017. In June 2010, he
received the Outstanding Chinese Business Leader Award
(FPEEAE P 2 48158) from the HongQi (ALiEZ ) and
China Report (FE¥R3&). He graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor degree in
accountancy in November 1991.

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming was appointed as a director of
Neutron Greater China Equity Long/Short Fund, an
exempted limited company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 11 June 2010 to conduct securities investment
business. The company had ceased to trade and was
not in operation, had no assets, nor liabilities to creditors,
shareholders or any other third party at the time when
he was one of the directors of the company, and the
shareholders of the company believed that it was for
the best interests of the company to be struck off from
the register of companies in the Cayman Islands. The
company was subsequently struck off from the register
on 31 December 2013. He was also a director of Neutron
Capital Management Ltd., an exempted limited company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 11 June 2010 to
conduct securities investment business. The company had
ceased to trade and was not in operation, it also had no
assets, nor liabilities to creditors, shareholders or any other
third party at the time when he was one of the directors
of the company, and the shareholders of the company
believed that it was for the best interests of the company
to be struck off from the register of companies in the
Cayman Islands. The company was subsequently struck
off from the register on 31 December 2013.
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EENEREBEEN

Mr. DING Baoshan (T E1l), aged 58, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company on
8 May 2014. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Ding was an executive director of Denway
Motors Limited, which was initially listed on the Stock
Exchange but was delisted in 2010 upon its privatisation,
from 2000 to 2007. Starting from July 2000, Mr. Ding also
worked as the chief economist and the deputy general
manager of Guangzhou Automobile Industry Group
Company Limited (BM /28 T35 E AR A7), managing
various departments until October 2007. Starting from
2008, he was the general manager of Beijing Shengshi
Huaxuan Investment Company Limited (1t At &L E
ABRAF]) until June 2015. From May 2011 to November
2017, he was an independent director of Qinghai Huading
Industrial Company Limited (5 /8 £ & E ¥ G R 1A 7)),
a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 600243). Mr. Ding has also taken up the
position as the chairman and an executive director of Pizu
Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 8053) since December 2012, and
subsequently resigned as the chairman on 15 November
2016, and later resigned as the executive director on 9
January 2019. With effect from 30 March 2015, Mr. Ding
has been an independent director of Shanxi Guoxin Energy
Corporation Limited (LI 75#& B8R N BR A F), a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock
code: 600617). Mr. Ding graduated from the Beijing Iron
and Steel Institute (It 7 #fl#52Fc) with a bachelor degree
in mining machinery in July 1985. In June 1988, Mr. Ding
completed a master degree in engineering at Beijing
University of Science and Technology (AtFRFEHTAE) in
the PRC. Mr. Ding graduated from China Social Science
Institute ( B - & & 2 F%) with a doctorate degree in
economics in July 1991.
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Mr. SAl Chun Yu (R¥&F), aged 40, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 8
May 2014. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Mr. Sai has over eighteen years of
experience in audit, accounting, taxation and business
consultancy. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Sai worked at
Ting Ho Kwan & Chan Certified Public Accountants from
August 2002 to February 2006. Later in March 2006, Mr.
Sai worked at KPMG as an assistant manager. Mr. Sai has
been the managing partner of CCS & Company, Certified
Public Accountants since March 2008. Since March 2012,
Mr. Sai has been an independent non-executive director of
China Gem Holdings Limited (formerly known as Yueshou
Environmental Holdings Limited), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1191) and resigned from
such position with effect from 10 October 2014. Since
29 April 2020, Mr. Sai has been an independent non-
executive director of Pak Wing Group (Holdings) Limited,
a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 8316) and resigned from such position with effect
from 10 February 2021. In February 2006, Mr. Sai was
admitted as a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. In September 2007. Mr. Sai
became a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and was later
registered as a certified public accountant (practising) in
February 2008 with the same institute. Mr. Sai graduated
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
degree in business administration in December 2002.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
PERERRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard
of corporate governance which is essential to the
sustainable development and growth of the Company.
The Board is of the view that the Company has met all
the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“Reporting Period”).

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors of the
Company and the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the Reporting
Period.

The Company has also established a code no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions
by senior management who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive or inside information of the
Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Board
comprises seven members, consisting of four executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lu (Chairman of the Board), Mr.
Zhang (Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Wu and Ms. Zheng
(Chief Operating Officer), and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Yat Ming, Mr.
Ding and Mr. Sai. On 10 February 2021, the Company
appointed two executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan (Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary) and Mr. Lu Libin
(Chief Strategy Officer).

The biographical information of the Directors as well as the

relationships between the members of the Board are set
out on pages 71 to 79 of this annual report.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
held by Mr. Lu and Mr. Zhang respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board. The Chief
Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s business
development and daily management and operations
generally. Their respective responsibilities are clearly
defined and set out in writing.

Independent non-executive Directors

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing more than one-third of
the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Retirement

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at
any time either by the Shareholders in general meeting or
by the Board upon recommendation by the Nomination
Committee.

According to the Articles, the Board has the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of shareholders after his/
her appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election. Besides, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (o, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years.
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tEERRS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, and each of the independent
non-executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment
with the Company. All Directors are appointed for a specific
term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the Articles.

Pursuant to the aforesaid provisions in the Articles, Mr.
Chan and Mr. Lu Libin, being appointed by the Board on 10
February 2021, shall hold office until the forthcoming AGM
while Ms. Zheng, Mr. Ding and Mr. Sai will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming AGM. All the above Directors, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company as well as the services
and advice from the company secretary and senior
management. The Directors may, upon request,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of
other offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews
the contribution required from each Director to perform his
responsibilities to the Company.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters
relating to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and
other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the
Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation
and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. The Company should be
responsible for arranging and funding suitable training,
placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of a listed company director. The Company
updates Directors on the latest development regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
from time to time, in order to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices. The Company is also arranging suitable
professional development seminars and courses for
the Directors. For instance, every newly appointed
Director will receive induction on the first occasion of his/
her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of Directors’ responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

The Directors informed the Company that they had
received sufficient and relevant training and continuous
professional development during the Reporting Period.
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tEERRS

Records of training by the Directors are maintained by the
company secretary. Training records of Directors in 2020
are as follows:

EEEXNBIICEARRNERT - EF
R-ZT-ZFMEIREAT -

Directors Type of trainings
= EINEE
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lu Yuguang B A&B
Mr. Zhang Haitao REBEL A&B
Mr. Wu Shaolun R E A&B
Ms. Zheng Tingting e is 2+ A&B
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHITES

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming R—IREAE A B&C
Mr. Ding Baoshan TEILEE A B&C
Mr. Sai Chun Yu SRFEAE A B&C

A reading materials relating to the Group, general business, A: MEAEAEE - —MEK - EWRAINE

latest development of the Listing Rules and other applicable
legal and regulatory requirements

B: attending a training session on directors’ duties and latest
development of the Listing Rules conducted by legal advisers
of the Company

C: attending briefings, seminars, webinar or training courses

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

Under code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the Board
should meet regularly and Board meetings should be
held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals and under code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code,
the chairman of the Board should at least annually hold
meeting with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors.

During the Reporting Period, six Board meetings were
held. In addition, the Chairman held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of other Directors.

R RE A AR REE BT

B: DNMARBERERERNOEREERAEK
ETRAEHERNFIFAT S

C: 2@ - FE - AREHIIFIIRE

EEENEERES

RIFEEEE R TR STRIRXAAIR &
FeRTHOAFeZAEBFREDETHER
(ROBFE—X)  REBEEEEARTANT
AlGEXATIR  EFEXTREEIBF A
BUFNTEFRT - RNRBAHMESRLRE

Py
& e

R|EMEA > RAFERITANREEZES
e AN EFEBYIFRITEEFEIT R
BREHEMESHFENGSE -

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A tentative schedule for regular Board meetings will be
provided to the Directors at the beginning of the year. At
least 14 days’ notice for all regular Board meetings will be
given to all Directors and all Directors must be given the
opportunity to include items or businesses for discussion
in the agenda. For all other Board meetings, reasonable
notice will be given. Relevant agenda and accompanying
Board papers will be sent to all Directors at least three
working days in advance of every regular Board meeting.

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders
upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee
are independent non-executive Directors and the list of
the chairman and members of each Board committee is
set out under “Corporate Information” on page 2 of this
annual report.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 8
May 2014 in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the
Listing Rules and code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code.
The Audit Committee has three members, namely Mr. Sai,
Mr. Cheung Yat Ming and Mr. Ding and is chaired by Mr.
Sai.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the
Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems
and procedures, audit plan and relationship with external
auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.
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The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held
three meetings to review annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019, the interim results
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2020
and significant issues on the financial reporting and
compliance procedures, risk management and internal
control systems, effectiveness of the Company’s internal
audit function, and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties.

The external auditors attended all the above meetings to
discuss with the Audit Committee on issues arising from
the audit and financial reporting matters.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee
on 8 May 2014 in compliance with Rules 3.25 and 3.26
of the Listing Rules and code provision B.1.2 of the CG
Code. The Remuneration Committee has three members,
namely Mr. Ding, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Cheung Yat Ming and
is chaired by Mr. Ding.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
include reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management, the
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management, and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration.

The full terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee

are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.
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During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
met two times for the purpose of, among other matters,
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company,
and the remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and senior management and other related matters.

The details of the remuneration paid to the Directors for
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code,
the remuneration paid to other member of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December
2020 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)
FMER (Bx)
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
8 May 2014 in compliance with code provisions A.5.1 and
A.5.2 of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee has
three members, namely Mr. Lu, Mr. Cheung Yat Ming and
Mr. Ding and is chaired by Mr. Lu.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and succession planning of
Directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.
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TEBRME

The procedures and criteria for the Nomination Committee
to select and recommend candidates for being appointed
as Directors are summarised below:

(@)

diversity in all aspects, including but not limited
to skills, knowledge, gender, age, ethnicity,
cultural and educational background, professional
experience and other personal qualities of the
candidate;

ability to exercise sound business judgment and
possess proven achievement and experience in
directorship including effective oversight of and
guidance to management;

commitment of the candidate to devote sufficient
time for the proper discharge of the duties of a
Director;

potential/actual conflicts of interest that may arise if
the candidate is selected;

independence of the independent non-executive
director candidates as required under the Listing
Rules;

in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an
independent non-executive Director, the number of
years he/she has already served; and

identifying any persons who may be suitable and
qualified to become members of the Board and
select, or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, any persons nominated for
directorships.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects set
out in the Board diversity policy, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of services. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. A summary of the Company’s
board diversity policy is set out on pages 92 to 93 of this
annual report.

The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee
met two times for the purpose of, among other matters,
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board.
The Nomination Committee considered the diversity of the
Board is appropriate.

Corporate Governance

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set
out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Company has formulated a comprehensive corporate
governance manual containing various policies and
procedures governing the functioning of the Board
and its committees, appraisal and remuneration, risk
management, financial reporting, conflict of interest,
connected transactions, shareholders’ communication and
other aspects of corporate governance and management
of the Company.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS
AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and
Board committee meetings and general meeting of the
Company held during the Reporting Period is as follows:

EERZEERESRHFERLR

EESHRERBREHEANBHRNEARRES
EhEZZEEEREARREAGHLEN
T

Meetings attended/Meetings held
HESERY, SRETRE

Annual

general Nomination = Remuneration Audit
Name of Directors meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
BEEsnR RRBFKE EEg REZES FMZEES EREES
LU Yuguang 11 6/6 2/2 N/A i N/A AN
EIEN
ZHANG Haitao 1/1 6/6 N/A NEF 2/2 N/A NEF
SR8
WU Shaolun 11 6/6 N/A T F N/A N EF N/A T
R
ZHENG Tingting 1/1 6/6 N/A 36 N/A NE N/A i
ipeyed
CHEUNG Yat Ming 1/1 6/6 2/2 2/2 3/3
RIS
DING Baoshan 1/1 6/6 2/2 2/2 3/3
TEIWL
SAI Chun Yu 1/1 6/6 N/A 38 A N/A T A 3/3
RIRF
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 96 to 102 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit
services (mainly for review of the condensed consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2020 and tax compliance services) for the year
ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$2.0 million and approximately HK$0.7 million
respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has in place the sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and assets of the Group.
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.
From time to time and at least once a year, the Board
reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group in order to ensure
that they meet with the dynamic and ever changing
business environment as well as the requirements under
the Listing Rules. To enhance the objectiveness and
creditability of the review, an independent audit firm has
been engaged to conduct the appraisal of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit
Committee, with reference to and based on the internal
audit report issued by the independent audit firm,
conducted a review on the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions, adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting, internal control and financial reporting
functions, and training programmes and budget. The
Board has considered and discussed the internal audit
report issued by the independent audit firm, the work
conducted by the independent audit firm, the Audit
Committee’s view on the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and their effectiveness. The Board
and the Audit Committee are satisfied with the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control of the Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity
Policy”) on 23 May 2014. A summary of this Diversity
Policy, together with the measurable objectives set for
implementing this policy, and the progress made towards
achieving those objectives are disclosed as below.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the
corporate governance report, on the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives, and monitor the
implementation of the Diversity Policy.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
nine Directors. Three of them are independent non-
executive Directors, thereby promoting critical review and
control of the management process. The Board is also
characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in
terms of gender, age, experience, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Yiu Sing, the Company Secretary appointed by
the Board, is a full-time employee of the Company; and
in the opinion of the Board, possesses the necessary
qualifications and experience, and is capable of performing
the functions of a company secretary. During the
Reporting Period, Mr. Chan has taken not less than 15
hours of professional training. The Company will continue
to provide funds for Mr. Chan to take not less than 15
hours of appropriate professional training in each financial
year as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company also recognises
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
its corporate information, which enables shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company maintains a website at www.bestpacific.com
as a communication platform with shareholders and
investors, where information and updates on the Group’s
business developments and operations and other
information are available for public access.
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Enquiries and suggestions from shareholders or investors
to the Board are welcomed by mail to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at 38th Floor,
No. 9 Wing Hong Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong
Kong or via emalil to ir@bestpacific.com for the attention of
the Investor Relations Department. Inquiries are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.

Besides, shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the shareholders.
It is the Company’s general practice that the Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence, their duly appointed
delegates, who are members of the relevant committees,
will be available to answer questions at the general
meetings of the Company. In addition, the Company wiill
invite representatives of the auditor to attend its annual
general meeting to answer shareholders’ questions about
the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and the
independence of the auditor.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Director, for shareholders’ consideration and voting. The
Company’s shareholders may convene an extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM”) or put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings as follows:

(1) Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company may request the Board
to convene an EGM pursuant to Article 58 of the
Articles by sending a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The
purpose of requiring such general meeting must be
stated in the written requisition.
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2 If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director for election as a Director of
the Company at a general meeting, pursuant to
Article 85 of the Articles, the shareholder (other than
the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend
and vote at the general meeting shall send a written
notice, duly signed by the shareholder, of his/her
intention to propose such person for election and
also a notice signed by the person to be proposed
of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong, or the office of the
Company’s branch share registrar. The period for
lodgement of such notices shall commence on the
day after the despatch of the notice of such general
meeting and end no later than 7 days prior to the
date of such general meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must provide
their full name(s), contact details and identification, in the
originally signed written requisition, notice or statement
(as the case may be), in order to give effect thereto.
Information of shareholder(s) may be disclosed as required
by law. Shareholders may refer to the Articles for further
details of the rights of shareholders.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings
of the Company shall be voted by poll except where
the chairman decides to allow a resolution relating to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by
a show of hands pursuant to the Listing Rules and the
Articles. The poll results shall be posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company after each
shareholders’ meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there was no significant
change in the Articles of the Company.

The latest version of the Articles of the Company are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Deloitte

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Best Pacific International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 103 to 266,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment assessment of trade receivables
Key audit matter

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables to the Group’s consolidated financial position
and the involvement of subjective judgement and
management estimates in evaluating the expected credit
losses (“ECL”) of the Group’s trade receivables at the end
of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net trade
receivables amounting to approximately HK$793.5
million, which represented approximately 12.5% of total
assets of the Group and out of these trade receivables of
approximately HK$72.2 million were past due.

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group identifies
trade receivables that are credit-impaired under HKFRS
9 and assesses their ECL individually. The management
of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL of the
remaining trade receivables based on provision matrix
through grouping of various debtors that have similar
loss pattern, after considering internal credit ratings of
trade debtors and/or past due status of respective trade
receivables. The credit loss allowance amount is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The
assessment of credit risk of trade receivables involves high
degree of estimation uncertainty.

As disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s lifetime ECL on trade receivables
as at 31 December 2020 amounting to approximately
HK$12.7 million.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables (Continued)
How our audit address the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
trade receivables included:

° Understanding key controls on how the
management estimates the credit loss allowance
for trade receivables;

° Testing the accuracy of information used by the
management to develop the provision matrix,
including trade receivables ageing analysis as at 31
December 2020, on a sample basis, by comparing
individual items in the analysis with the relevant
sales invoices and monthly statement for sales;

° Challenging management’s basis and judgement
in determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables as at 31 December 2020, including their
identification of credit impaired trade receivables
which are assessed for ECL individually, the
reasonableness of management’s grouping of the
remaining trade debtors into different categories
in the provision matrix by internal credit ratings of
trade debtors and/or past due status of respective
trade receivables, and the basis of estimated loss
rates applied in each category in the provision
matrix; and

° Testing subsequent settlements of trade
receivables, on a sample basis, by inspecting
supporting documents in relation to cash receipt
from trade debtors subsequent to the end of the
current reporting period.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR B MBS S ERRAENE
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED £ (&)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Lee Wing Cheong, Wilfred.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COI\/IPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeRmkEtEmRaR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE—_ZT -_ZTF+ - A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
— ? —= ﬂi :g_ﬂﬂz
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BIsE FERT FET
Revenue WA 5 3,494,274 3,637,762
Cost of sales HERA (2,650,914) (2,764,953)
Gross profit EF 843,360 872,809
Other income EmUg A 7 43,806 32,138
Other gains and losses Hiblzs RIEE 8 (25,717) 11,794
Net remeasurement of credit loss B HRBREEEBERE
allowance for trade receivables BHAEFRE 38 (6,282) (2,344)
Selling and distribution expenses HE R R (156,484) (170,294)
Administrative expenses TR (253,866) (221,665)
Research and development costs & A (81,134) (97,783
Share of result of a joint venture DMEEETERE 1,983 2,806
Finance costs AMEKAK 9 (75,700) (90,815)
Profit before taxation B AT 12 289,966 336,646
Income tax expense PSR 13 (40,773) (37,567)
Profit for the year FEREF 249,193 299,079
Other comprehensive income (expense): Hit 2wk (BX) :
ltems that may be reclassified HigmlagesHn e
subsequently to profit or loss: BERIER -
Exchange differences arising on BEBINETSEEN
translation of foreign operations (BN =5 204,146 (73,573)
Share of translation reserve of DMEEETENBRE
a joint venture i 1,360 (390)
ltems that will not be reclassified to HigTaEin HEERN
profit or loss: I8H -
Fair value gain on investment in REGRARNATE
a partnership Wrzs - 1,981
Remeasurement of retirement benefit RVERE R R
obligations, net of tax FHE (H%HIE) (842) 137
Other comprehensive income (expense) FREMEEKE (%)
for the year 204,664 (71,845)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZENEEE 453,857 227,234
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to FREGER (B18)
- Owners of the Company i N/NET PPN 257,769 300,724
- Non-controlling interests — IR RE RS (8,576) (1,645)
249,193 299,079
Total comprehensive income (expense) FREGZERE
for the year attributable to (Bix%) %5
- Owners of the Company — ARFHEAA 462,717 228,814
- Non-controlling interests — IR RE RS (8,860) (1,580)
453,857 227,234
Earnings per share BREF 15
- Basic (HK cents) — 5 () 24.79 28.92
- Diluted (HK cents) — 858 (81 N/A RER 28.92
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

As at 31 December 2020 A —ZE -ZFF+-HF=+—H

2020 2019
e 322 —T-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
LiE=3 FHET T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BRE KRG 16 2,970,302 2,893,902
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 17 272,109 246,804
Interest in a joint venture REEDENER 18 34,751 31,408
Deposits s 21 25,668 87,881
Deferred tax assets BEEFIAE E 30 5,387 8,824
3,308,217 3,268,819
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 19 922,301 1,065,160
Trade and bills receivables B 5B IE & W E S 20 807,898 754,490
Other receivables, deposits and HibfEWFIE « RE& N
prepayments TEfTFRIE 21 98,521 86,777
Tax recoverables BBk 10,773 17,375
Pledged bank deposits EIIRIRITIER 22 77,944 76,823
Short term bank deposits K EBIRTTIF X 22 8,338 19,010
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 22 1,092,855 576,773
3,018,630 2,596,408
Current liabilities =R
Trade payables B SN RIR 23 243,050 246,337
Bills payables T EE 24 323,248 386,546
Other payables and accrued charges — Hith et 78 & =+ & 25 280,981 237,261
Contract liabilities aHaE 26 33,267 40,964
Bank borrowings RITEK 27 1,313,569 1,645,119
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 13,485 10,474
Tax payables FESFI IR 15,351 22,713
Derivative financial instrument PTEESRTE 29 1,402 -
2,224,353 2,589,414
Net current assets REBEEFE 794,277 6,994
Total assets less current liabilities AEERREE & 4,102,494 3,275,813
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BB R

As at 31 December 2020 A —ZE-ZF+ - A =+—H

2020 2019
= —TNEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FET FET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank and other borrowings RIT R HEMEFK 27 972,952 574,201
Lease liabilities HEBE 28 76,647 62,926
Derivative financial instrument PTESRMIE 29 - 1,403
Deferred income EIEUTA 16,340 3,860
Deferred tax liabilities FRIERRIBEBE 30 5,758 11,423
Retirement benefit obligations BIAERET 32 9,060 6,922
Other liabilities HiaE 3,556 -
1,084,313 660,735
Net assets BEFE 3,018,181 2,615,078
Capital and reserves BEAXRHE
Share capital &N 31 10,398 10,398
Reserves FE 2,923,905 2,521,497
Equity attributable to owners of EATHER ABILERE
the Company 2,934,303 2,531,895
Non-controlling interests FEIEPRRER 83,878 83,183
Total equity ERAEm 3,018,181 2,615,078
The consolidated financial statements on pages 103 to F103E 260G B BRREEETT
266 were approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March RZFEZ—F=A=+T—HHERENTRK
2021 and are signed on its behalf by: REZE
Lu Yuguang Zhang Haitao
EEH [235)—
Chairman Executive Director
FE HITEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

—= N/
/ N uu:un
I\\/ \

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E —FE=-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADREEAERL
I Reti PRC Share Non-
Share Share revaluation Other  benefit Special statutory Translation options  Retained controlling Total
Capital premium  reserve reserve  reserve reserve  reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
REEfH BIRER HEEE BRE FER
BRE  ROEE WE RtRE R REIRE E  REEE W REER @t EE  RRAE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FEr  FExn FEr  FiEn TEx  TEn T FExr  FEx  FEx  TEn Fx
(Note a) (Note b) (Note )
Mzt a) (Mt b)  (MiEc)
At 1 January 2019 R-Z-NF-F-H 10397 592,218 (15) 106,715 1,062 (13,070) 152,758 (148,465) 942 1,670,115 2,372,657 84,763 2,457,420
Profit (loss) for the year FEEF (BB) - - - - - - - - - 300,724 300,724 (1,645) 299,079
Exchange differences arisngon ~ HAE I EBE L
translation of foreign operations E HEE - - - - - - - (73573) - - (73579) - (73573)
Share of translation reserve of PERELFRHREE
ajoint venture - - - - - - - (390) - - (390) - (390)
Fair value gain on investmentin -~ AR BARINATE
a partnership ey - - 1,981 - - - - - - - 1,981 - 1,981
Remeasurement of retirement RNVEREANEN
benefit abligations, net of tax HE (SIHBHE) - - - - 72 - - - - - 72 65 137
Other comprehensive income FREMZERE
(expense) for the year (A%) - - 1,981 - 72 - - (73963 - - (71,910 65 (71,845)
Total comprehensive income Fh2EkE (A)
(expense) for the year Bt - - 1,981 - 72 = - (73,963) - 300,724 228814 (1,580) 227,234
Issue of new ordinary shares of ~ E{TAA M LB
the Gompany (Note 31) (£31) 1 1,082 - - - - - - (942) - 91 - 91
Disposal of investment in HEREAEAR
a partnership - - (1,966) - - - - - - 1,966 - - -
Transfer from retained profts to BERBENEZHEE
the PRC statutory reserve ThE - - - - - - 2963 - - (29,639 - - -
Dividends recognised as distribution #E#27 REIAR &
(Note 14) (Ksz14) - - - - - - - - - (69.667)  (69,667) - (69,667)
At 31 December 2019 R-B-hF+=A
=t-H 10,398 593,250 - 106,715 1,134 (13,070) 182,393 (222,428) - 1873503 2,531,895 83,183 2,615,078
Profit (loss) for the year FEGEF (BR) - - - - - - - - - 257,769 257,769 (8,576) 249,193
Exchange differences arisngon BB EBRE L
translation of foreign operations E REE - - - - - - - 204,146 - - 204,146 - 204,146
Share of translation reserve of AERELFRHRE
ajoint venture - - - - - - - 1,360 - - 1,360 - 1,360
Remeasurement of retirement RINVEREANER
benefit abligations, net of tax HE (BHBHE) - - - - (558) - - - - - (558) (284) (842
Other comprehensive (expense) FRERZE ()
income for the year e - - - - (558) - - 205,506 - - 204948 (284) 204,664
Total comprehensive (expense) FR2E (A%) ki
income for the year k] - - - - (558) - - 205,506 - 257,769 462,717 (8,860) 453,857
Capital injection from non-controling — A2 RIFEZRL
shareholder of a subsidiary BErE - - - - - - - - - - - 9,555 9,555
Transfer from retained profits to ERBENEZHEE
the PRC statutory reserve T - - - - - - 16,686 - - (16,686) - - -
Dividends recognised as distribution  #:34 REIRLE.
(Note 14) (FsE14) - - - - - - - - - (60,309)  (60,309) - (60,309)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-BE+ZA
=t+-8 10,398 593,250 - 106,715 576 (13,070) 199,079 (16,922) - 2,054,277 2,934,303 83,878 3,018,181
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Notes:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Z@/_\ng/\_/\%%@]%
R e ME m A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

Other reserve of the Group amounting to approximately
HK$106,715,000 represents the difference between the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company and
the carrying value of the non-controlling interests held by
Sunbrilliant Capital Investment Limited and Lakefront Capital
Investment Limited and the share capital of Best Pacific
Textile Holdings Limited (“BPT Holdings”) prior to the
completion of a group reorganisation on 16 January 2014.

Several subsidiaries of the Company provided financial
guarantees to its related companies and the fair value of the
financial guarantees was recognised as deemed distribution
to the shareholders at initial recognition. These financial
guarantees were released in previous years.

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) statutory reserve
is non-distributable until the end of the operation periods of
respective PRC subsidiaries. The transfer to this reserve is
determined according to the relevant law in the PRC and by
the board of directors of the PRC subsidiaries in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the subsidiaries. It can be
used to make up for previous year’s losses or convert into
additional capital of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company
upon approval from the relevant authority in the PRC.

BEE -

BEEFERERAR —E-2FFH

N5 [E 0 E At % 8 49106,715,0009% 7T © 35
AN BT 2 3 E{E B2 Sunbrilliant Capital
Investment Limited & Lakefront Capital
Investment Limited$ A& & JE1ER% 12 s BR (B
RBRGMHZERERAT ((BRER]) KT
KZTE—NF—A+ B EEHEFAR
R2ZZEF -

ARRETHEAR SEBE A RRERYSE
ER - BBEROQFER B RERRER
RRERRREDIK - ZEFBREREVBE
FEMER -

FEARKME ((HE]) ZERBEES
TEMNBARZERRSTAINIK © HZH
EHERHTRNBRRNESTSRIENE
NAENEBERMAIRTEBRERERE °
BB ARREILER  ZRERRERE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FalenEx

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

2020 2019
- St 22 “E-NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THL
Operating activities ReEEH
Profit before taxation B R0E A 289,966 336,646
Adjustments for: BTIBBELRE
Interest income MERA (8,238) (6,996)
Finance costs REMK 75,700 90,815
Share of result of a joint venture NMEEELERE (1,983) (2,806)
Depreciation of property, 0% BERRENE
plant and equipment 308,728 262,150
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELERE 23,288 18,909
Change in fair value of a derivative TESRTIEAN
financial instrument ATEEE (1 (1,792)
Gain on disposal of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment FElE (72) (42)
Net remeasurement of credit loss allowance BHRMGEEEBERE
for trade receivables B EFE 6,282 2,344
Amortisation of deferred income BIHETEBA (1,789) (1,262)
Allowance for slow-moving inventories T SR 24,288 -
Unrealised exchange loss (gain) arising on translation BESEERHIRER,
of current accounts within group entities EARNAERERER (kR) 26,051 (11,683)
Operating cash flows before movements HEELEAIN
in working capital KERENE 742,220 686,283
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERAD (&) 159,222 (214,785)
Increase in trade and bills receivables UGN ES S il (46,049) (30,902)
Increase in other receivables, HRYHIE - RER
deposits and prepayments FBRFIBE N (8,000) (18,555)
(Decrease) increase in trade payables BHRMAFIE ORD) 1 (9,177) 39,467
Decrease in bills payables EREERD (83,136) (2,430)
Increase in other payables and Hi R IR EHER
accrued charges by 49,784 13,533
Decrease in contract liabilities ANERERD (8,134) (15,367)
Increase in retirement benefit obligations RICRHEEEM 1,651 1,599
Cash generated from operations KeX¥BmERE 798,381 458,843
Income tax paid BRI (44,158) (61,093)
Net cash from operating activities BETBMERETE 754,223 407,750
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE
2020 2019
b Sl 33 —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bzt TER THL
Investing activities REED
Placement of pledged bank deposits BFHREERRITER (132,595) (172,940)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RREHEARITER 136,401 176,501
Interests received B IS 8,261 6,962
Payment for right-of-use assets SIREREEE (7,368) (60,812)
Addition of property, plant and equipment RENE  BERRE (239,225) (514,899)
Government grants received EMEGHEE 13,370 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEVE BER
plant and equipment RIEEHIE 4,570 28,583
Distribution from a partnership REAB DTN DR - 20,066
Placement of short term bank deposits with BFERERIE B BE={EA
original maturity over 3 months ZRHRITIER (141,164) (145,766)
Withdrawal of short term bank deposits RRRZHAEBA
with original maturity over 3 months ARz EHRITER 145,066 138,731
Repayment from a related company E @A RER - 3,937
Proceed from capital reduction of interest e & PEREREIRRAR
in a joint venture P55 - 6,945
Net cash used in investing activities REZBFTARSFE (212,684) (512,692)
Financing activities METE
Interests paid ERFIE (81,014) (99,616)
Dividends paid ERIRE (60,309) (69,667)
Proceeds from issue of new shares BT FEHR - 91
Capital injection from a non-controlling —RIKT B A B
shareholder of a subsidiary BRETE 9,555 -
New bank borrowings raised HERITER 534,223 1,829,548
New syndicated loan raised TEREEN 2,532,359 674,188
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder KE—Z IR RN ER 25,408 13,650
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHERE (14,903) (12,730)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (562,380) (1,206,170)
Repayment of syndicated loan ERIBEER (2,430,779) (919,052)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities MEEE (FTH) fisHe
k] (47,840) 210,242
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BeRBESEEYEMTEE 493,699 105,300
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FEINRLRELZEY
of the year 544,548 447,509
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes REFNNT 54,608 (8,261)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ﬂ%ﬁ‘ﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ% '
the year, represented by SRR K% 1,092,855 544,548
Bank balances and cash RITREBRAE 22 1,092,855 576,773
Bank overdrafts BITEX 27 - (32,225)
1,092,855 544,548
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRERMNE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ2—ZE—ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

110

GENERAL INFORMATION

Best Pacific International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a public company incorporated
as an exempted company and registered in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability under the
Companies Law Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands on
14 June 2013. Its immediate and ultimate holding
company is Grandview Capital Investment Limited,
which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI’) and is wholly owned by Mr. Lu Yuguang
(“Mr. Lu”), who is the Chairman and executive
director of the Company. The Company’s shares
have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 23 May 2014. The address
of the Company’s registered office and principal
place of business are disclosed in the corporate
information section to the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are manufacturing and
trading of elastic fabric, lace and elastic webbing.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries
are set out in Note 40.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”), which is the same as the
presentation currency of the consolidated financial
statements.

—REH
HBREBEEZERER AR ((F28])
R—ER-ZZE—=F XA THEARE
FEeSEMFE2FEQAE (—X
—FEZFERR - BEFEERER] &
MEeEHSTMANIRERREER AR
BWARAR - AHEEMRKEERAT]
Grandview Capital Investment Limited
RRNEBELHS ([REBELEE])
AMK Y AR RAERRATES
ERiEE (EEE] 2EBRANR
Al AREIRHEBZZ—WHFERHA
_TZHREBEHMERIMERA
a] ([H$3ZA]) MR ET o ARRIFEM
RN T EEEMB A I B TR
RERARIER—E o

ARmREMBAR ([AEE]) O
ERPARENEEBELEYEE
EMREEES - MBARNEIEE
B BEENHIFE40 -

ARRNINEEE RAET ([EBx])
MRFEVBEHRRNZINER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

2.1

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current
year

In the current year, the Group has applied
the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective
for the annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2020 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Benchmark Reform

The application of the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards and the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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ERH BBV ERE LD (ER]
) AHREHR A M IE R ¢

ERGHENEIRREE EANTE
SEHER|E8H (B7]K)

EEPBRESENESE EBNTE
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EAMBIRE RSN - FIREEYE
BAGHEAERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

21 Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current

year (Continued)

112

Impacts on application of
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
for the first time in the current year. The
amendments provide a new definition
of material that states “information
is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements,
which provide financial information
about a specific reporting entity.” The
amendments also clarify that materiality
depends on the nature or magnitude
of information, either individually or in
combination with other information, in
the context of the financial statements
taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in
the current year had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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HEER (BETH) (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

21 Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current
year (Continued)

21.2 Impacts on application of
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Definition of a Business

The Group has applied the
amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments clarify
that while businesses usually have
outputs, outputs are not required for
an integrated set of activities and
assets to qualify as a business. To be
considered a business, an acquired
set of activities and assets must
include, at a minimum, an input and
a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs.

The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market
participants are capable of replacing
any missing inputs or processes and
continuing to produce outputs. The
amendments also introduce additional
guidance that helps to determine
whether a substantive process has
been acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

21 Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current

year (Continued)

114

21.2 Impacts on application of

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Definition of a Business (Continued)

In addition, the amendments
introduce an optional concentration
test that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not
a business. Under the optional
concentration test, the acquired
set of activities and assets is not a
business if substantially all of the fair
value of the gross assets acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar assets.
The gross assets under assessment
exclude cash and cash equivalents,
deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred
tax liabilities. The election on whether
to apply the optional concentration
test is available on transaction-by-
transaction basis.

The amendments had no impact on
the consolidated financial statements
of the Group but may impact future
periods should the Group make any
acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the
following new and amendments to HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments'
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions*
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, — Phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-Current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)'

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after a date to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 June 2020.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2

116

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of these new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phase 2

The amendments relate to the modification
of financial assets, financial liabilities and
lease liabilities, specific hedge accounting
requirements and disclosure requirements
applying HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures to accompany the amendments
regarding modifications and hedge
accounting.

° Modification of financial assets,
financial liabilities and lease
liabilities.

A practical expedient is introduced for
modifications required by the reform
(modifications required as a direct
consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and made on an
economically equivalent basis). These
modifications are accounted for by
updating the effective interest rate.
All other modifications are accounted
for using the current HKFRSs
requirements. A similar practical
expedient is proposed for lessee
accounting applying HKFRS 16;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

22 New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -

Phase 2 (Continued)

o Hedge accounting requirements.
Under the amendments, hedge
accounting is not discontinued
solely because of the interest
rate benchmark reform. Hedging
relationships (and
documentation) are required to be
amended to reflect modifications to
the hedged item, hedging instrument
and hedged risk. Amended hedging
relationships should meet all qualifying
criteria to apply hedge accounting,
including effectiveness requirements;

and

o Disclosures. The amendments
require disclosures in order to allow
users to understand the nature and
extent of risks arising from the interest
rate benchmark reform to which the
Group is exposed to and how the
entity manages those risks as well as
the entity’s progress in transitioning
from interbank offered rates to
alternative benchmark rates, and how
the entity is managing this transition.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has
several London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) and Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR”) bank loans which will or
may be subject to interest rate benchmark
reform. The Group is closely monitoring
the changes in market circumstances
on interest rate benchmark reform and
will assess the relevant impact, upon the
application of these amendments, to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for
any loan term changes resulting from such

reform.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI o

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS 2. [
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL B
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in 2.2
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and
additional guidance on the assessment of
right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

° specify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current
should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting
period. Specifically, the amendments
clarify that:

(i) the classification should not
be affected by management
intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12
months; and

(ii) if the right is conditional
on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if
the conditions are met at the
end of the reporting period,
even if the lender does not test
compliance until a later date;
and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) (Continued)

clarify that if a liability has terms
that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement
by the transfer of the entity’'s own
equity instruments, these terms do
not affect its classification as current
or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately
as an equity instrument applying
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in
conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities
as at 31 December 2020, the application
of these amendments will not result in
reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.

2.2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI o

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

2.2

120

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property,
Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments specify that the costs of
any item that were produced while bringing
an item of property, plant and equipment
to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management (such as samples
produced when testing whether the relevant
property, plant and equipment is functioning
properly) and the proceeds from selling such
items should be recognised and measured
in the profit or loss in accordance with
applicable standards. The cost of the items
are measured in accordance with HKAS 2
Inventories.

The application of the amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

2.2

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements make
amendments to the following standards that
are relevant to the Group’s operation.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose
of assessing whether modification of terms
of original financial liability constitutes
substantial modification under the “10 per
cent” test, a borrower includes only fees
paid or received between the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received
by either the borrower or the lender on the
other’s behalf.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16 removes from the
example the illustration of reimbursement
relating to leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to remove any potential
confusion.

The application of these amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= AR

A = /\ﬁ 7_[77% $&i§ MTJ E\E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HBEMKBREREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SETBER
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 31 HEMBEBRNGHREE

financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered
material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decision made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the
time of approving the consolidated financial
statements, a reasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting
in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3. HREVBBRRGEREEREE
BETBUR ()

2Fop

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16,
and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value
in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-
financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A

A = /\ﬁ ﬂz% $&i§ MTJ E\E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMEVBBRFEREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SRR (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 31 HKEMBHRRNVEREE (&)

financial statements (Continued)

For financial instruments which are
transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement
date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level
1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable
inputs for the asset or liability.

124 BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020

RN FEETRZZ2E®MT
H A KRR BE1R HAFR # £ B A A
BRB ABBTEAFEMNG
BREME  HESEETU
TR - DAE I 9 20 B R B fh (B
TERNERER ZERMESE -

gEoh - MM BREmE - AF
BHERBEATEAEZH
ABEAEREERAFER
EZHASBHEERSE G
PEAEF—H F_HHE=
o BB -

F-RBABEBELERR
SFERATREMEREE
B ERRRTISZRE

(REHRE)
. F_RBABEBEENEE

A EE R R AR
RZBABE (£—RA
HERERRIN) ¢+ K

F-RBABEBEEENL
BENTHBERE AR
% -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or
not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins
when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A

A = /\ﬁ ﬂz% $&i§ MTJ E\E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. WMEVBBRRGEREERFTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SEBER (#)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEFBER (£)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with
the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities,
and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments
related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition
date (see the accounting policy
below);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI o

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HBEMKBREREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL L=

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

o assets (or disposal groups) that
are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that
standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and
measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16 Leases) as if
the acquired leases were new leases
at the acquisition date. Right-of-use
assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms
of the lease when compared with
market terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. HEMBEBREREEREER
SETBE (8)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the
sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR AT A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

130

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of
joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the joint venture other than profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted
in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’s share of losses of
joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in
that joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. &
=

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture or acquisition of additional interest
in a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in a
joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill
that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the investment subsequently increases.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HBEMKBREREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL %E—HE&% ()

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

132

Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2
Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or
purchase), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the joint venture that are not
related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good
or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct or a series of distinct goods
or services that are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer obtains control of
the distinct good or service.

The Group’s revenue from sales of goods is
recognised at a point in time when goods
are delivered and control has been passed
to customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEMBBRGEREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SETBER (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FESHEXK (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in
profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose
primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as
deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants related to income that
are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss (as other
income) in the period in which they become
receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset
arising from development activities (or
from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing
the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the
intangible asset and use or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible
asset;
o how the intangible asset will generate

probable future economic benefits;

J the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use
or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably
the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible asset is the sum of
the expenditure incurred from the date
when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can
be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEVBEBRRGHREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SETBER (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FESHEXK (&)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
properties in the course of construction
for production, supply or administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Properties in the course of construction
for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended
by management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for their intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended
use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets (other than the construction
in progress) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 87
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
building

When the Group makes payments for
ownership interests of properties which
includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values
at initial recognition. To the extent the allocation
of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “right-
of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties
are classified as property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. HREMBHRREREEREE
SETECR (#)

2Fop

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets
are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the

3.2 FEEBX (£8)
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there is indication that corporate assets
may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks FEEFTERR  ButtmE
specific to the asset for which the estimates AR EREMAHAREL A
of future cash flows have not been adjusted. o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEMBBRGEREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SETBER (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FESHEXK (&)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-
generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwiill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or
the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group
of cash-generating units) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application or arising
from business combinations, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception or modification date. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEVBHRREREERIE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BETBUR (4)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEFBER (£)

Leases (Continued) HE (&)

The Group as lessee KEEFEBAEA

Short-term leases FRHAME

The Group applies the short-term lease AEEBEHHERRRRE

recognition exemption to leases of buildings RARHEEAB R A HER12

that have a lease term of 12 months or less EAKERAETEESEERE

from the commencement date and do not EHNEFHE HHAEMNHE

contain a purchase option. Lease payments ENRREHRNEESEER

on short-term leases is recognised as R -

expense on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.

Right-of-use assets FRAEEE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FAEEERNKABE

. the amount of the initial measurement e HEBEWYVKIE=R
of the lease liability; g

. any lease payments made at or . RFE B Bk 2 RIEH &9
before the commencement date, less EAEERFRAER B UK
any lease incentives received:; MEER:

. any initial direct costs incurred by the . REBEANEMVGBE
Group; and 280 K

. an estimate of costs to be incurred . REEFR LB REEE
by the Group in dismantling and E - WERBEEMTS
removing the underlying assets, Mk HAERE EREEME
restoring the site on which it is E RGP 45 FE AR BB
located or restoring the underlying 1 EE A A RS ©

asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the
useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as
a separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 25

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are
accounted under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease,
the Group recognises and measures the
lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)
The lease payments include:
U fixed payments (including in-

substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable;

U variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable
by the Group under residual value
guarantees;

U the exercise price of a purchase

option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise the option; and

U payments of penalties for terminating
a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease
liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion
and lease payments.

ﬁé%ﬁ%%%%

—EFEt-_A=1T—HBLFE

3. HRMEVBHBKERGFHREERTE
TR (&)

3.2 IFEETEE (&)
HE (&)
AEEERAHEA (B)
HERE (&)
HENREHRE

. BENR (BRERELEE
Hw\) WAL E WA EE

/u\ ’

o BURREBRFIEm AR

MENZ - FARMAKA
HA B 48 Bk A R ) 2P &
=

s TEHBRBEFSKEEER
AAREXNOEHE

e BEEEEMNTEE (M
BT N BT REE
=) R

o XNRIEMEIIR (W
THE R R A SR BT 1L
HERpEEZR) -

K A% HES
BIRENMEENFET

%‘/
i

BABBIERAR AR/ —E_TFFHR 145



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRERMNE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEVBHRREREERIE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BETBUR (4)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEIHE (&)

Leases (Continued) HE (&)

The Group as lessee (Continued) KEEESFRBAA (E)

Lease liabilities (Continued) HEaE (&)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and REIRTIERE  NEBESE

makes a corresponding adjustment to the FEEHEAE (REE@AFER

related right-of-use assets) whenever: EEFLEERE) :

. the lease term has changed or there e THEARAEHNEITER
is a change in the assessment of BEEERENTHEEE
exercise of a purchase option, in g EULERT - HEEE
which case the related lease liability EaEREFIH AR
is remeasured by discounting the iBiE RIER] 2 HORE IR AL
revised lease payments using a BRI M ER KW
revised discount rate at the date of NREHETE ©
reassessment.

. the lease payments change due e MHENREAEE RA
to changes in market rental rates ARMBHEERETTS
following a market rent review in MewRiaHBEEs &
which cases the related lease liability IERT - HEHEEAE
is remeasured by discounting the B A YR REIR R AL
revised lease payments using the BRI EMEER RN N
initial discount rate. REFFE ©

Lease modifications MEBE]

The Group accounts for a lease modification WBUTER AEBEFHEHE

as a separate lease if: BEEREREBEEALR -

. the modification increases the scope J ZIBE] BB IN—IH %
of the lease by adding the right to use THAEAEENFREEKXR
one or more underlying assets; and THEHE &k

. the consideration for the . HEREEINNSEREE
leases increases by an amount R0 [E K ¥ R B (E
commensurate with the stand- o I ERBEESLIS
alone price for the increase in scope E BB EREITHER
and any appropriate adjustments HERHE -

to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular
contract.

146 BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease maodifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not
accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains
a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR AT A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z=—

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

148

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the
consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans (such as state-managed
retirement benefit schemes, the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme and the State
Social Insurance Fund) are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans,
the cost of providing benefits is determined
using the projected unit credit method,
with actuarial valuations being carried out
at the end of each annual reporting period.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the changes
to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the
return on plan assets (excluding interest),
is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge
or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurement recognised in
other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained profits and will not
be reclassified to profit or loss.

Past service cost is recognised in profit or
loss in the period of a plan amendment or
curtailment and a gain or loss on settlement
is recognised when settlement occurs.
When determining past service cost, or a
gain or loss on settlement, an entity shall
remeasure the net defined benefit liability
or asset using the current fair value of plan
assets and current actuarial assumptions,
reflecting the benefits offered under the plan
and the plan assets before and after the
plan amendment, curtailment or settlement,
without considering the effect of asset ceiling
(i.e. the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from
the plan or reductions in future contributions
to the plan).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR AT A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z=—

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

150

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benetfit costs (Continued)

Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period
to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
However, if the Group remeasures the net
defined benefit liability or asset before plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement,
the Group determines net interest for the
remainder of the annual reporting period
after the plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement using the benefits offered under
the plan and the plan assets after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement
and the discount rate used to remeasure
such net defined benefit liability or asset,
taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit liability or asset during the
period resulting from contributions or benefit
payments.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as
follows:

o service cost (including current service
cost, past service cost, as well as
gains and losses on curtaiiments and

settlements);
o net interest expense or income; and
. remeasurement.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents the actual deficit or
surplus in the Group’s defined benefit plans.
Any surplus resulting from this calculation is
limited to the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from
the plans or reductions in future contributions
to the plans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. HREVBBRRGEREEREE
BETBUR ()

2Fop

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continueq)
Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Discretionary contributions made by
employees or third parties reduce service
cost upon payment of these contributions to
the plan.

When the formal terms of the plans
specify that there will be contributions from
employees or third parties, the accounting
depends on whether the contributions are
linked to service, as follows:

° If the contributions are not linked to
services (for example contributions

TEEFHHE (&)

BERA (&)

BIKEFILA (48)
BEXRE=TFELHNEIBEHRX
ﬁg?%ﬂ?ﬂﬂ%%ﬂﬂ%ﬁd\ﬂﬁ%

fid 5t 8 &Y IE S\ R SR AT B B B =X
E=FEELHZK BlEE
BREBURNERE R LR A
B IR

. fiaf £14 5K £ Al 755 £ B (4] 4
R RS DR B 5t &

are required to reduce a deficit arising EEBENEREENE
from losses on plan assets or from at) - AR A ERF
actuarial losses), they are reflected in BEIEENENTEF
the remeasurement of the net defined ik o

benefit liability or asset.

o If contributions are linked to services,
they reduce service costs. For
the amount of contribution that is
dependent on the number of years
of service, the entity reduces service
cost by attributing the contributions to
periods of service using the attribution
method required by HKAS 19
paragraph 70 for the gross benefits.
For the amount of contribution that is
independent of the number of years

. i R R AR 75 B - A
TR A BRFEAL AR o BhELAR
BFEREBANERNE
ERUREEESTER
F195 FE70R IR E WY 5F
BERENEHREE
P ARFEEIR - #Em R A AR
TR o et 3 EE fR 7% 48
MRS - R EEE R IR A
8 B 755 H9 BRSO A AR TS B

of service, the entity reduces service A e
cost in the period in which the related
service is rendered.

Termination benefits BERIEF

A liability for a termination benefit is
recognised at the earlier of when the Group
entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the
termination benefit and when it recognises
any related restructuring costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR AT A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as
an expense unless another HKFRS requires
or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing
to employees (such as wages and salaries
and annual leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other
long-term employee benefits are measured
at the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows expected to be made by the
Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any
changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts
resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that another
HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in
the cost of an asset.

152 BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020

e 3
2 op

MBEBREREERTE
BUR

(&)

TESEE (&)
EBERF (&)
KT H R AL fh = B IE 8 75

% 4118 B8 I 8 B 1R 64 R TS
5 5478 2046 52 14 4 L ) R B R
IR - FiA 5 HE AR F
BR AR - RIEEBIBEE
&R B BB B L A 5 F

FFABEMK °

RTEENEN MIERFE
ARFR) MRERD XN EHE
rHARAEE-

mEMRHARERAERNE
ERAEEEFEBEREH
HighiE B AT IR IR B BT R
KR RERETE - AR
AR R B R EHETEMEH
MBEREENTAZESHE
BETHER RIER—EEB
B R E ERIERK AR E
FFABEMAK »



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain
outstanding after the related asset is ready
for its intended use or sale is included in
the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR AT A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z=—

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

154

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and
interest in joint venture, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. &
=

2Fop

MBEBREREERTE

B (#)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of the reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and
the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms
due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR AT A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. #&
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL =4
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilites and when they relate to income
taxes levied to the same taxable entity by
the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised
in profit or loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories

Inventories mainly consist of textile products
and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost of inventories
is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS
15”). Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”))
are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR AT A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. #&
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(‘FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective
is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the
date of initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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=N RS E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HBEMKBREREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEIBXK (&)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised
cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (‘ECL”) model
on financial assets (including trade and bills
receivables, other receivables and deposits,
pledged bank deposits, short term bank
deposits, bank balances) which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL
for trade receivables. Trade receivables that
are credit-impaired are assessed for ECL
individually. The ECL on the remaining trade
receivables are assessed collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w

(=)

e B SRR AT A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z=—

—EFEt_A=1T—HULHFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. #&#E
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL gt
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2

162

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets at amortised
cost, the Group measures the credit loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

U

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%ﬁéﬂﬁﬁi&% Pl &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. WMEVBEBRRGEREERFTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SEBER (#)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FE®FEE (&)
Financial instruments (Continued) eWMIA (&)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) & r@ﬂé?ﬁﬂﬁ (&)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (i) =B R ARIBIE I (&)

(Continued)

In particular, the following information FRIZ - B EER

is taken into account when assessing EERNBIEINEEER L/(

whether credit risk has increased TER :

significantly:

. an actual or expected significant . T AN
deterioration in the financial (nE) HAEEE
instrument’s external (if AR ERR TR
available) or internal credit BEZE
rating;

o significant deterioration in o SN IS (E B A
external market indicators of EEEERL H
credit risk, e.g. a significant MEEBEERER
increase in the credit spread, AREEENER
the credit default swap prices EERIRIE N

for the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI o

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HBEMKBREREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SETBER (&)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEIBEX (£8)
Financial instruments (Continued) E®MIE (&)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

EWMEERE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk = ERE ARG (&)
(Continued)
. existing or forecast adverse T BEREBA
changes in business, financial BITHBEBEED
or economic conditions that BE N RIE PRI E

are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected
significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
and

o an actual or expected
significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic,
or technological environment
of the debtor that results in
a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the
above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group
assumes that the credit risk on a
debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if
the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if (i) it has a
low risk of default, (i) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations. The Group
considers bank balances and cash
and other receivables to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of “investment
grade” as per globally understood
definitions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRERMNE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HBEMKBREREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SETBER (&)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEIBEX (£8)

Financial instruments (Continued) SRMITH (&)

Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TRMEERE ()

0] Significant increase in credit risk 0) ZER B A (4Z)
(Continued)
The Group regularly monitors the NEEFHERANER
effectiveness of the criteria used to EERBELEAZEMNG
identify whether there has been a ZENERM  WREE
significant increase in credit risk R B BT AT IR 3% IF
and revises them as appropriate to AERE SR 1E SRR 8 HA BT 4 B
ensure that the criteria are capable of ZERMERZEEIL -

identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past

due.
(i)  Definition of default iy BRHAZER

For internal credit risk management, AN EERREIEM
the Group considers an event of s AEERE - WA
default occurs when information A K 3k B S BF 2R R K& 1S
developed internally or obtained from ZERBREBATK
external sources indicates that the AlgEA HEEA (BIER
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, £E) 2HEER(TEE
including the Group, in full (without AKEBEFAE 2 E MK H
taking into account any collaterals fh) v BIBEEELEH -

held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group i I 1= K ] NS
considers that default has occurred BR25 WemidEBRH
when a financial asset is more than fB@EO0H - BIEEEE D
90 days past due unless the Group B2 BIERERBFASIE
has reasonable and supportable BIEER LSBT TR
information to demonstrate that a BAZEES ASE 0 BilfE
more lagging default criterion is more il

appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Credit impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit impaired
when one or more events of default
that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is
credit impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as
a default or past due event;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRERMNE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEVBHRREREERIE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SRR (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEIHE (&)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRITA (&)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) CREERME (&)
(iii) Credit impaired financial assets iy EEREeMEE (&)

(Continued)

(©)  the lender(s) of the borrower, () BHZELREERE
for economic or contractual FHERBER#ES
reasons relating to the B OB A KR
borrower’s financial difficulty, R4 TETE—
having granted to the borrower BEATERTT
a concession(s) that the ERZEEGN
lender(s) would not otherwise 5%
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable (d) &7 BFRIEEMES
that the borrower will enter ETHEMT B E
bankruptcy or other financial 73 o
reorganisation.

(v)  Write-off policy (v)  HEEICR
The Group writes off a financial asset MAEERBTEFTBA
when there is information indicating B B B 75 R # B A E RN
that the counterparty is in severe B AT gE - PlanE F 7 EE
financial difficulty and there is no ﬁ%ﬁ‘ZE?ﬁ)\ﬁﬁEﬁ?ﬁ :
realistic prospect of recovery, for B FHEBFIBEME -
example, when the counterparty has A B R 16 HA R IR R 4R

been placed under liquidation or has (ABFHEZEFE) - A

entered into bankruptcy proceedings, rEESHEHSRERE °

or in the case of trade receivables, EERZZER (WA

when the amounts are over two E)%& EHEeREE
years past due, whichever occurs DA RBEASEE 2 B2
sooner. Financial assets written off FrE R BIT - MIHHE

may still be subject to enforcement PREUBTERSE M o« A

activities under the Group’s recovery BB R EENER o

procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a
function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude
of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade
receivables are considered on
a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information
and relevant credit information such
as forward looking macroeconomic
information. For collective
assessment, the Group takes
into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the

grouping:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR AT A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. WMEVBBRRGEREERFTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SEBER (#)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEFBER (£)

Financial instruments (Continued) SRMITH (&)

Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) CRIEERE (&)

()  Measurement and recognition of ECL (v) T‘E,HWD, TSR E R
(Continued) R(E)
. Past-due status; . B HAAR R,
. Nature, size and industry of . BFEANMEE ]

debtors; and BRITE R
o External credit ratings where o HNEB S B R AR (1
available. AJERR) o

The grouping is regularly reviewed ERETHAm oM R
by management to ensure the RSB D A
constituents of each group HREEUEERBRISE -
continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.
Interest income is calculated based FEWATIREBECRMEE
on the gross carrying amount of the ZIRERREAE RIS
financial asset unless the financial MEEEAEERE T
asset is credit impaired, in which case PEIBR T - A B ABIR
interest income is calculated based BEmEE C#IHK A
on amortised cost of the financial o
asset.
The Group recognises an impairment NEERBALFAE SR
gain or loss in profit or loss for all TACZEREEBEREZTE
financial instruments by adjusting RzEeR T A ZRER
their carrying amount, with the moEE - B H RN
exception of trade receivables where BB REREEERERE
the corresponding adjustment is RIEEFAE -

recognised through a credit loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a liability and on equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method or at FVTPL.

3. HEMBEBREREEREER
SETBE (8)

3.2 FEEHBE (£8)
€RITA (&)
THEE (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR AT A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z=—

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

—EFEt_A=1T—HULHFE

3. #eE

i B

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is (i) contingent
consideration that may be paid by an

acquirer as part of a business
to which HKFRS 3 applies,

combination
(i) held for

trading, or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the

purpose of repurchasing it in the near

term;

on initial recognition it is a part of

a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated

and effective as a hedging instrument.

For financial liabilities that are designated

as at FVTPL, the amount

of change

in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the

credit risk of that liability is

recognised

in other comprehensive income, unless

the recognition of the effects

of changes

in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value attributable
to a financial liability’s credit risk that are
recognised in other comprehensive income
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss; instead, they are transferred to retained
profits upon derecognition of the financial

liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEMBEBRRGHREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL gﬁﬁ%Z@

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEHHE (&)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities, including trade payables,
bills payables, other payables and accrued
charges and bank and other borrowings, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair values at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR AT A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

174

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to directors and
employees

For grants of share options that are
conditional upon satisfying specified vesting
conditions, the fair value of services received
is determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the date of grant
without taking into consideration all non-
market vesting conditions and is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimates, with
a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

When share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

When share options are cancelled, the
amount that would otherwise have been
recognised for services received over the
remainder of the vesting period is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

3.

mE

MBEBREREERTE

SETER (#)
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in Note 3, the
management of the Group is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The followings are the key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that has a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z=—

176

ERE R

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

The management of the Group identifies trade
receivables that are credit-impaired and assesses
their ECL individually. The management of the
Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL of the
remaining trade receivables based on provision
matrix through grouping of various debtors that
have similar loss pattern, after considering internal
credit ratings of trade debtors and/or past due
status of respective trade receivables. The credit
loss allowance amount is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows. The
assessment of credit risk of trade receivables
involves high degree of estimation uncertainty. WWhen
the actual future cash flows are less than expected
or more than expected, a material impairment loss
or a material reversal of impairment loss may arise
accordingly in future periods.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. Due to greater financial uncertainty
triggered by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group
has increased the expected loss rates in the
current year as there is higher risk that a prolonged
pandemic could led to increased credit default
rates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in Notes 20
and 38.

The carrying amount of trade receivables is
HK$793,497,000 (2019: HK$720,048,000) as at 31
December 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Allowance for inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventory
ageing analysis at the end of the reporting period
and identifies the slow-moving or obsolete
inventory items that are no longer suitable for use
in production or sales. Management estimates
the net realisable value for such inventories based
primarily on the latest invoice prices, estimated
costs of completion and current market conditions.
In addition, the Group carries out regular inventory
review with reference to inventory ageing analysis,
management experience and judgement on the
expected future saleability of goods and provides
necessary allowance if the net realisable value is
estimated to be below the cost.

There is no further allowance nor any reversal
of allowance for slow-moving inventories of
HK$24,288,000 (2019: nil) charged to profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2020. The
carrying amount of inventories is HK$922,301,000
(2019: HK$1,065,160,000) as at 31 December
2020.

Useful life of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the relevant assets, after taking into account their
estimated residual values, if any. The Group reviews
the estimated useful lives of the assets annually
in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expenses to be recorded during the year. The useful
lives are based on the Group’s historical experience
with similar assets taking into account anticipated
technological changes.

The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group determined that
there is no change to the estimated useful lives of
the property, plant and equipment. The carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment is
HK$2,970,302,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$2,893,902,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

REVENUE

The Group’s revenue is derived from manufacturing
and trading of elastic fabric, lace and elastic
webbing in the PRC, Hong Kong, the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam (“Vietnam”) and the
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka (“Sri
Lanka”) , net of discounts and sales related taxes.

(i)

178

Disaggregation of revenue from
contracts with customers

Revenue from manufacturing and trading of
elastic fabric, lace and elastic webbing are
recognised at a point in time.

For the year ended 31 December 2020

5. WA

AEEBPAKXERTE - FE - B
HEEEANE (THRE]) MTERFR
REterm#AME ((HEHF]) =
ENBEEBEEEYEMY  EAREN

S A
s

(i)

MR ERBERIE -

REFEFENZBAASD

KEHELEEEEZDE
B BB BRAR
R EHER o

BE-_Z2_ZF5+=-RA=+-—
BIEFEE

Manufacturing Manufacturing
and trading of and trading of
elastic fabric elastic
and lace webbing Total
BUEREE
EMAYEs HEREE
RE# BHAT st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Types of goods BmiEn TET TR TET
Sales of products ERHEE
Elastic Fabric B R
- Lingerie — AR 964,910 - 964,910
- Sportswear and apparel  — EE)IRE K ARE 1,696,016 - 1,696,016
2,660,926 - 2,660,926
Lace B 84,323 - 84,323
Elastic webbing B AR - 749,025 749,025
2,745,249 749,025 3,494,274
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

REVENUE (Continued) 5. WA &)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from (i) REEFEHZWAHMD (&)
contracts with customers (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEZ-_Z—NFt+=ZA=1+-—
HIEFE
Manufacturing ~ Manufacturing
and trading of  and trading of
elastic fabric elastic
and lace webbing Total
HEREE
B YIE R HNEREER
RE#H B BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Types of goods EmER FET FET FET
Sales of products EmHE
Elastic Fabric B AR E R
- Lingerie — ZERK 1,393,996 — 1,393,996
- Sportswear and apparel  — BEIIRSE R 1,247,079 — 1,247,079
2,641,075 — 2,641,075
Lace B 86,522 — 86,522
Elastic webbing et — 910,165 910,165
2,727,597 910,165 3,637,762
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRERMNE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

5.

REVENUE (Continued)

(i)

180

Performance obligations for contracts
with customers

The Group manufactures and trades the
elastic fabric, lace and elastic webbing to the
wholesale market.

For manufacturing and trading of elastic
fabric, lace and elastic webbing, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has
been transferred, being the point in time
when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific location (delivery).

Following the delivery, the customer has
full discretion over further processing, the
manner of distribution and sales price of the
goods and has the primary responsibility
when selling the goods and bears the risks
of obsolescence and loss in relation to the
goods. The normal credit term is 30 to 90
days from the date of issuance of a monthly
statement for sale delivered in that month.

The Group applies the practical expedient
of HKFRS 15 which allows the Group not to
disclose the information of the transaction
price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contract with customers,
as the original expected duration of the
performance obligation arising from the
manufacturing and trading of elastic fabric,
lace and elastic webbing are all within one
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The financial information reported to executive
directors of the Company, being the chief operating
decision makers (“CODM”), for the purpose of
assessment of segment performance and resources
allocation focuses on types of goods delivered.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as
follows:

o Manufacturing and trading of elastic fabric
and lace

This segment derives its revenue from
manufacturing and trading of elastic fabric
and lace made from synthetic fibres that are
commonly used in high-end knitted lingerie,
sportswear and apparel products.

o Manufacturing and trading of elastic webbing

This segment derives its revenue from
manufacturing and trading of elastic
webbing made from synthetic fibres that are
commonly used as shoulder straps, lingerie
trims and waistbands.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI o

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. OHER (&)
Segment revenue and results DEWAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue T AAREEZRKE R HEDEBE
and results by operating and reportable segments: DEMAREE DT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z-_FF+-A=1+—HLEFE
Manufacturing

and trading of Manufacturing
elastic fabric  and trading of

and lace elastic webbing Total
BEREE
BHEEY HEREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FERx FET
Segment revenue from REINREFH)
external customers D EWA 2,745,249 749,025 3,494,274
Segment profits DE A 257,878 144,798 402,676
Unallocated other income AOBEMBA 13,576
Unallocated other gains RO E MU K E1E
and losses (25,642)
Unallocated corporate expenses  RAB ¥R (26,927)
Share of result of a joint venture  D{EA L NEEE 1,983
Finance costs BERAK (75,700)
Profit before taxation TNl 289,966

182 BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. TEHER (&)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEHBARERE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-hE+-A=+—HLEE

Manufacturing
and trading of Manufacturing
elastic fabric and trading of
and lace  elastic webbing Total
i) SEREE
RN E 4 B fEt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FAT FHAT FHET
Segment revenue from REIINAEFH)
external customers DEBA 2,727,597 910,165 3,637,762
Segment profits 7 b Kl 229,489 182,803 412,292
Unallocated other income KOBLEAMUA 14,453
Unallocated other gains RAAOEMMERER
and losses 17,142
Unallocated corporate expenses AN B2 (19,232)
Share of result of a joint venture  DIES L EEE 2,806
Finance costs BB AR (90,815)
Profit before taxation R AV A 336,646

The accounting policies of the operating and
reportable segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies. Segment profit represents
the results of each segment without allocation
of corporate items including mainly bank interest
income, change in fair value of a derivative financial
instrument, net foreign exchange (loss) gain,
corporate expenses, share of result of a joint venture
and finance costs. Corporate expenses include
directors’ remuneration paid or payable by the Group
and certain administrative expenses for corporate
function. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

RERAIREDBOSTHREANE
BestBEMAR - 2 EPENEE D
XA EREARDERFEER  H
ITEBRRRTAMBWA - TESRT
AP EZE  JME (BER) WaF
B XX DhHEERERRER
MEAK - EERAXBRAEECH
HENEEME MAEEERERNE
TITHRMAX - M EBEEREE
[E ¥R AL BR S HARIRMFTEITNA »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI o

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. oHER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets T AAREEZRKE R HEDEBE
and liabilities by operating and reportable segment: ITHEERBEDN :

As at 31 December 2020 R=-ZF-BF+=-HA=+—H
Manufacturing
and trading of Manufacturing

elastic fabric  and trading of

184

and lace elastic webbing Total
BEREE
ety SEREE
ER R E#% feled -t oy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FTERT FET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DESBE 4,372,162 678,550 5,050,712
Property, plant and equipment ME - R RERE 2,127
Right-of-use assets FREEE 13,982
Interest in a joint venture REeehErERE 34,751
Deferred tax assets ERBIEEE 5,387
Other receivables, deposits and ~ E fth FEULFRIE
prepayments Ee RIBAFIE 29,978
Tax recoverables AU EIFHIE 10,773
Pledged bank deposits BRI TER 77,944
Short term bank deposits KEIRITER 8,338
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 1,092,855
Total assets EEHBE 6,326,847
LIABILITIES =L
Segment liabilities k= )=K 756,218 203,552 959,770
Other payables and accrued HAhETHIE R
charges fEETER 25,713
Bank and other borrowings RITREAER 2,286,521
Lease liabilities HEAE 14,151
Tax payables JEFTIE 15,351
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIARE 5,758
Derivative financial instrument THEERTA 1,402
Total liabilities BEBE 3,308,666
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DHEHR (#)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019

THEERES (&)

R-Z2-h&+=-A=+—AH

Manufacturing
and trading of
elastic fabric

Manufacturing
and trading of

and lace  elastic webbing Total
EREE
s L) HEREE
ER R E % B HEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 4,348,295 718,831 5,067,126
Property, plant and equipment M -~ BE &R 318
Interest in a joint venture REatERER 31,408
Deferred tax assets EEFRBEEE 8,824
Other receivables, deposits and ~ Hfth g it 508
prepayments Ze RIBRNFIA 67,570
Tax recoverables AR EIRIR 17,375
Pledged bank deposits BIEMIRITER 76,823
Short term bank deposits K ERIRITIF R 19,010
Bank balances and cash RITHB LIRS 576,773
Total assets EEBE 5,865,227
LIABILITIES =L
Segment liabilities EEE 802,530 182,435 984,965
Other payables and accrued HAhfERFIE R
charges [E:tER 10,325
Bank and other borrowings RATREM R 2,219,320
Tax payables JEFBIE 22,713
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEEE 11,423
Derivative financial instrument PTESRTA 1,403
Total liabilities BiERsE 3,250,149

BRBERIERERAR / —E-_SFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR AT A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. OEEHR (£&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PTEEERERE (&)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances RERSHRENDBRALERS
and allocating resources between segments: fid -
. all assets are allocated to operating and . FMEEEHDREZLE KAIR

reportable segments, other than certain
property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets for corporate use, interest
in a joint venture, deferred tax assets, tax
recoverables, pledged bank deposits, short
term bank deposits and bank balances and
cash and certain corporate assets.

° all liabilities are allocated to operating and °
reportable segments, other than bank
and other borrowings, lease liabilities for
corporate use, tax payables, deferred tax
liabilities, derivative financial instrument and
certain corporate liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. oHWER (&)

Other segment information Hihp HER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-ZE-ZSH%+-A=+—HILEE
Manufacturing

and trading of ~ Manufacturing
elastic fabric and trading of

andlace elastic webbing  Unallocated Total
HEREE
EEY HEREE
ARREH BENET RO Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FiExT TiEn T
Amounts included in the measure of HEN R
segment profit or segment assets: BERTARNEE -
Additions of property, plant and RENE  BERXE
equipment 253,320 34,697 2,876 290,893
Additions of right-of-use assets AERMREE 10,240 18,300 15,131 43,671
Depreciation of property, % BERXETE
plant and equipment 243,484 64,943 301 308,728
Depreciation of right-of-Use assets FRELERE 15,125 5,842 2,321 23,288
Net remeasurement of credit loss ESRNFIREERE
allowance for trade receivables REETETE 4,114 2,168 - 6,282
Allowance for slow-moving inventories B ERE 22,284 2,004 - 24,288
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR AT A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

DEER (#)
Hipp BMER (&)

BE_ZF-NF+-A=1+—-HLEFE

Manufacturing
and trading of Manufacturing
elastic fabric and trading of
andlace  elastic webbing Unallocated Total
BEREE
By HEREE
R REH BUAS Aol it
HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000
TAT TAT TEL TAT
Amounts included in the measure of STENBENEA T
segment profit or segment assets: BERTANGE:
Additions of property, plant and RENE  BERXE
equipment 432,684 89,631 101 522,416
Additions of right-of-use assets AELRELE 68,093 2,192 - 70,285
Depreciation of property, nE  BERRENE
plant and equipment 205,496 56,164 490 262,150
Depreciation of right-of-Use assets FREEENE 12,574 6,335 - 18,909
Net remeastrement of credit loss B IRNERERR
allowance for trade receivables BEENTETE (23) 2,367 - 2,344
Allowance for slow-moving inventories RETERE - - - -

Other than the segment information disclosed
above, there was no other information reviewed by

the CODM for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. TEER (&)
Geographical information ith & &

AEBEERBURTEAM - T -
Mo HERRREE - REERA I
REFPORATIRIEER P A= Sl
7 BT

The Group’s operations are located in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Vietnam, Sri Lanka and the
United States of America. The Group’s revenue
from external customers based on the location of
the customers are detailed below:

Year ended 31 December

BEE+t-A=1+—HLEE

2020 2019

—ECEF —ET-NEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Hong Kong BB 774,633 1,138,472
Mainland China R A 754,424 750,122
Sri Lanka HEE-R 542,144 652,090
Vietham B 332,264 205,313
Taiwan =y 246,466 56,001
South Korea maEE 177,954 124,767
Europe and the United States of America BN & FEF| B4 REX 90,768 111,190
Thailand EE 90,343 99,778
Indonesia ENfe 84,267 118,079
Others Efb 401,011 381,950
3,494,274 3,637,762

REEMGEHRIESMIERBEE
(TEEsRMEEMEEHRBEE) &
(=N

Non-current assets (excluding financial assets and
deferred tax assets) by geographical location of
assets are detailed below:

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Mainland China /B (A3 1,759,666 1,769,704
Vietnam B 925,058 925,959
Sri Lanka HEBER 592,042 544,460
Hong Kong B 23,088 19,872
3,299,854 3,259,995
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI o

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. NEER (&)
Information about major customers EBRFEEFHNER
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of NEE - E-_ZTFEF—"ZFT—-—HEFE+=
the total revenue of the Group for the years ended A=+—BIFE BERMAEEEK
31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: AB10%HEFUWALT -

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=1T—HLHFE

2020 2019
i —TNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT
Revenue from manufacturing and REREREEE S
trading of elastic fabric and lace RN RIS ON
— customer A — BFEH 396,363 450,106
- customer B = 400,151 439,136
Revenue from manufacturing and KERENEEEE
trading of elastic webbing EEESHU A
— customer A —EPH 79,779 79,887
- customer B —-RBFZ 25,560 63,192
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

%ﬁ/\ﬁmﬂqﬁ&i\iw

—EFEt-_A=1T—HBLFE

OTHER INCOME Halg A
2020 2019
— 7 —% ﬂE :g_ﬂﬁz
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Government grants (Note) B e (M) 13,036 6,052
Compensation income from customers RKEREFPHEEWA 11,584 1,260
Bank interest income RITHLEMA 8,238 6,996
Net proceeds from sales of scrap materials ~ #6 BEKI PT1S F0IB H 48 5,547 10,435
Others Hip 5,401 7,395
43,806 32,138

Note: FffsE -

The amount includes HK$11,247,000 (2019: HK$4,790,000)
unconditional government grants received during the year
ended 31 December 2020. Included in such unconditional
government grants received during the year ended 31
December 2020, HK$2,289,000 is in respect of COVID-
19-related subsidies, of which HK$2,078,000 relates to the
Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong
SAR government. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group also received government grants of
HK$13,370,000 in relation to purchase of equipment.

Government grants in relation to purchase of equipment
received in current and prior years of similar nature are
deferred and are released to other income over the useful
lives of the related equipment. Amounts of HK$1,789,000
(2019: HK$1,262,000) were recognised in profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2020. As at 31 December
2020, amounts of HK$16,340,000 (2019: HK$3,860,000)
remained to be released and are included in deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

FRcERREE T -_F+ =R =
T+ —HLEFEMNERERHTRNTHED 2
11,247,000/ 7t (= & — J1 % : 4,790,000
BIL) REHE_T-_TFE+_A=+—
BEFEMNEREKGERTED S 2EHE
COVID-1948 8 19 1 B) ©2,289,000/%8 7T+ E
72,078,000/ 7T B2 7 7 45 Bl 17 BUR BUR &9
RMEFEEE - NEBEE-_Z_FF+_A
=+—HIEFE AEETEE R ERER
B4 8)413,370,0007T °

RAFERBAFERENEBLEREZ
EFBUEENBTEBSHEBERTE  1&E
BREO R FHE R A - &
if7f7¢+ B=+—BLEE B

RIBR RS 51,789,000 T (ZE—H
i 1,262,000 L) c RZE-ZTF+ A
=+—H 16,340,000/ 7T (= F— h4F :
3,860,000/8 7T ) 108 FEERR - WHRERE B 1%
ARRR S ARIEUA o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI o

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HiWhmRER
2020 2019
—ECEH —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FETT
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEX 72 42
plant and equipment B e
Change in fair value of a derivative MmESRIARNTEZS
financial instrument (Note 29) (MF5E29) 1 1,792
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain SN (JE51E) Wa F 58 (26,327) 13,803
Others Hith 537 (3,843)
(25,717) 11,794
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MMERK
2020 2019
—EEH —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interests on: T3 EBBHFE
Bank borrowings RITIER 74,313 96,914
Other borrowing HABIER 759 884
Lease liabilities HEAE 5,131 1,701
80,203 99,499
Less: amounts capitalised in the cost of B ABEREENRAZ
qualifying assets ER b eRE (4,503) (8,684)
75,700 90,815

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year
ended 31 December 2020 arose on the general
borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a
capitalisation rate of 2.2% (2019: 4.1%) per annum
to expenditure on qualifying assets.

HE_ T -_TF+_A=+—HItF
€ kE—REFEEHERER
RATIHEEREENT HIRER
FR22% (ZZF — NLF:41%) &t

St

E_o
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 10. EERFETHAEME
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
The remuneration paid or payable to the directors ENSKENEARGEEREEZTHA
and chief executive of the Company was as follows: SHMemT -
Executive Directors Independent non-executive Directors
UhEs BUknTES
Mr.Zhang ~ MrWu Ms.Zheng Mr.Cheung  Mr.Ding  Mr Sai
Mr. Lu Haitao ~ Shaolun  Tingting YatMing Baoshan  ChunYu Total
ErE REEEE ROBRE BEEZ: R-BAE TELEE fREFLE @t
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000
TEr TEr  TEr TRt  TEr  TEr TEr TEx
For the year ended H2-%-%F
31 December 2020 tZR=t-HLEE
Fee e - - - - 300 200 200 700
Selaries and allowances ge ks 2,949 3,561 2,550 1,008 - - - 10963
Discretionary performance bonus® - BYIER 3B 4T 5,000 - 3,000 3500 - - - 11500
Contrloutions to refrement RINEREEIER
bengfts schemes 50 23 50 18 - - - 141
7,999 3,584 5,600 5,421 300 200 200 23,304
For the year ended H2E-AF
31 December 2019 tZR=t-HLEE
Fee s - - - - 300 200 200 700
Salaries and alowances EoRES 312 3872 2,701 1924 - - - 11619
Contributons to refiement RINERE B,
bengfts schemes 70 18 70 18 - - - 176
3192 3890 2,11 1,942 300 200 200 12,4%

Executive directors of the Company are entitled
to discretionary performance bonus which are
determined by the remuneration committee of the
Company with reference to market conditions and
financial performance of the Group.

" ARRIMTEFTARBIMBIBRIRIE
A BDARARAFMEEeKSE
MGG RAEENPERAEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR AT A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

10.

194

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(Continued)

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors’
remuneration shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
the directors or chief executive of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors or chief executive of the Company has
waived any remuneration during both years.

10. EERFEITHAENE (&)

ERFATATEEMETESRRS
BRAARRRRAREEHEENRE -

ERFATBYIFNTESTHEERY
KMRERERRRAEZFRHAIR -

REBEE_ZE-_TFR_ZT—NLF+=
A=Z+—HIEFE AEEHERRN
NAEFNEBITHA B A E BN
© + YEAIBIE hn B8 sk 7 hn B8 A 4 [
B SIEABEBHEE KR EFE
HiE BMEARARZEEREZITHA
BWREEMBE -
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

%ﬁéﬁﬁ%i&%%%‘f

—EFEt-_A=1T—HBLFE

EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION 11. Eé%ﬁ@ﬂ
During the years ended 31 December 2020 REBEE-_FT_TFR_FT-—NF+=
and 2019, the five individuals with the highest A=+— EI JtEJ; AEEBRE RS
remuneration in the Group include four (2019: four) FMALTEEARRNOE (22— jL
directors of the Company. The remuneration of the F:UB)EF-BT—H
remaining one (2019: one) individual, which was NEF - —8) ATEFHBE )DU'J 7 ?t
individually within the range of HK$3,000,001 to 3,000,001 7L E3,500,000/8 7T
HK$3,500,000 per annum (2019: HK$1,500,001 to —ZE—NF : 41,500,000 TE
HK$2,000,000 per annum), was as follows: 2,000,000/ 7T) * 5w -
2020 2019
—ETEF —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHT FHT
Salaries and allowances e NMoEBL 1,882 1,903
Discretionary performance bonus’ BB RIREAT 1,250 -
Contributions to retirement RIRREAIFT IR
benefits scheme 18 18
3,150 1,921

# The discretionary performance bonus is determined
by the board of directors of the Company with
reference to market conditions and financial
performance of the Group.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individual as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

# BERRIEATIAARAEEGLE
MIHRR R AEESERINETE °

RBE-_Z_TER_FT-NF+=
A=Z1t—BLFE AEEHSERR
ZRBHFMA LT AERFM - (ES
TR HN B8R s hn B K 5% [ B ) B2 B 3k
TR BER(E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI o

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

12. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 12. BRFEADER
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Profit before taxation has been arrived at BRFATREFIE K (BT A)
after charging (crediting): T5I|&I8 :
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEM BN 2 2,437 2,350
Staff costs BITA
Directors’ remuneration EEME 23,304 12,495
Other staff costs H B TR
— salaries and other benefits - e MEMER 605,392 618,722
— contributions to retirement — RIEFFHEIE KR
benefits schemes 32,347 44 861
661,043 676,078
Depreciation of property, Y - BB MERETE
plant and equipment 308,728 262,150
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 23,288 18,909
Depreciation capitalised in inventories REENERNITE (269,337) (219,903)
62,679 61,156
Cost of inventories recognised R BRI IFEKAR
as an expense (Note) (BsE) 2,650,914 2,764,953
Note: The amount includes allowance for slow-moving i ZeBEREE ST _EF+=
inventories of HK$24,288,000 (2019: nil) for the year A=Z+—HUEFERBEETERB
ended 31 December 2020. 24,288,000 7T (2019 : 4&) o
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13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FBBIMAX
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Current tax: BNEATIE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEABFEM 6,814 5,417
The PRC Enterprise Income RS
Tax (“EIT”) ([ERBHR]) 24,551 35,686
Withholding tax on dividends from EBARIREZ
subsidiaries TEHH 8,147 4,016
Income tax in other jurisdiction H b R AR FTEH 60 -
Under (over) provision in prior years: i@ FEEETE
(ERERHE) -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEABNEH 3,021 49
The PRC EIT PR 533 (9,633)
43,126 35,535
Deferred taxation (Note 30) EERE (F7E30) (2,353) 2,032
40,773 37,567

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
passed by the Hong Kong Legislative Council in
March 2018, the first HK$2 million of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.
The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to
be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. The two-tiered
profits tax rates regime is applicable to the year of
assessment commencing on or after 1 April 2018.

BEEFERERAR —E-2FFH

BREEBLZEN T \F=AR
BONEHAEH  SERKEERE
FYE2 8 & 78 70 M #51%28.25% F i K
B mBEBE2A BB TR M iz
16.5%M R BB - T A ZMEH
PR AR I B AR B SR L B B8 2 s N A B
1216.5% 2 8| — B EREH - M EHM
AFEERRE T - N\FOA—QH
2 BB ARG FE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z=—

13.

198

ERE R

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax for the
qualifying group entity had been calculated at
8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits above HK$2 million.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC companies
is 25% for both years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019, unless there is any applicable preferential
tax treatment.

The Company’s subsidiaries, Dongguan Best Pacific
Textile Company Limited (“Dongguan BPT”) and
Dongguan New Horizon Elastic Fabric Company
Limited (“Dongguan NHE”), had obtained the
qualification as high and new technology enterprises
since 2010 and 2016, respectively, which were
renewed for an additional three years from the year
ended 31 December 2019. Hence, Dongguan
BPT and Dongguan NHE had been subject to the
preferential tax treatment and the applicable tax rate
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
was 15%.

Withholding tax on dividends was calculated at 5%
of the estimated dividend to be received from the
subsidiaries in the PRC during the year.

13.
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13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant Vietnam Enterprises Income
Tax rules and regulations, the applicable tax rate
for the subsidiary operating in Vietnam is 20%. The
subsidiary in Vietnam is eligible for tax holiday for two
financial years since the first financial year of taxable
profit and tax concession at a tax rate of 10% for the
following four financial years. With the new incentive
in place during the year ended 31 December 2018
and by fuffiling certain stated requirements as set
by the Ministry of Industry and Trade, the subsidiary
in Vietnam had been eligible for tax holiday for four
financial years since 2018, tax concession at a tax
rate of 5% for the following nine financial years and
tax concession at a tax rate of 10% for the next
following two financial years.

Pursuant to the Inland Revenue Act, No. 24 of
2017 in Sri Lanka, the applicable tax rate for the
subsidiaries operating in Sri Lanka is 28%. By
fulfiling certain export requirements as set by the
Board of Investment of Sri Lanka, the subsidiaries of
the Group in Sri Lanka had enjoyed a preferential tax
rate of 14% for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019. In addition, one of these subsidiaries is
currently eligible for tax holiday till the year ending 31
December 2024.

Taxation arising in any other jurisdiction is calculated
at the rate prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

13.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI o

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z=—

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

—EFEt_A=1T—HULHFE

13. FrEHBX (£)

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled RNEEFREHREXYTEHESEBEN
to the profit before taxation per the consolidated #b 2 T UK 25 3% B9 55 B B it R T BR ﬁ
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive Hgn
income as follows:
Hong Kong The PRC Others Total
B ) gt
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
CECEE CE-NF CECEE T-NF CECERE O RNF O CECEE BN
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
T#En Tin TéEn Tin Thn Tin THT Thn
Profit (loss) before taxation BREER
(B8) 66,855 (26,698) 168,308 299,837 54,803 63,507 289,966 336,646
Taxation at the domestic HERmEHE
income tax rate STERTE 11,031 (4,406) 42,077 74,959 13,013 13,231 66,121 83,785
Taxeffect of expensesnot R AHIRER
deductiolefor tax pupose. B2 2,409 1,350 3,145 8,742 2,168 7022 2 1211
Tax effect of income not BERTMAL
taxable for tax purpose fitye (1,734) (1,19) - - (60) - (1,794) (1,19)
Tax effect of share of resul NERENEEE
of a joint venture niikz 2 (321) (463) - - - - (327) (463)
Taefiect of estimated tax ~ AEERMEHTHE
losses not recognised il 3,873 4,883 - - 5,140 4,450 9,013 9,33
Tax effect on deferred tax HBARRDR
liabiltes resulting from BB
withholding tax on undistiouted ~ $HERRERE
profits of subsidiaries niike2 - - (5,640) 4,009 465 507 (5,175) 453
Withholding tax on didends ~ FHEATREZ
from subsiciaries B - - 8,147 4016 - - 8,147 4016
Under(over)provision BEEERENR
i prior years (BERE) 3,021 19 533 (9639 - - 8554 (958
Efect of tax concession HEEnTE (165) (165 (24959 (3111 (21364 Q1701 (46488  (B4977)
Income tax expense (credi)  REEFER
for the year Hx (H4) 18,108 5 3303 33982 (63%8) 3531 40773 37567
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14.

15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

DIVIDENDS 14. RE
2020 2019
—BoBF  —BAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of AR5 IEHI A 7
the Company recognised as TR R 2 BB,
distribution during the year:
2019 Final dividend — HK5.8 cents ZE-NFRPKRE —
(2019: 2018 Final dividend BRR5.88I (ZE—NF -
HK6.7 cents) per share —E - \FRERE K
6.7,81l) 60,309 69,667

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020 of HK7.4 cents per ordinary share
(approximately HK$76.9 million in aggregate) has
been proposed by the directors of the Company
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in
the forthcoming general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings
per share attributable to owners of the Company is
based on the following data:

15.

RBEHABERE ARARESEEE
BEBEE_T-_TF+-_A=1+—HIE
FE2RAKRE BEREBRT.48
(EHL7698EET)  HEARERE
BEAE SR ERLLE

BRAEF

ARAGEEANREEBREANRETR
R TR E A T 8RR E -

2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NF
Earnings 27
Earnings for the purposes of basic and gt EREARREE RS H
diluted earnings per share (profit for B (RQa%E AEG
the year attributable to owners of FEHEM) (FET)
the Company) (HK$’000) 257,769 300,724

Number of shares RoEAE
Weighted average number of ordinary g ERERZEFM S
shares for the purpose of basic hnEF

earnings per share
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:

EER

1,039,808,000 1,039,784,712

BREEBRROEETE

Share options issued by the Company 7N R 2 21 TRE AR #E N/A REA 12,746
Weighted average number of ordinary — ShEIEEE R MM S &

shares for the purpose of diluted A hNE 9 B

earnings per share N/A FEH  1,039,797,458

No diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2020 was presented as there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BEEFERERAR —E-2FFH

I E A B R
WERZFEZINEREERF -

HREE T -_TF+_A=+—H
VB LB W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI o

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. M% - BERRHE

Computer
and office Motor Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles  Machinery in progress Total
ERR
BF BAERE Jat:d Hes REIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT TAL TAT FAT FAT
COST 7%
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NF
—A—H 856,595 69,009 70,598 2,224,524 520,477 3,741,203
Exchange adjustments B % (18914) (1,186) (1369  (37,517) (6253  (65,239)
Additions NE 3,967 39,365 4,619 400,316 74,149 522,416
Transfer upon completion TR R 280,726 - - - (280,726) -
Disposals HE - (1,135) (1,634) (53,991) - (56,760)
At 31 December 2019 R-E-hE
+ZA=1—H 1,122,374 106,053 72,214 2,533,332 307,647 4,141,620
Exchange adjustments E3aECE 47,843 3,541 3,865 113,131 9,925 178,305
Additions NE 14,064 13,121 2,051 160,665 100,992 290,893
Transfer upon completion SEAK IR 51,564 882 - 267,215 (319,661) -
Disposals HE - (1,053) (305) (4,671) - (6,029)
At 31 December 2020 RZT-TF
+-A=+-H 1,235,845 122,544 77,825 3,069,672 98,903 4,604,789
ACCUMULATED FiHE
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF
—H—H 151,839 29,512 36,377 821,381 - 1,038,109
Exchange adjustments I 5 5% (3,776) (658) (691) (19,197) - (24,322)
Provided for the year EEHE 43,643 12,945 6379 199,183 - 262,150
Eliminated on disposals R Y - (1,051) (1,301) (25,867) - (28,219)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NEF
+-A=+-H 191,706 40,748 39,764 975,500 - 1,247,718
Exchange adjustments [ i A 12,902 2,207 2,284 62,179 - 79,572
Provided for the year EEEE 53,358 17,918 5,048 232,404 - 308,728
Eliminated on disposals HERYH - (1,023) (199) (309) - (1,531)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-FF
+-A=+-H 257,966 59,850 46,897 1,269,774 - 1,634,487
CARRYING AMOUNTS BEE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF
+-A=1+—H 930,668 65,305 32,450 1,557,832 307,647 2,893,902
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEF
+-R=1—H 977,879 62,694 30,928 1,799,898 98,903 2,970,302
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16.

17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND 16. V¥ - MEKRE (&)
EQUIPMENT (Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, Lt BEAKXREER (BFET
except for construction in progress, are depreciated BBRIN DREKNABBERAER
on its cost less their residual values on a straight- ERA TR AT ERITE -
line basis at the following useful life or rates per
annum:
Buildings Over the shorter of the term BF THERk20 2 25%F
of the lease or 20 to 25 years (ABRE & A%E)
Computer and office  20%-50% P54 20%-50%
equipment FNE
Motor vehicles 10%-20% b 10%-20%
Machinery 6%-20% Kz 6%-20%
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. EAEEE
Leasehold Leased
land properties Total
HE i HEWE et
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FER FERT FERT
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZFTF+_-_A=1+—H
Carrying amount BRTEIE 185,598 86,511 272,109
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—NF+-A=+—H
Carrying amount BRmE 174,748 72,056 246,804
For the year ended HE-_ZT-_THF+-A
31 December 2020 =+—HIEFE
Depreciation charge WEEZH 6,093 17,195 23,288
For the year ended HE_Z—N&F+=A
31 December 2019 =t+—HIFE
Depreciation charge WEER 4,835 14,074 18,909

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

2020 2019

—F-FF —

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Expense relating to short-term leases ~ B242 HAFR E B BRI X 8,929 12,247
Total cash outflow for leases MERS R B 36,331 87,490
Additions to right-of-use assets NEFRAEEE 43,671 70,285

BRBERIERERAR / —E-_SFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRERMNE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

17.

204

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

For both years, the Group leased various offices
premises, staff quarters, warehouses and leasehold
land for its operations. The lease terms of leasehold
land used for factories ranged from 40 to 99 years.
A lease for a piece of land used for warehouse was
negotiated for a term of 40 years. The lease terms
of factory premises were negotiated for terms of
3 years. Lease for office premises, warehouse
and staff quarters were entered into for fixed term
of 2 to 5 years. Lease terms were negotiated on
an individual basis and contained a wide range
of different terms and condition. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period
for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition to the leases mentioned above, the
Group also entered into similar portfolio of short-
term leases for staff quarter, warehouse, office
premises, motor vehicles and machinery and
equipment for both years.

17.

EHEEE (&)

RZMmEFE  AEBAHLEHE
ZHEBRAEYE BEIBE BEEK
HELH - EREAEZHEELTE
FEHN T40290%F - —1EREH
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

%ﬁéﬁﬂ%i&%ﬁﬁ‘f

—EFEt-_A=1T—HBLFE

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. REELENER
Details of the Group’s interest in a joint venture are REEREGERENERFFOT
as follows:
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT F&T
Cost of interest in a joint venture NE &SRR 2 AR
Unlisted JEET 15,434 15,434
Share of post-acquisition profits and 3 U B 18 % 7 K H
other comprehensive income ZHEWE 19,317 15,974
34,751 31,408

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
pursuant to a written resolution of the shareholders’
meeting, the shareholders of the joint venture

REEC

X

%-H?%
i

—NWFFTZA=+—HL
$ETFHx$K@—IE$EJh%
LREBRRFBHBERA S D

agreed to a capital reduction of HK$13,598,000 in %E’\JH§$13 598,000/ 7T ° AL+ A<
the joint venture. As a result, the Group’s interest in EEREEENER 26,935,000
the joint venture reduced by HK$6,935,000. BIT o
Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the RBERBERE  XEEGERE
reporting period are as follows: ZHEBAT
Proportion of
Place of Principal ownership
Form of incorporation/ place of class of Proportion of interest Voting rights Principal
Name of entity entity registration ~ operation  shares held  held by the Group (Note) held by the Group (Note) activity
HEL/ FEROEN AREEEZEGHA  AREREIRE
ERER ERRY  EMeE  TEERMY  FERUH (Hfa) (Rt IEEH
2020 2019 2020 2019
e K S K3
Charming Elastic Fabric  Limited Liabilty HongKong ~ Hong Kong ~ Ordinary 51% 51% 60% 60%  Trading of elastic
Company Limited Company &3 5 Lk webbing and
(‘Charming Elastic’) A4 investment
FEBRTAM holding
ERAT EEEMARR
([BEES]) RERR

BABBIERAER AR/ ZEZF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRERMNE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)

Note:

206

On 4 November 2015, the Group acquired 40% equity
interest in Charming Elastic from an independent third
party at a cash consideration of HK$10,000,000.
Charming Elastic also owns 100% equity interest
in Jiangxi Charming Elastic Mfg. Co. Ltd, which is
engaged in manufacturing of elastic webbing in the
PRC.

Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement entered into
among a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
the other shareholder of Charming Elastic who by
then held 60% equity interest in Charming Elastic and
Charming Elastic on the same date (the “Charming
Elastic Shareholders’ Agreement”), the shareholder
who holds more than 50% equity interest in Charming
Elastic (the “Majority Shareholder”) and the Group
were entitled to appoint or remove three and two
directors out of the five directors at the board of
directors of Charming Elastic respectively.

The shareholders of Charming Elastic (the Majority
Shareholder and the Group) had also contractually
agreed sharing control over Charming Elastic, as
certain decisions about the relevant activities, including
but not limited to business, financial and operational
matters of Charming Elastic, require unanimous
consents from at least two directors appointed by the
Majority Shareholder and one director appointed by
the Group. Accordingly, the Group has joint control
over Charming Elastic and the investment in equity
interest in Charming Elastic is accounted for as an
interest in a joint venture.

The Charming Elastic Shareholders’ Agreement also
involves terms that granted rights to the Group to
purchase additional equity interest in Charming Elastic
and rights to the other shareholder of Charming Elastic
to exercise to sell equity interest of Charming Elastic
to the Group, accordingly, the Group recognised
derivative financial assets and liabilities since the date
of acquisition of Charming Elastic at the consolidated
statement of financial position (details as set out in
Note 29).

18. REELENER (&)

GEE
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%ﬁéﬁﬁ%i&% Pl o

—EFEt-_A=1T—HBLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of Charming
Elastic, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount

in the consolidated financial statements, are

disclosed below:

18. REELENER (&)

FEEREZVBENBE (Esg
ARRCERNERMEAE) BRa
MBHREANZREELSREENT

2020 2019
—E-TF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
As at 31 December W+=BA=+—H
Current assets MENVEE 39,554 32,101
Non-current assets JEmBNEE 17,132 19,178
Current liabilities MENEE (7,734) (8,882)
Equity 1 (48,952) (42,397)
For the year ended 31 December HZE+-A=1+—HLEE
Revenue WA 49,639 62,535
Profit for the year FE A 3,889 5,502
Other comprehensive income Hiph 2wt 2,666 (764)
Total comprehensive income EHE TR 6,555 4,738
Reconciliation of the above summarised _t it 81 7% & £HE B B GR A
financial information to the carrying BIE AR P EROAEER
amount of the Group’s interest in the A& EMNER 2 REE
joint venture recognised in the HERET -
consolidated financial statements:
Net assets of Charming Elastic PEREBRTCEESE 48,952 42,397
Group’s effective interest REEZEEREELR 51% 51%
Group’s share of Charming Elastic’s REB L FABEERIREZ
net assets BEFE 24,965 21,622
Goodwill FEES 9,786 9,786
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEBPEBBRGIRS S 2
interest in Charming Elastic BRTE 34,751 31,408

BREERERERA

A/ —E_TFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI o

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

19. INVENTORIES 19. FE
2020 2019
—ECTH —T-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET T
Raw materials BEAE 317,102 365,183
Work in progress & 344,730 410,437
Finished goods BURK i 260,469 289,540
922,301 1,065,160
20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 20. BESEWFENEKRERE
2020 2019
—E-FF ZTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade receivables B 5 MEWGOR 806,166 746,950
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (12,669) (26,902)
Total trade receivables B SR GIR AR 793,497 720,048
Bills receivables R E 14,401 34,442
Total trade and bills receivables B 5 MERF0E K
JEW R AERR 807,898 754,490
As at 1 January 2019, trade receivables RZE—-NLF—H—H RKBEFE
from contracts with customers amounted to HHE 5 e FIE /£728,911,00078
HK$728,911,000. JT °©
Trade receivables from third parties mainly represent EWE=FFE BT ELM T EE
receivables from customers in relation to the sales MEEE  ESNEESRTEEN
of elastic fabric, lace and elastic webbing. The EWEERE BYFEPHNEEEA
credit period granted to the customers ranges BERAEBFHEHEAMMALERLA
from 30 to 90 days from the date of issuance of a HR#EET30E90H °

monthly statement with respect to sales delivered in
the particular month.
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 20.

(Continued)

The following ageing analysis of trade receivables,
net of credit loss allowance, is presented based
on the date of issuance of monthly statements at
the end of each reporting period and the ageing
analysis of bills receivables is presented based on
the date of issuance of the bills at the end of each
reporting period.

BEZRWREAREBRRE (4)

BT AR 0 B R E 5
BRI EREREEAGER LA
512 5] B BR B AT R & SR BAE R
B e M I R T B R 2 51 M R 5
7 o

2020 2019
—E-FF ZTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T T

Trade receivables B 2 EWIE
0 - 90 days 0-90 H 740,517 644,579
91 — 180 days 91-180 H 42,756 49,948
Over 180 days @180 H 10,224 25,521
793,497 720,048

Bills receivables EWEE

0 - 90 days 0-90 H 14,401 34,442
807,898 754,490

Trade receivables balances with related parties
included in the Group’s trade receivables balance
are listed below:

FEARKEE 5 8 W R AR
57 E B RWGRIRRESRE I

2020 2019
—ESEF ZTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT T
Related parties )y
A related company* —E AR 28,599 18,745
Other related companies* H bR AR 84,529 43,113
113,128 61,858
* A related company controlled by close family * AR B E F AR IR B 16

members of directors of the Company (these
directors are key management personnel of the
Company).

# The related companies are fellow subsidiaries of the
non-controlling shareholders who have significant
influence over certain subsidiaries of the Group.

BHAR (REEEALARFTNIE
BEIEAE) -

# ZEWB AR REAEEETHER
AAAEAFE 2 FERBRRORZR
(=N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR AT A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

20.

210

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The above trade receivables balances with related
parties are unsecured, interest-free and with a
credit term of 30 to 90 days from the date of
issuance of a monthly statement for sales delivered
in that month. The following is an ageing analysis
of trade receivables balances with related parties
presented based on the date of issuance of
monthly statements at the end of each reporting
period.

20.

BEZRWREAREBRRE (4)

A - ERRARE )T 8 5 R WGRIR G 82 5
EEW 2L EEHAELAHE
A E A &E R B HEFB0R £90
B - AT REBEET N E S EWIR
RENSREHEERFIRAZESR
B2 PIRRREC DA -

2020 2019

—EF-FF ZTNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FA&T

0 - 90 days 0—90H 105,273 61,858
91 - 180 days 91 —180H 7,806 -
Over 180 days HBiB180H 49 -
113,128 61,858

All bills received are held by the Group for future
settlement of trade receivables and are with a
maturity period of less than one year. The Group
continues to recognise their full carrying amounts at
the end of the reporting period.

AEBERRKRGEHE 5 R WA
BB REENEHBERE DN
—F ARERBEHRHERTRHE
ERE 2 RREE -
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The Group’s trade receivables that are denominated
in currencies which are not the functional currencies
of the relevant group entities are set out below:

%ﬁéﬁﬂ%i&%%%‘f

—EFEt-_A=1T—HBLFE

BEZRWREAREBRRE (4)

NI EE BRI ERNERET
BENAREEE 5 RYEFIRFRSINT

As at 31 December 2020 WZZE_ZEF+_-A=+—H
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—HNE+-_A=+—8

United

States Vietham

Dollar Dong
(“USD”) (“VND”) HK$

E A=)
(TExl) (#EED BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
443,425 203 -
278,269 4,434 330

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$72,163,000
(2019: HK$96,540,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
HK$18,042,000 (2019: HK$25,011,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered
as in default as these balances are either from
debtors with long term business relationship or are
individually insignificant. Other than bills receivable
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$14,401,000
(2019: HK$34,442,000), the Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade
receivables are set out in Note 38.

WRZE-_FEF+-_A=+—H ' &
CSEEFERNFBELEGBIERT A
ﬁMJ%pm%nﬂ_;——ﬂﬁ
96,540,000/ 7T) MR R ZE XK
BERREEHC B &L %
o 1804200@%75L_ —NEF:
25,011,000/ 7o) &) 3K I8 E 8 HI90
Hsk B i#Bo0H B AW BRIEEY - A
ZEEBRREAERREKBENE
BAREBESBITEKN BRE®@
421814,401,0008 T (ZF — L F :
34,442,000 ) HE WEEN - K
EEBMERZSEBRIFTHETMEIRY -

BB ZRKFIBERENENFITH
E/\\M—JLEESB"
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI o

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

21. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 21. HibEWHE - RE R FETFH
AND PREPAYMENTS b |
2020 2019
—E-FF TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FAT
Deposit paid EfERE 8,087 6,219
Deposit paid for acquisition of property WIS ~ BE KRR R
plant and equipment EfZe 20,935 84,842
Prepayments BRI RIE 21,197 22,992
Interest receivables JE R B, 43 66
Other tax recoverables H b ] B FE IR 35,472 39,834
Other receivables Hih R I8 38,455 20,705
124,189 174,658
Analysed as: DA
Current assets MENEE 98,521 86,777
Non-current assets EREEE 25,668 87,881
124,189 174,658
Non-current deposits stated on the consolidated REVBRARERAMENERDIZSE
statement of financial position include certain RETHSEREREEBEYE  BE X
rental deposits and deposits paid for acquisition of REHENESE -

property, plant and equipment.

Details of impairment assessment of other BREAAEMEWHKIE RIZe 2 RERE
receivables and deposits are set out in Note 38. HIEFIBE A I FES8 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 21, HMEWRIE RERASTR

AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued) IE (%)

Other receivables balance with related parties AR B H fib fE I SR IA /Y B2 B S

included in the Group’s other receivables are listed B E b E R IB A BRI T

below:

Amounts due from related companies FE IR B B A B FRIE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHT

Related parties )bl

A related company* el 2) /N 846 896

Other related company* H AR AR 2,681 3,484

3,527 4,380

* A related company controlled by close family * AR B EFR I BRI BIEHIM
members of directors of the Company (these A AT (ZEFEFAARAINEE
directors are key management personnel of the AﬂAE%ﬁéﬁ%#%%ﬁg
Company). The amount is non trade nature, ﬁﬂﬁﬁ % B NAERERER
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. HE-_Z-ZF+-A=+— EIJJ:¢
The maximum outstanding amount such other E- HEBABARNEMERFIEZ
receivables with the related company during the year K R U Bl € %8 41,913,000 7T
ended 31 December 2020 is HK$1,913,000 (2019: ZZE—NF : 1,490,000 L) °
HK$1,490,000).

# The related company is a fellow subsidiary of the # ﬁ@%@j%ﬁ$%l BN
non-controlling shareholders who have significant Eﬁﬁiﬁ T E Z?F?‘WJ&HQ?E’\]H%W
influence over subsidiary of the Group. The amount BRF - ZeHEEFBEHNE  AE
in non trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and ﬁﬁ ﬁE&M&EI1E REZE
repayable on demand. The maximum outstanding ZEZEF+ A=+ —RHLEFE
amount such other receivables with the related Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ“ﬂjﬂ’lﬁ‘rﬁlﬂgqﬁl WA= UNL
company during the year ended 31 December 2020 Uk [B] & % 53,484,000 70 (=&
is HK$3,484,000 (2019: HK$3,484,000). — L& : 3,484,000/ 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

22,

214

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT 22. EEFBITER BHBETHE
TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK MERBITERRAS
BALANCES AND CASH
As at 31 December 2020, pledged bank deposits RZE-_EF+_A=+—H0 BEE
represent deposits pledged to banks to secure the BRI RO FIRITIEALREE
bills payables issued by the Group, carried at fixed BHNENEBRERNGFER  BEF
interest rate ranged from 0.30% to 1.65% (2019: &N F0.30%E1.65% (ZF — 1
1.30% to 1.65%) per annum. F:1.30%E1.65%) °
As at 31 December 2020, short term bank RZZZTFF+-_A=+—H  2HR
deposits comprise bank deposits of fixed interest TERBEREIHEA=BAZ+=
rates ranging from 1.30% to 2.03% (2019: 1.30% & A &) & 7€ & M =91 F1.30%22.03%
to 6.50%) per annum with an original maturity —ET—NF  1.30%%6.50%) KIIRT1T
between three months and twelve months. TR e
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the RITEBR IR BEAEERFANRE
Group and bank deposits carry at variable interest MIFGERIHAR &= 1E A s A T 8% B3R
rates with an original maturity of three months or TFER RZEZZEF+HA=+—
less. As at 31 December 2020, the variable interest B FEFEFMENF0.001%E1.73%
rates ranged from 0.001% to 1.73% (2019: 0.001% “E—NF : 0.001%FE2.78%) °
to 2.78%) per annum.
The Group’s pledged bank deposits, short term SR TR EENE KT
deposits and bank balances and cash that are BENASEDHEFRITER - G
denominated in currencies which are not the RERBITHEBR LI 2FHIAT
functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:
Euro Renminbi
HK$ uUsD (“EUR”) (“RMB”) VND
BT AR
BT 2x  ((&x)) (AR MR E
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
FET FET FET FHT FHET
As at 31 December 2020 HR-B=-ZTHF
+=A=+—H 121 119,067 93 3,496 853
As at 31 December 2019~ R-ZT—HF
+-A=+—H 181,343 100,614 7 481 2,333

Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank
deposits, short term bank deposits and bank
balances are set out in Note 38.

BB BMRITER - AHRITER
K ARTT M8 2 B T (A BV RE BRI
738 e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

%ﬁéﬁﬂ%i&%%%‘f

—EFEt-_A=1T—HBLFE

TRADE PAYABLES 23. EZENFIE
The credit period granted by the Group’s creditors REBEEEAG THE /\,HH)I ?Z’JBO
ranges from approximately 30 to 90 days. The Z0H - LT RESEMNRKIBRE®
following is an ageing analysis of trade payables EHERRIREEH Hﬂfﬁ'JE’]ﬁEﬁ’%%
presented based on the invoice date at the end of -
each reporting period:
2020 2019
—_ 7 — E'E :%—j‘l_]f‘f
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
0 - 90 days 0-90 H 229,551 230,488
Over 90 days B0 B 13,499 15,849
243,050 246,337
As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s RZZTZEF+—A=1+—H" itALE
trade payables balance is an amount due to a joint B E SN FIB 4 #21719,299,000/8 7T
venture of HK$19,299,000 (2019: HK$13,480,000). (ZZ—N4% : 13,480,000/87T) JoFESS
Such balance due to a joint venture is unsecured, BEPHEFRIE ZFRNEGEDEEH
interest-free and with a credit term of 30 days from REKEEREE FEHREHAESE
the date of issuance of a monthly statement for RD® A& E R L B HAEET30H » IR
purchases delivered in that month. These balances HHRGERE - Z5 &% 8 RERT90H
are aged within 90 days at the end of the reporting A e
period.
The Group’s trade payables that are denominated IEESEEERNEEENEKET
in currencies which are not the functional currencies ENAEEE SENKEBEEHINET :
of the relevant group entities are set out below:
usbD EUR VND HK$
EY B HEE BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THx FHxT FET
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-BF
+-A=+-H 14,063 - 17,895 7
As at 31 December 2019 AZE—NEF
+=ZA=+—-H 18,902 198 25,310 -

BRBERIERERAR / —E-_SFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

24. BILLS PAYABLES 24, BNERE
The bills payables are secured by pledged bank FET AR T DA sE22FR S MO B I IR
deposits as set out in Note 22. The following is an THEZIEER UTRENEERS
ageing analysis of bills payables presented based REMERFIZEZRZFHABRZY 8
on the date of issuance of the bills at the end of FREC AT -
each reporting period:
2020 2019
—ECRE —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAT
0 - 90 days 0-90H 222,684 266,328
91 - 180 days 91 - 180H 100,564 120,218
323,248 386,546
The Group’s bills payables that are denominated in AIEMBER T2 EEN et
currencies which are not functional currencies of BEONNEFEEMNEZESEYWT -
the relevant group entities are set out below:
UsD EUR
EP T
HK$’000 HK$’000
THETT THETT
As at 31 December 2020 R-Z-2F
+=HA=+—H 26,335 8,918
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+-A=+—H 51,809 7,090
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED
CHARGES

25. HttENRIEREEA

2020 2019

—EF-FF ZFNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FET

Accrued staff costs JEASH B T 5 97,364 68,011

Other accruals Hth et & A 36,173 38,908
Payables on acquisition of B - BE &

property, plant and equipment BRI ER IR 38,676 54,886

Other payables H M FE IR 108,768 75,456

Total st 280,981 237,261

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s
other payables balance is an aggregate amount
due to related companies of HK$6,350,000 (2019:
HK$6,136,000).

These related companies are fellow subsidiaries
of the non-controlling shareholders who have
significant influence over certain subsidiaries of
the Group. Such balances due to these related
companies are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

R-ZE-_TE+-_A=+—0" A
7N 2 B H Ath B 5 FUR A5 #2 #96,350,000
B (ZZ — 1% 16,136,000 7T)
ThFE BB A R 4858 o

ZEBB AR RYAKREETHER
FEAERFEZFERRRNE R
MEBAR - ZERNEB ORGSR
BEW - RERBRERER -

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. EHEE
2020 2019
—B-RF TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FH&T
Deposits received in advance for: FLRFTE B EMIRS
Manufacturing and trading of e EEE A
elastic fabric and lace [EREYEFA 29,853 36,736
Manufacturing and trading of sLE N B EE T
elastic webbing 3,414 4,228
33,267 40,964

As at 1 January 2019, contract liabilities amounted
to HK$56,493,000.

RZZE—-NF—A—H AHNEEAR
56,493,000/ 7T,
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z=—

26.

218

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s
contract liabilities balance is an aggregate amount
of HK$4,000 (2019: HK$1,090,000) received from
related companies. These related companies are
fellow subsidiaries of non-controlling shareholders
who have significant influence over certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised relates to carried-forward contract
liabilities.

—EFEt_A=1T—HULHFE

EHNEE (&)
R-_E-_FTE+-_A=+—8 " it A
AEBEHEBEHIL,0008 T (=
ZT—h 4 1,090,000/ 7T) JTh B EHAh
BN B UINEN R ARRE - Z S AR
BHEAEEETHBAREGEAY
27 TR R AR R B AR

TRIRE R AL
HIBBERIZE o

Manufacturing
and trading of

Manufacturing
and trading of

elastic fabric elastic
and lace webbing
HEREEEY BER
BYEBRESL EEEMAT
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHAT FAT
Revenue recognised during the year ended RZZEZZF-A—HBF
31 December 2020 that was included FAEHNBELEHD
in the contract liabilities balance at the BE_T-TF+H
beginning of the year on 1 January 2020 =T —HIFEEERKRA 36,736 4,228
Revenue recognised during the year ended - —A—B&¥]
31 December 2019 that was included §+)\ e EEHD
in the contract liabilities balance at the HE-Z-NF+=A
beginning of the year on 1 January 2019 =T —-HIEFEEERKRA 51,702 4,791
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount FEOCMAESHNEESENRAE K

of contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

When the Group receives a deposit from customer
before the production activity commences, this
will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a
contract (i.e. upon receipt of manufacturing order
from customer), until the revenue recognised on
the relevant contract. Other than customers with
long term business relationship with the Group
and/or satisfying historical settlement record, the
Group typically receives 30% to 100% deposit on
acceptance of manufacturing orders from customers.

1 /TX;ZDT

MAEBREETIHRBAIRERPL U
%S i%%é%%%%(%%ﬂ
RERFPHEIER) EXEEA4H8
& BEEMEEEOBRARAEL -
MEAREBRARIANESBEENL, &
ARIELEBELFMES LI - K
CEEBENEXREIERRAZERK
E30%E100%IRE °

B!
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 27. RITREMER
2020 2019
— ? —% ﬂi :g_ﬂﬂz
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAT
Bank overdrafts BITEL - 32,225
Unsecured syndicated loan EIRREEER 1,006,673 949,401
Unsecured bank borrowings EIERIRITER 1,234,940 1,218,194
Unsecured other borrowing (Note) ERAEAMETR (F3E) 44,908 19,500
2,286,521 2,219,320
Carrying amount repayable*: JEEEFIRRREE"
Within one year —FR 1,091,540 1,435,920
More than one year, but not BiB—F BT BBMF
exceeding two years 269,868 441,047
More than two years, but not HBMEEATERRE
exceeding five years 925,113 342,353
2,286,521 2,219,320
Less: Amounts due within one year or o OREBERRER
contain a repayment on demand —FREEXBS
clause shown under current liabilities BBREEIENFIAE (1,313,569) (1,645,119)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities EREBEMRIIR 972,952 574,201
Carrying amount of bank borrowings that /,ﬁ/‘ FAREER
are repayable within one year and contain SHREREZIEIN
a repayment on demand clause fEfﬂﬁ RHEREE 1,012,911 1,036,928
Carrying amount of bank borrowings that HilR—FRERR
are repayable more than one year but BERERERIETN
contain a repayment on demand clause RITEFNEREE 222,029 209,199
1,234,940 1,246,127
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment * BB IE IR E R s st 2l

dates set out in the loan agreements and include the
unamortised portion of the prepaid transaction cost
in relation to the unsecured syndicated loan.

BEAYET  UBEABEKIRR
ERENRBUAZ REHED ©

Note: Other borrowing represents loan from a non- MisE -
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary which is
unsecured, carries interest at LIBOR plus 2.4% per
annum and repayable in December 2023. Such other
borrowing is denominated in USD.

H A tE ks8R 8 — M B X Bl FEIE %
BRAER - REER - RiRBERTT
[l 2 9% BONF A R2.4%5 B R AR
—To=H+ - AEER - FEME
FIAETTEHE
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ERE R

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group entered into a facility agreement for an
unsecured syndicated loan (2017 Syndicated
Loan”), which was repayable by installments,
from 13 May 2019 to 13 May 2021 and with an
interest rate at HIBOR plus 2.2% per annum for
HK$ loan tranche and LIBOR plus 2.2% per annum
for USD loan tranche. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group entered into a new
facility agreement for an unsecured syndicated loan
(“2020 Syndicated Loan”), which is repayable
by installments, from 31 December 2021 to 31
December 2023 and with an interest rate at HIBOR
plus 2.2% per annum for HK$ loan tranche and
LIBOR plus 2.2% per annum for US$ loan tranche.
Certain proceeds from the 2020 Syndicated Loan
were used to fully repay the 2017 Syndicated Loan.
The 2017 Syndicated Loan and 2020 Syndicated
Loan were guaranteed by the Company.

The unsecured bank borrowings and bank
overdrafts were guaranteed by the Company and/
or certain of its subsidiaries as at 31 December
2020 and 2019.

The Group has floating-rate borrowings which carry
interest at HIBOR plus 1.40% to 2.20% or LIBOR
plus 1.40% to 2.75% (2019: HIBOR plus 1.40% to
2.50% or LIBOR plus 1.40% to 2.75%) per annum.

27.

—EFEt_A=1T—HULHFE

RITREMER ()

BE_T—+tF+-_A=t—HILF
g $El%ﬂﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ E
—tFREER]) FTUBREHHE B
RAREBE-T-NFRAA+=BZE
T —FRAAT=HOHEE BT
/UA&%:[T%ﬁEﬂW¥ﬂ$22%%
F METEFTRBRBITRERB
ﬂuiﬂfzz%ﬁ% cHE_T_F
FT-A=+—HALEFE KAEEH
ﬂﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁq—g—gﬁﬂiﬁ

TA J) uTj%TﬁﬂﬁTﬁJn § Hﬁg 92
——F+=-A=+—RE=-ZT=-=%F
+—H*+ Ho#EE  BLEXR

&E TREFRBEMEFIE2.2%5t
B ﬁ%x%ﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁ%
MEFR22%:t8 - EFT T _TF
BREERMEBRERANEREE -
—tFREER _ T — tiﬁl%
AN —E_ZFREEFTIRAR
REELR o

RZB-ZTER-_FT-AF+-_A=
T—HB  BERRTEIRETEX
TiERARE R, SHEE T B QR
HIELR -

REEFZEEBR HBEBRITHE
2R B INE R T1.40%E2.20%5
HIR1TE E AR B IF F ET1.40%E
2.75% (ZE—NF: FARTAE
B IN1.40% E2.50%8% s IR 17 A
EIRBIN.40%E2.75%) 5T 8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(Continued)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also
equal to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s
pank and other borrowings are as follows:

%ﬁéﬁﬂ%i&%ﬁﬁ‘f

—EFEt-_A=1T—HBLFE

27. RITRHEMER (&)

B R TR A AR 1S R B IS =
(FMEERTHFR) BEMT -

2020 2019
—= —qu :%—j‘l_]f‘f

Effective interest rate (per annum):
Floating-rate borrowings

B (F) M=

1.74%-2.52%  2.43%-4.88%

The Group’s bank and other borrowings that are
denominated in currencies which are not the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities

are set out below:

As at 31 December 2020 N-EB-E
As at 31 December 2019 NZZ
+=

] E S :E’-i B EEMNEET
ERAEBRIT R HE {55 E 5 m
T

VND HK$ usD
HMEE BT E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET FET
53,504 - 323,250
- 393,600 148,200
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28.

222

LEASE LIABILITIES

28. HEEE

2020 2019
—EBoBE —T—hEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ExT FHET
Lease liabilities payable: ENEEaE
Within one year —F R 13,485 10,474
More than one year Bl FETBARE
but not exceeding two years 10,759 7,134
More than two years BEAMEENBARE
but not exceeding five years 11,455 2,152
More than five years AR F 54,433 53,640
90,132 73,400
Less: Amount due for settlement B ORBBENRI2E AN
with 12 months shown under FIEAEE 2 FIR
current liabilities (13,485) (10,474)
Amount due for settlement after BB EMRA12E AR
12 months shown under BIEREE 2 FE
non-current liabilities 76,647 62,926
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT TTESRT A
2020 2019
—EEF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Financial liabilities SRaE
Put option Ao HARE 1,402 1,408

Put option of Charming Elastic

Pursuant to the Charming Elastic Shareholders’
Agreement, subject to and conditional upon the Group
becoming the Majority Shareholder of Charming Elastic,
the other shareholder of Charming Elastic is entitled the
right to exercise its option to require the Group to buy
out all or part of the issued shares of Charming Elastic
held by the other shareholder at any time during the
period of two years from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2022
at a price set out in the Charming Elastic Shareholders’
Agreement. The put option is recognised as a derivative
financial instrument at FVTPL by the Group. The gain
on fair value change of such put option of HK$1,000
(2019: gain on fair value change of put option of
HK$1,792,000) for the year ended 31 December 2020
was recognised in profit or loss as other gains and
losses as set out in Note 8. Details of the fair value
measurement of the put option are disclosed in Note
38.

FESBR TG HE

BESBBEERERHZE  SBERAKR
ERAEERASABRBENEEMR
Rig - FEBBENS —ARRAE
TEEREERAEERSBEBRIET
BWERBZEMHERKEE T _ZF
+tA—BEBEE_ZT - —FA=1+H
MFHRARNTMAERSES —UBREFZS
MEBRIREN2IRBHEEITR
M e RLEATNEBEREBERE
miEAFEFENTESRTEAE - B
BHE_Z-_ZTF+_A=+—HLHF
B BRERLHELAFEEHNKE
1,000 7T (ZZE—NF : RaHER
FEZEH W EE1,792,000/87T) P18
mERAEMmN S R EE - ST
o RAHEATENENFIBTEE
RHIFESS ©

o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E —FE=-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE

30. DEFERRED TAXATION 30. EERIE
The following is the major deferred tax assets NTRRAFERBAFENEZED
(iabilities) recognised and movements during the HRELEHIBEE (BFE) KEH) -

current and prior years.

Undistributed
profits of/
unsettled
Deferred Capitalised ~ Allowance Accelerated Retirement interest
government  finance for ECL tax benefit  income from Tax  Right-of-use  Lease
grants costs  inventories provision  depreciation obligations  subsidiaries  losses assets  liabilities Total
REWEAR
REFHS
BEBR  2EAL BHEE il & WAR
mye  MERE FERE O BERE  BEFE  BAER  ADKER RHEER  RREEE HESE et
HK$'000  HKS000  HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK§'000
TEr TR TER T TEr  Thn L Tin TEr TAr  TEn

M1 anvary 2019 R-E-hE
A 1377 2433) 1490 3997 (2,428) 329 2726) - - - (454)

(Charged) credited K83 (1)

toprofitorloss~~ EFA (fiE13)

(Note 13) (314) 169 - 107 (5,869) 618 (453) 8,106 ROt 1698 (203

Credtedtoother  f{E42E

comprehensie WA

income - - - - - 37 - - - - 37
Bxchange EiAE
adjustments (127) 52 (32 42 (1) - - - - - (150)

At31December  R-F-E
2019 +-f=+-7 % Q2 1458 400 8299 o84 1260 8106 ROM) 168 [5%)

Oredted (charged)  #BZHA (11R)

to proftt or loss (Rtx13)

(Note 13) 1,446 167 2,574 (2,265) 1,008 680 5175  (6,451) 315 (296) 2,353
Crditedtoother  {EE{E2E

comprehensive  JEEEA

income - - - - - Kl - - - - i@l
Exchange ERHRE
adjustments 70 (133) (133) 2 2 - - - - - (196)

At31 December ~ R=B=B%
220 $oRZH-E 282 @iy 380 173 (29 17% [20]) 165 16 1402 1)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The above deferred tax assets and liabilities within
the same tax jurisdiction have been offset for
presentation purpose in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The following is the analysis of
the deferred taxation:

30.

EFERLIR ()

MERME - LABRRE—HREBDE
RENEERBEEERABERES
BN KK - AT BELEHIAD
D

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2020 2019
—F-FF  ZTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiE T F&TT
Deferred tax assets FEETIEE = 5,387 8,824
Deferred tax liabilities BERIAEE (5,758) (11,423)
(371) (2,599)

Withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Under the EIT Law,
deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$1,444,838,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$1,368,891,000), as the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Group had unused tax losses of
HK$147,692,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$102,046,000). A deferred tax asset had been
recognised in respect of HK$11,828,000 (2019:
HK$51,622,000) of such losses. No deferred tax
assets have been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$135,864,000 (2019: HK$50,424,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams
of respective group entities. Unused tax losses of
HK$81,842,000 (2019: HK$45,169,000) will be
expired within five years, other tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

BEEFERERAR —E-2FFH

BT )N\F—F—HBi hEKHEB
X B BT IR B A =K A% B 78 58 49
BIH - WBLEMESRE  ARA
EEAIEHECBRREEANRR
mA BRI ZEN LKA T
o MUTERGEMBEREF
BB ARIR-_ZE_ZTEF+_-_A=
T —HEN M EENGEREE
1,444,838,000/%8 7Tt (= & — JL F ¢
1,368,891,000/8 7t) {EL IREFRL A &
B o

RZZE-_TF+-_A=+—H0 ' K&
) oK Eh F 7% 18 /&5 18 B147,692,000
BT (ZZ — L& 2 102,046,000
JC) ° B B 7% & &5 1811,828,0007% 7T
(ZZF — N5 :51,622,000) H)IE i
REEECDERR BRSEEER
B 2R 3R S I B9 N BT FECRI M - B 4
MR B B 5 T135,864,0008 7T (=&
— N4 : 50,424,000/ 7T) HY iR IE T
HEE - X&) A FIEE 881,842,000
B (ZZE—NF : 45,169,000 7T)
BRAFAZE - HaiiIEEERA
R B AL o
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31. SHARE CAPITAL

The detailed movements of the Company’s share
capital are set out below.

LN
ARAIBRAOEEBF BRI

Number of
shares Amount
RIEE 8
HK$ HK$'000
BT FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FiRMEE0.01 BT Tk
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2019 and 31 December ~ RZZE—-h&E—F—BR
2019 and 2020 “E-NEFR-ZFCEF
+-A=+—-H 50,000,000,000 500,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—HA—H 1,039,723,000 10,397,230 10,397
Issue of shares upon exercise of RITEERER BTG
share options (Note) (FizE) 85,000 850 1
At 31 December 2019 and 2020 RZE-NER-F-TF
+-A=+—H 1,039,808,000 10,398,080 10,398

There was no movement in the Company’s share
capital during the year ended 31 December 2020.

All shares issued rank pari passu with other existing
shares in all aspects.

Note: On 11 April 2019, the Company issued 85,000
shares upon the exercise of share options by certain
employees.

REE=2-2E+-A=+—AI
TR ADRARABBED -

B BRI TR T AR 5
BRIV RASEHS -
sy RZF—-AFEA+—8  ARFRN

= TIRB1TEERRMER 1785,000/%
ety o
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the rules and
regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ salaries with a cap
of HK$1,500 per month per employee and are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years as at 31 December
2020 and 2019.

The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
make contributions to the state-managed retirement
schemes operated by the local governments based
on certain percentage of the monthly salaries of
their current employees to fund the benefits.

Eligible employees in Vietnam currently participate
in State Social Insurance Fund, which is a defined
contribution pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. The calculation of
contributions is based on certain percentage of
employee’s payroll.

The only obligations of the Group with respect to
the above defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes are to make the required contributions
under the respective schemes.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the total
costs charged to profit or loss are HK$31,532,000
(2019: HK$44,377,000), representing contributions
paid/payable to the above defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes.

32.

RIKEFEE
FE BT &

REBRE R G MERBES 2K D
HMAIRRG - BEFEEEEERE
B2HEaH R EEE ([BESE
g2 #HEXNZEEFHHNETES
LbEE - ERAEREES A1,500%5
TC o BB BEERBIERES B
RARMNZIER  SEHFEEER A
HEEKERNE - BEBESHEIEE
HAEBEEESHIBE  ABEILXT
ANEBESGRE R _ZTFK_
T-hhFE+-A=+—8 WEHSL
WA SRA] A BARL A R 2R F T2 A JE T it

=+
Koo

ARBNFEAMBARAEZERARE
BAFONETED LR BFEE
MBI R BB RKRGTENEHL K - (FR
BHER

BEAEREERAMZ2EBARHL SR
RET - U —HBMTBAEEN
REHRFRERTE - HFTDBREREE
HEETEDLEE -

ARG Eph Lt RO HBURERE I &
MM — B T ARBESTEEL ATAM

£31,532,000/% 7T (= & :
44,377,000/ 7T) » B bt SROFE H R
REBFEEINEN AR -
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32. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS 32. RBRIREREE (&)
(Continued)
Defined benefits plans AEBFGFE
Under the Payment of Gratuity Act, the Company’s BERMESZNE  NARNEER
Sri Lanka subsidiaries are required to operate KB AR BRLAERHTE - A
defined benefits plans by paying gratuity to R—RAETEERBEAFRALNE
eligible employees who have served continuously EREEXNBEME - BME THRE
for five years and more under one employer. EEF2MNAETEO L RESE 2R
The calculation of gratuity is based on certain FHFE - ERRHBRRIRL
percentage of employee’s salaries and their number R ERAFTEIFEAT -
of years of service. The details of the defined
benefits plans operated by the subsidiaries in Sri
Lanka are as follows:
Retirement benefit obligations EBARENEE
2020 2019
i —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
At the beginning of the year REH) 6,922 5,460
Current service cost IR B AR A5 Ak X 956 660
Interest cost F B A 582 618
Actuarial loss IEEE1E 892 274
Contributions paid P EINHR (785) (626)
Exchange gain R (373) (26)
Others Hitb 866 562
At the end of the year REXR 9,060 6,922
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS 32. REKREFE &)

(Continued)

Defined benefits plans (Continued) REBFGE (2)

Retirement benefit obligations (Continued) BARERNEE (&)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated RireEalEMt2EKRAREZRDN
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive SEMAT -

income are as follows:

2020 2019

—E-FF ZFNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Current service cost IR BF AR A Ak A 956 660

Interest cost K B AN 582 618

Recognised in profit or loss RIEEER 1,538 1,278

Actuarial gain breakup is as follows: BEEUZEBEMAI T

Loss from change in financial FBREBNESR

assumptions 1,084 215

Experience adjustments BRI (192) 59
Recognised in other comprehensive REM2EBEZER

expense 892 274
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32.

230

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS
(Continued)

Defined benefits plans (Continued)
Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

This obligation, which is not externally funded,
is based on an actuarial valuation of the defined
benefit plan based on the projected unit credit
method, which is the benchmark method specified
in HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” carried out by a
professional actuaries as of 31 December 2020.
The gratuity liability of the subsidiaries in Sri Lanka
is based on an actuarial valuation carried out by
Messrs’ Willis Towers Watson Actuaries, whose
principal place of business is located at 2nd Floor,
Tower B, Unitech Business Park, South City-1,
Gurgaon-122001, Haryana, India. The principal
assumptions used for this purpose are as follows:

32.

RIABREE (@)

REBRGFE (&)
RAKBREE (B)

HIERANTECBRNEETIAEE
BEEMEE-_ZSZ T +=-_A=+
—BERBHEMGENERNE (AT
BRI [EERMI EE
B EAEE) HRERNGTEETHRE
B RER - WEFERWEB QA
B B M & & & Ty A EEMessrs’ Willis
Towers Watson Actuaries (£ ¥ &
& % i B 7 7A2nd Floor, Tower B,
Unitech Business Park, South City-1,
Gurgaon-122001, Haryana, India) #
THREMNEAER - AR —BH
WEEREBLOT :

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-hF

Discount rate per annum FRLIE R 7% 10.0%
Annual salary increment rate FHeBRER 9% 9%
Retirement age RINFHR 55 55
Withdrawal rate BERKER 15% 15%

As the amount of retirement benefit obligations is
insignificant, no sensitivity analysis on assumptions
used in the actuarial valuation is presented.

HRERENEEZSBRL TEK
B AR R E S 2 RBETTBUR
DT o
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company’s Pre-IPO share option scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
were adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on
8 May 2014 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees, and
will expire at the end of five years and ten years
from the date of grant of respective share options
for Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme, respectively.

For the Share Option Scheme, no share option was
granted since its adoption.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, there is no
granted share options remained outstanding under
the Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme.

The table below discloses movement of the
Company’s share options granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme during each of the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2020:

33.

CARR 4D 7 B 7 BV A3 5K

ARARER-_FT-—HNEFRAANRR
BRORBRRBERXAFEENBK
e E ((BEROMBENBRES
B ) MEkERtE ([BREtE]) -
TEREFNAERERREMAE
I B A B IR A5 % E A BB T
8| & BB T 81X B B A B
hERTERIE -

LEBAERTEIM S - BERMEL &

RO BE -

R E-FBEER_FT—NFE+_A=
+—HB BMEREE X AHAEEAE
MEAEETEI B R MR TE AR AE -

TRBEHZE T NFR_ZT-F
F+_A=Z+—"HULEFEZSFRRE
BAAFEENBRETSREMNAR
NAERE "

1 January Exercised 31 December
2019 during the year 2019 and 2020
“E-NER
—2-1F St 2
—-A—H EREfTE t=-A=t-H
Number of share options outstanding: RETRRERESE
- Employees — €8 85,000 (85,000) -
Number of share options exercisable AT R R 2 B 85,000 N/ATE A

BEEFERERAR —E-2FFH 231



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR AT A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

33.

34.

232

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 33. URHREBRBMNAR (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the BE-_T-NF+_A=1T—HILF
weighted average closing price of the Company’s B ARARNHIRBREERSEE
shares at the dates on which the share options BIIFEER2MEFHUTERER
were exercised by employees of the Group was 3.05%7T
HK$3.05 per share.
The share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share BEERARBEEAIERETSIRE
Option Scheme are subject to the vesting period as ZBEREAED BN R HZEEARER
to 20%, 30% and 50% of the aggregate number of HE— F_RE-BAFHEIZEH
shares underlying the option on the date of the first, B 10 #RELEI20% ~ 30% K 50%5F B ©
second and third anniversary of the date of grant ZEBRENTEHR-T—AFH
of such options respectively. The exercise period of A+hBEZZT—AFHATNH-
these share of options is from 19 May 2015 to 19
May 2019
Details of the principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share BRAREERERER S & EARE
Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme are FEIZEEBBRBNFRERARAIZE
disclosed in the “Report of the Directors” included “EFFHRAE [EEYRE | HE -
in the Annual Report 2020 of the Company.
CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 34. EXRKHMAE
2020 2019
et 23 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of the B@AANEME  BE
addition of property, plant and equipment FEHEETHE
contracted but not provided for REBEENERNFX 218,172 289,014

Note: As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
22 December 2016, Dongguan BPT and seven
independent third parties entered into an agreement
in relation to the formation of a company to be
established in the PRC (“the Investee”) to engage
in insurance business and related financial activities
in the PRC. Pursuant to such agreement, Dongguan
BPT has agreed to make a capital contribution of
RMB140,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$
HK$158,765,000) in return for approximately 7.022%
equity interest in the Investee. As at the date of these
consolidated financial statements are authorised
for issue, formation of the Investee is subject to
the approval from China Insurance Regulatory
Commission and no contribution was made by the
Group to the Investee.

Bt : AR BHA-T— R F+_-A
“+_BMRERERE  REBAH
tR2BULE=ZFEL—HHE A
REBETRAZEL R ([HRELDQ
) UEFRBE SRR ES LI
WHEE - RIFZ R - ExBAs
B EZF& AR #140,500,0007T (48
B 49158,765,000/87T) + AiEAE
B NTILIT.022% M BRHE - N %
REVBRRERESMGEE KL
WIRE AR AKTRRBRESEES
e BAREBITERKITED
RAIMEHHEER -
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has pledged bank deposits amounted to
HK$77,944,000 (2019: HK$76,823,000) to secure
the bills payables issued by the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group does not have any contingent liability so
far as the management is aware that is pending or
threatened by or against the Group.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,
which mainly include bank and other borrowings
as disclosed in Note 27 and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising share capital
disclosed in Note 31 and reserves.

The management reviews the capital structure
by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. In view
of this, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new
shares issue as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debts.

35.

36.

37.

BEREE

PR L B R 45 R B - AN E K
RITTFET7,944,0008 T (ZZE—Hh
% : 76,823,000 7T) 1E B A& B B
HE A RIER R -

HAREE

AEBMEREEEEMMEANEESF
REEERBRA B MR EIE -

EXREBEE

A o I B AR LA REAR L 4 B S
EREEE  FEEREERER
BB BRAAREADH - AEE
PR SRS B — AR T o

AEBEEARRBERRERER (RFENRH
A2THT B M RIT R EMEF) UK
ARBHEAANEAEDS (BIEH S
PIT I BR 0 AR AR R )

EEELEEESNANEZREN
HENERBRTEARE - BER
o NEBEKEBIRMNRE - BITH
P A B2 3877 3T 75 S BB [0 3R A (& 75 A
FEHEEBEANRE -
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38. ¢RI H
Categories of financial instruments cRMIAESE
2020 2019
—g-®% -T-N&
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FHET
Financial assets CRIEE
Financial assets measured at RHESEN ARG ER
amortised cost TREE 2,033,620 1,454,086
Financial liabilities cRAE
Financial liabilities measured at RN ER
amortised cost THEE 3,133,800 3,089,464
Financial liabilities at FVTPL FEREREATE
TEMNSREE
— derivative financial instrument — 1A T A 1,402 1,403

234

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
derivative financial instrument, trade and bills
receivables, other receivables and deposits,
pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade payables, bills
payables, other payables and accrued charges
and bank and other borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

MEEREERRERBE

AEBNTECRIABREITESR
TR BEZRUFRENEESEE H
KRB RIZE  EHBRTE
o EHRITER  RITESH MR
T BHEMNFIA - BNRE - Hib
FET RIA N T B A DA S8R 1T R Eo At
fEk - ZE M I AENFBREEM
AT TXHEIEZEFERTAR
B ) R B % 40 ) B R 5% <5 L B B IR
R-BEBEEREEZFAR U
FEOR K2 IR B U BREUE & #E 3 ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank and other
borrowings and bank balances, and fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate pledged
bank deposits, short term bank deposits and lease
liabilities.

The Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, management closely
monitors its exposure to future cash flow risk as
a result of change on market interest rate and will
consider hedging changes in market interest rates
should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk section of this
note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HBOR or LIBOR
arising from the Group’s variable-rate bank and other
borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rate risk on
bank borrowings. The sensitivity analysis is
prepared assuming the bank and other borrowings
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. No sensitivity analysis
is presented on bank balances as the management
of the Group considers that the interest rate
fluctuation on bank balances is minimal.

A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used in the
sensitivity analysis, which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates. If the interest rate had been 50 basis
point higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2020 would decrease/increase by
HK$9,559,000 (2019: HK$9,271,000).
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38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €@TH (&)
Financial risk management objectives and RAKMEEEERBER (£)
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) miEREE (&)
Currency risk B b
Certain trade and bills receivables, trade payables, ETEZRUEFIEREKRERE B5
bills payables, bank balances and cash, and bank JERTRIE - BEE - RITHEBR KR
borrowings are denominated in foreign currencies A NIRITEREURBSE E o
other than the functional currency of the relevant et EB AN INEE G (B - BE $
group entities, which expose the Group to foreign SEEERINE RS o A& B & NE
currency risk. The Group does not have a foreign HHRBK - A - BEEE EHIE
currency hedging policy. However, the management % WA T ERERE R ERINE
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will [
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency AEENINESENEBEEREE
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the RGBS REHREERT ¢
end of the reporting periods are as follows:
Assets
BE
2020 2019
—EIEH —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
EUR against HK$ BT AT 108 36
RMB against HK$ AREHET 6,053 629
USD against HK$ ETLHABTT 392,545 419,587
VND against USD MG R 8,827 8,312
HK$ against USD BT HIETT 190 112
RMB against USD ARKERZETT 806 -
Lanka Rupee against USD HEMRELRET 908 -
USD against RMB ETHARE 193 686
Liabilities
=R
2020 2019
—B-EF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
EUR against HK$ BT HETT 8,403 7,090
USD against HK$ ETLHABTT 363,649 273,162
VND against USD MEERET 78,112 31,205
HK$ against USD BT R ETT 815 -
EUR against USD BT RZETT 515 973
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of foreign currency
denominated intra-group balances which have been
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements
of certain subsidiaries of which the functional
currency are RMB, HK$ and USD at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

38.

€RTH (&)
BEERETEEERKE (&)

SRR (&)
E¥mg (&)

RERE R A& RE - LIMEFHERNE
BARREESROREESINNT
BRABEHRONDEEBRARE &
TERETHE THE R RN S M5

Amount due (to) from
group entities

(FEfY) BEREEERE

2020 2019

St 323 —T-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

HK$ against RMB BITHARKE 435,910 605,429
USD against RMB ETHRARKE 17,791 17,855
HK$ against USD BITHET - (279
EUR against USD BT ETT - (1,202)
EUR against HK$ BT HAETT - 1,202

Sensitivity analysis

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with
USD, the Group does not expect any significant
movements in the USD/HK$ exchange rates.
Therefore, the following sensitivity analysis does not
include the effect between USD and HK$.

BRNE DT

MR BTTEE TS - REEFAHE
T/ BT ER Y EEMENEE -
It NESURAE D AT I B FE ST
BILENEE -
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38.

238

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €mTH (&)
Financial risk management objectives and HBRKMEEEERBER (&
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) migEE (&)
Currency risk (Continued) B (&)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRMEDHT (BB)
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity TRFMLAEEHEEBRERE
to a 10% increase and decrease in the functional W B RE INEE FE BR10% ) SRR ME ¢ W
currency of the respective group entity against FIEEMEHERTE - 10%5E R
relevant foreign currencies and all other variables Bt hEXA e GBS B BUREL
were held constant. 10% is the sensitivity rate Ko FURMEDHTEBIE R AREIE 2 A
used by management in the assessment of the HNESIEMERKIBEE REERNRARME
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange HNEE 5 64 - N0 S B R IR 10% HY [E 3 &
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only FABRHBE - THEHBERINEH
outstanding foreign currencies denominated ZEEEERNEEE (BT ARK
monetary items and intragroup foreign currency 3 TT) FHE10%F 72N F 5 bk B 18 5%
balances and adjusts its translation at the period FEE - INEE R EBEREIEE
end for a 10% change in foreign currencies rates. B (BT ARBHET) RE10%E
A positive number below indicates an increase in HAFEEAEAERRERNZE -
post-tax profit for the year where foreign currencies
strengthen 10% against functional currency (HK$
or RMB or USD) of the respective group entity. For
a 10% weakening of foreign currencies against
functional currency (HK$ or RMB or USD) of the
respective group entity there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the result for the year.
2020 2019
St 323 —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FET
(Decrease) increase in post-tax profit REERTIERT
for the year () 180
Foreign currency against HK$ HNEE S TT (184) (589)
Foreign currency against RMB HNEE 5, N R 38,581 52,979
Foreign currency against USD GNEE H ST (5,500) (1,928)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk as the
exposure at the end of the reporting period does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

BEERR  ARRENHEEREDN
R\ Bz 3 A e R A RO LR - B EBRRR
DML TEERKRAEEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk

The sensitivity analysis of the derivative financial
instrument is disclosed in the section “fair value
measurements of financial instruments” below.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge obligations by the counterparties as at
the end of reporting period are arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group identifies trade receivables
that are credit impaired and assesses their ECL
individually, and performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on the remaining trade balances
based on provision matrix. The estimated loss
rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information
(for example, the current and forecasted default
rates in Asia-Pacific, North America and Europe
as published by international credit agency,
which reflect the general credit risk of the major
debtors and the geographical market that they
operate) that is available without undue cost or
effort. Such forward-looking information is used
by the management of the Group to assess both
the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date. The grouping
is regularly reviewed by the management of the
Group to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated. In this regard, the management
of the Group considers that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.
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38.

240

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group had concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables as 15.0% (2019: 16.4%) of the total
trade receivables were due from the Group’s largest
customer based in Hong Kong and 32.7% (2019:
39.0%) of the total trade receivables were due from
the Group’s largest five customers, which were
mainly based in Hong Kong, Sri Lanka, Taiwan and
South Korea, as at 31 December 2020.

Bills receivables, pledged bank deposits, short term
bank deposits and bank balances

The credit risks for bills receivables, pledged bank
deposits, short term bank deposits and bank
balances are limited because such amounts are
placed in banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies or state-owned
banks.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several reputable
banks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

38.

ERMTEH (&)
BREAMEEEERKE (£)

EERRKBENE (&)

AEBENABEERRD R HERE

THER -

Other financial

Internal assets at
credit rating Description Trade receivables amortised cost
RS AT R
WEEEFTHR B2 EWNIE HiteMEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
default and does not have any past-due not credit-impaired
amounts or the past-due amounts are
insignificant
iVl HFIMEDORRERE  BEXEEm 2HEHEESE - 12@AEMEEER
HAR IR s @ HARKIE D & K REEFEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
dates but usually settle after due date not credit-impaired
BReE BEBALERIPREEEERTNE 2HEBEEEE - 12@ABHEEER
HiR®REE REEEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL -
in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed internally
or external resources
it FRAPAINIEIREKNERAIAE 2HEESEEE - 2HEREEEE -
R B B RHERAREZE SN REEFERE RNEEEFERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is  Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
credit impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
E1a BRBETNZEEREEERE ZHFEMEEEE - 2HEHEEEE -
BEEERE BHEEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
the Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery
s BREETEBABARENHERZER MWEZSHE W% 25

AEERREERE AT
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €®iT A (#)

Financial risk management objectives and HBRAKMEREEERBER (£)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment FEERBERENE (&)
(Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures TREFMBHETIEHEE GBI HE
of the Group’s financial assets at amortised cost NEBIRBEKAYVENSREER
which are subject to ECL assessment: BH{EERR
2020 2019
External Internal 12-month or Gross carrying Gross carrying
Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount amount
12f8 R ZBC2E —Z-NE
W ABEETR ABEETHR 2HRHEEEE REAE RRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEL

Financial assets at
amortised cost

RESERAIIENEMER
Trade receivables 20 N/A Note (a) Lifetime ECL 806,166 725,898
(provision matrix)
BHEWE @R Hizt(a) PHRBEEER
(Bt
20 N/A Note (a) Credit-impaired - 21,052
TER Hizt(a) BEEERE
806,166 746,950
Bills receivables 20 N/A N/A 12m ECL ‘ 14,401 34,442
e TER TEA 12EAEHEESE
Other receivables and deposits 21 N/A Note (b) 12m ECL ‘ 46,585 26,995
HiEYGUERE S TER Mz (o) 12 EHEEER
Pledged bank deposits 22 Note (c) N/A 12m ECL 77,944 76,823
BHERRITER MzE(Q) TR 12EAEREESE
Short term bank deposits 22 Note (c) N/A 12m ECL ‘ 8,338 19,010
RHROER fizHe) TR 12EAEREEEE
Bank balances 22 Note (c) N/A 12m ECL \ 1,092,396 574,424
RIThR &) TEm 12[HAEREEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
credit loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for
debtors with significant outstanding balances that are
credit-impaired, the Group determines the ECL on
these items by using a provision matrix, grouped by
internal credit rating.

(b) For the purposes of internal credit risk management,
the Group uses past due information to assess
whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition. All of these balances are either
not past due or have no fixed repayment term at 31
December 2020 and 2019.

(c) The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits
and bank balances is limited because most of such
balances are placed in banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies or
state-owned banks, for which the Group considers
to have low credit risk.

Provision matrix — internal credit rating

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers
in relation to its manufacturing and trading of elastic
fabric, lace and webbing operation. The following
table provides information about the exposure to
credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed
based on provision matrix as at 31 December 2020
and 2019 within lifetime ECL.
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38.

044

(=)

e B SRR AT A

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

38.

—EFEt_A=1T—HULHFE

€RMTHE (&)
BERRETEEERBE (&)

FERR&BENE (&)

(Continued)

Gross carrying amount BRETAEER
2020 2019
Trade Trade
receivables receivables
—ECEHF —NEF
EZEWNE HBIRKEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
Internal credit rating R E EFEAR FET FHT
Grades 1-2: Low risk 1-24% - (ERR 687,372 596,138
Grade 3: Watch list 3 BEEE 91,323 118,646
Grade 4: Doubtful AR TEER 27,471 11,114
806,166 725,898

During the year ended 31 December 2020, lifetime
ECL (not credit impaired) on trade receivables was
provided based on the provision matrix and lifetime
ECL (credit impaired) on trade receivables was
provided individually.

As at 31 December 2020, the weighted average
loss rate applied in determining the lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired) was 1.6% (2019: 1.1%). Due
to greater financial uncertainty triggered by the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has increased the
expected loss rates in the current year as there is
higher risk that a prolonged pandemic could led to
increased credit default rates.

BE_ZT-_ZTF+_A=+—HLHF
B EZRWFIEz2MEMERER
1B ORBEEERE) HREREHER
iR MEZEUHRAEZBREREE
1B (BAEEERE) BIEFE -

RZZE-_EF+-_A=+—H" &
ARETZHBEHEESE R#
EEERE) WINEFHYEEXR
16% (ZZE —NF:11%)° AR
COVID-19%% 18§ 5| B KM B I~ & T
M AEEERSATFENTEEE
X JTHREBERE RS RR A L
BYEAENELEFR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

Gross carrying amount (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables

under the simplified approach.

€RTH (&)

MHEREREBRRBE (&)

EERRKBENE (&)

BRIEERE ()

TRERERBEMNE 5 EWFIA

ES TR

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

& o

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2 HEH 2 HEH
FEER FEBR
(REE (B4
=ERE) EERE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FHEL THEL
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE-NE-F—-H 8,859 15,789 24,648
Changes due to trade receivables EHRRE SEUGTBRHESD :
recognised:
~ impairment losses recognised -BZZ-NF-A-BEEN:
on financial assets carried forward MEECERREEE
from 1 January 2019 - 3,127 3,127
~ impairment losses recognised - REENNEREEDERRE
on new financial assets originated B#E 8,076 - 8,076
- impairment losses reversed - BRERESSE (8,859) - (8,859)
Exchange adjustments i 5 R (107) 17 (90)
As at 31 December 2019 R-E-h&E+=-A=+—-H 7,969 18,933 26,902
Changes due to trade receivables EHRE FRKTEMBES :
recognised:
— impairment losses recognised -BZTF-A-RHEND
on financial assets carried forward MEECRRREESE
from 1 January 2020 - 1,800 1,800
— impairment losses recognised - REENFEREEDRAME
on new financial assets originated BB 12,451 - 12,451
— impairment losses reversed - BEREREESE (7,969) - (7,969)
- write-offs — A - (20,920) (20,920)
Exchange adjustments B R 218 187 405
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZEE5+-A=+-H 12,669 - 12,669
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38.

246

ERE R

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Gross carrying amount (Continued)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or when the trade receivables are
over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on bank
and other borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2020, the Group has
unutilised banking facilities of HK$2,620,485,000
(2019: HK$2,866,000,000). The management
monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities and lease liabilities. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause are included in the earliest time
band regardless of the probability of the banks
or financial institutions choosing to exercise their
rights. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from the interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.
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e B R Y A
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. @I H (&)
Financial risk management objectives and HRAKMEEEERBER (£)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESRAR (£)
Liquidity tables THEEL X
Carrying
Weighted  Repayable amount at
average ondemand  Between  Between More Total  the end of
effective ~ orwithin 3 months 1to5 than undiscounted the reporting
interestrate 3 months  to 1 year years  Syears  cash flows date
REXY REERS
mEEY  Z@AR =fRE ABEBE  ERBY
BRAIE i -£ -£2R% @BAIE  REALR REfE
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$O000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ter  TEr  TEnr  TER T T
At 31 December 2020 W-2-8F+ZR=t-A
Non-derivative HrESRes
financial liabilities
Trade payables BAEMTE N/A TER 243,050 - - - 243,050 243,050
Bills payables LOES NARER 182510 140,738 - - 323,248 323,248
Other payables and HpENTERESER
acerued charges N/A TEH 280,981 - - - 280,981 280,981
Bank borrowings - variable rate  $#/7{5F1 - [FEIF|X 221% 1,237,542 98,007 986,908 - 2322547 2,241,613
Other borrowing - variable rate 2t { ! - ¥817 & 4.75% 533 1,600 49,175 - 51,308 44,908
1944616 240435 1,036,083 - 322113 3,133,800
Lease liabilities HERE 5.19% 4,116 14,268 36,008 126,581 180,973 90,132
At 31 December 2019 R-B-NETZA=t-8
Non-derivative HritRas
financial liabilities
Tradle payables EHENTE - 46337 - - - 246,337 246,337
Bills payables EREE - 234682 151,864 - - 386,546 386,546
Other payables and At MR ER
accrued charges - 237,261 - - - 237,261 237,261
Bank borrowings - variable rate  $F47{E3 - FHF % 402% 1204605 423292 589314 - 2287301 21675%
Other borrowing - variable rate  Eb{E 7! - ¥817 & 4.75% 183 548 20,231 - 20,962 19,500
Bank overdrafts RTEX 3.75% 30,205 - - - 32,225 32,225
1975383 575704 609,545 - 3160632 3,089,464
Lease liabilities HEEE 5.35% 4,684 9,650 21039 128,610 163,983 73,400
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38.

248

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidiity tables (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities
are subject to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amount of bank borrowings
with repayment on demand clause amounting to
HK$1,234,940,000 (2019: HK$1,246,127,000) are
included in “Repayment on demand or within 3
months” time band in the above maturity analysis.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the management of the Group does not believe that
it is probable that the banks or financial institutions
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The management of the
Group believes that such bank borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements.

38.
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MR AEEERERE  RiTe
REETRAEITERENNERE
SKENBS(EE - AEBEEEERE %
LRTETB KRB E R B ZTH TS
EEBHEE -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. @I H (&)
Financial risk management objectives and HRAKMEEEERBER (£)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESRAR (£)
Liquidity tables (Continued) REELX (&)
For the purpose of managing liquidity risk, the REERERARME BEEER
management reviews the expected cash flow BHmEmEEEER R (W TR
information of the Group’s bank borrowings based ) ERAKSERTEROMGIRS
on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the MEER :
agreement as set out in the table below:
Carrying
amount at
Weighted Between Between Total  the end of
average Within 3 months to 1yearto undiscounted the reporting
interest rate 3 months 1 year Syears  cash flows period
AER  RNBEHE
METH =fiRz Réhg EREH
G AR - -EZRE it FEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Aantt TiEn Tin Tin Tin Thn
Bank borrowings RITER
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZEE+-F=1-H 1.97 864,419 157,019 240,086 1,261,524 1,234,940
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NET=R=1-H 355 872,026 185,403 231,366 1,288,7% 1,246,127
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38.

250

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Fair value of the financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of
these financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level
of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset, either directly or
indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the assets.

38.

—EFEt_A=1T—HULHFE

ERTEH (&)
SWMIACAFENE

UEEMHEEZEAFEAENSEME
ERETREBENQTE

AEEFSEMEERERABIRN

BERHERERATVEFE- T
B EHEZSEMEERERARE
ZRVFEBENENER (LHEEM
EAMGERMNEEARE) - ARE
RAFEFEBABEBENAIBREIZE

mE DR FEFEBR (F—
) e
. —RBABBRERANE

EEEEp¥1EEﬁ 2HRRNEE
RIRBEMISNRE CRFE)

c FE_HRBABEBESTERE—
RRENEENA BRAME
BERNBARE &

c FZRBWABEBREEMNTA
BIRBARE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €T A (&)

Fair value measurements of financial ST EZNAFEE (&)
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the financial assets and financial DREMBEERAFEFENERE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a EREBHEBENAEHE (&)

recurring basis (Continued)
Fair value as at 31 December
RT=B=t-BHATE
Fair value  Valuation techniques and key
2020 2019 hierarchy inputs
“E2EE CT-hE AVEER RERGRIZBAHE
HKS000  HK$'000

Sensitivity

§BE

TR Tin
(1) Derivative Putoption- Putoption-  Level3  Fair value derived by valuation model, ~ The fair value of the derivative financial liability as a whole
financial liabiity 1,402 1,408 Monte Carlo Simulation Model. The s negatively correlated with the WACC and posiively
(see Note 29) key unobservable inputs used by correlated with the dliscount for lack of marketability and the

the Group mainly included expected
volatiity of comparable companies,
Weighted Average Cost of Capital
('WACC’) and discount for lack of
marketabilty.

() FEemas  DESE- DEEE-  BSR popEnssiRSmEUeLH
(SHz2g) 1402 1403 AT REBFRIEFTER
BAMETERRTELEA TR

5 - IETARAE (BT

HERRA]) RDaRENTE -

expected volatiity of comparable companies.

As at 31 December 2020, it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an increase/decrease in:

- WACC by 3% would have decreased/increased the fair
value of the derivative financial liability by HKS$357,000/
HKS404,000 (2019: HK$344,000/HK$526,000);

- Discount for lack of marketability by 5% would have
increased/decreased the fair value of the derivative
financial liabifty by HK$155,000/HK$148,000 (2019:
HKS$144,000/HK$136,000);

- Expected volatiity of comparable companies by 10%
would have increased/decreased the fair value of the
derivative financial fiability by HK$344,000/HK$305,000
(2019: HK$301,000/HK$275,000).

EEBRENAFERRENETIEANARRY, - B4t
DERIENTRRTAHBAANBRARERALL, -

WoE-BET-A=+-R - EEMEENSYRRTE

HERT  fi
IETSERRALN /3% BERGTLLREE
BATERD /1357 00057 / 4040005 (-
— I + 344 000/ 526, 00078 TC)

- BEEREOTEEN/ F05% SERfEERAR
EYATEEN /155,000 / 148 0005 T (-
— I © 144 00035/ 136, 0000870

- WBHBARNEERELEN A% BERES
BEBATEL /5344 0007/ 305,0007
(ZZ—/E : 30100087/ 27500067 °

There is no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and RABEFEERN - F—H F_HRE
Level 3 during both years. = EB A ER o
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38.

252

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair
value of its financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost using the discounted
cash flows analysis.

The management of the Group considers that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

Valuation process

The financial controller of the Group is responsible
to determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses market-observable data
or information provided by counterparty financial
institutions to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available or counterparty
(investee or fund manager) cannot provide sufficient
information in relation to fair value, the management
of the Group engages third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The financial controller
reports to management of the Group semi-annually
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value
of the assets.

Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the fair value of various
financial instruments are disclosed above.

38.

EWMIA (&)
SRMIAZATENE (B)

WHBREEMBEUAFETENS
MEERESBMAEENQAFE

AEEEEEERAMBRRERENN
At REER A ENEREER S
BEBENAYE-

AEBEEEERRGEAM BRI
BHEANAABNEREERSRBE
REERFEFHNATHERS

HERF

AEEMBHREATSETAENRF
Bt EMEERMN MEARE -

RIEFFEERBENRFER - A%
BRI BIER MIRAT S A BRH
BEHF I EMEBRHENER -
WS —RBWABURIE T (K
BRI ASKIE) RERHEAR
FENRHEN AEEEEEZRRE
FE=EERMLEMEITTHE - M5
RESYFRAASEEREER N
BEREEATERDNREA -

EMETSES BT AATER R
FIRO 1 R 1T B 8 A BB 0 B R b
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €®ITH (&)

Reconciliation of Level 3 Fair value measurement E=RAFEFTENHIER
Derivative
Investment in a financial
partnership liability
REG¥ AR (THESBAR
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TAT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—hF—A—H 18,642 (3,195)
Total gains: Bl
— in profit or loss —FTAE® - 1,792
—in other comprehensive income — T AH M2 E R 1,981 -
Disposal of the investment HEREAE AR
in partnership (20,066) -
Exchange adjustments bE H TR (557) -
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-HAFE+=-_A=+—H - (1,403)
Total gain: Blas
—in profit or loss — st A& - 1
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZF+=-A=+—H - (1,402)
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e B SRR AT A

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following G

—EFEt_A=1T—HULHFE

39. FEBAERE

BRira M BRI EMETD
AEBERFERA TIIBEELR

DT EE

related party transactions during the year: Z
(a) 2020 2019
—EZEH —E-NF
Nature of transaction HK$'000 HK$'000
REME THET FET
Sales of raw materials to a joint venture A BEHE R 1,846 1,655
Purchase of goods from a joint venture B2 hEHEE 49,639 74,702
Sales of goods to a related company* AR LR EEE Y 48,293 28,088
Sales of goods to other related companies* mE MR R RHE S 528,299 641,210
Interest expense on other borrowing from one BEFA—fHHEAER A
of the other related companies* FE AR S X 758 884
Operating expenses to other related EEul) NS
companies* R 36,125 35,970
* A related company controlled by close family * AARNRIESH TSR EEEH
members of directors of the Company. 2k NI
# The other related companies are fellow subsidiaries # ZEHMEE AR AHAEENB A
of the non-controlling shareholders who have RIEBEARTE 7 IR R R &R
significant influence over subsidiaries of the Group. B AT o

(b) Compensation to key management (b)

personnel of the Group which represents

directors of the Company is set out in Note

10.
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

(Continued)

(@

39. BHMAXS (&)

The Group also has the following related (c)
party transactions and balances regarding
to the lease agreements entered into by the

Group as a lessee.

Nature of transaction/balances

AEE TR A S B RAEA
RIVHEHERER NI
BT R 5 M AERR

Interest expense on lease liability to

a related company*

Lease liability to a related company*

Interest expense in respect of

rental premises to Mr. Lu

Lease liability in respect of rental

premises to Mr. Lu

Interest expense to one of the other

related companies®

Lease liability to one of the other

related companies®

A —REB AR NHE
BEME R

m— BB L REER
HERE"
MESEEIHENE
FMEBFHX
AELEEERENE
HEAE

A E A — R E B A F
R

ME S —RHEMER AR
EEHERE

2020 2019
—E-®fE —TaE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE5 FH
476 27

3,694 8,353

820 425
13,275 1,420
573 451

10,332 12,315

A related company controlled by close family
members of directors of the Company.

# The other related companies are fellow
subsidiaries of the non-controlling
shareholders who have significant influence

over subsidiaries of the Group.

Details of the other balances with related (d)
parties at the end of reporting period are
disclosed in the consolidated statement of
financial position and Notes 20, 21, 23, 25

and 27.

- MARBERNTRRIEKE
ZHE BB F o
' ZEEA R AR RY A K E

MEARAEBEATEZIE
e EES = PN

A B RS HA RS 45 RS R B
FZEMESRNFBEREE Y
Ak &/ A KM 5E20 - 21 -
23 25 27HEE -
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40.

256

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company
has the following subsidiaries:

40. BB ZFH1E
RZZE_TFR_FE-NF+-A=

Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company

as at 31 December

T—H  RXRARBATHEBAR :

Charter capital/ ZM‘_E
Place of Paid up m=A :+_ H
incorporation/ Place of share capital/ s RRaLbl
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital 2020 2019 Principal activities
AL/ ERER/
KEARER Rt Ty BRRE/RMERX  —3-%F TN FEER
% %
BPT Holdings BVI Hong Kong Ordinary US§20,000 100 100 Investment holding
BROBAR RERIES B £i81R20,000% RERR
Best Pacific Textlle BVI Hong Kong Ordlinary US$100 100 100 Investment holding
International Limited RBRAHE B ERARI00ET RERR
BROBERARAT
Best Pacfic Textle Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
BROHARAT Bl B LR 10,000 BT and trading of elastic
fabric and lace
REBRREEEM
BERRES
Best Pacific Investment Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited Y A LER1AT and provision of
BERE (BE) ERAT agency senvices to
group companies
RERRRMEE
RARRRERE
Best Pacific Management ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Provision of
Services Limited A B LER1 AT management
(Formerly known as services
Best Pacific Textile to group companies
(Hong Kong) Limited) BEYNTH S
BRERREARAT BERE
(NERRgE (B8)
BRARR)
New Horizon Investment Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited B B LER 10,000 BT and trading of
BERE () ERAF elastic webbing
RENRREEEM
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

40. MIBRTBZ=FH1E (&)

Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company
as at 31 December

Charter capital/ _Zm_ﬂ
Place of Paid up Eﬁ‘;l'_ﬂ :+_ H
incorporation/ Place of share capital/ iR R ILA
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital 2020 2019 Principal activities
MR/ ERELR/
WEARER B feny BRRE/EMER  —3-%F —Z-NF  IEER
% %

New Horizon Elastic Fabric ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Provision of agency
(Hong Kong) Limited &b B LAk BT senvices to group

/EE@’\E%% Companies
(&%) ARAT HEBATEM

RERE

Dongguan BPT The PRC The PRC Paid-up registered 100 100 Manufacturing and

REHRR i i capital tracing of elastic
(Note i HK$1,394,272,942 fabric and lace
(F3i) (2019: HERBERILAN

HK$1,330,347,568) R REH
BRAMER
1,304,272, 9422
(ZF-NF:
1,330,347,568 70)

Dongguan NHE The PRC The PRC Paid-up registered 100 100 Manufacturing and
Pyl G el capital tracing of elastic
(Note i HK$367,250,000 webbing
(FzFii) BREMER HEREEEUES

367,250,000 BT

Dongguan Best Pacific The PRC The PRC Paid-up registered 100 100 Purchase of
International Trading E el capital machineries, parts
Company Limited RMB1,000,000 and raw materials
(“Dongguan BPI”) ARAfER REgE T

REBRAREHERAT 1,000,000 A K% RIRHH
([F=RRER])

(Note i
(R i)

New Horizon International ~ BVI Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100 100 Investment holding
Investments Limited RBRTHE &b LR 100 £ RERR

AEARRERRAT

Best Pacific International BvI Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100 100 Investment holding
(Vietnam) Company Limited XBE%ES B LER100ET RERR

BEER (48) ARAA
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40.

258

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company
as at 31 December

40. MIBRTB2=H1E (&)

Charter capital/ K0d
Place of Paid up RT=A E+_ H
incorporation/ Place of share capital/ iR RRR LA
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital 2020 2019 Principal activities
MR/ ERELR/
HEARER RS feny BRRE/AfMER  —3-%F —Z-NF  IEER
% %
Best Pacific (Vietnam) Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited BB E5 L@ 15T REmR
B2 (4m) ARAT
Best Pacific Vigtnam Vietnam Vietnam Charter capital 100 100 Manufacturing and
Company Limited HE e VND1,881,200,000,000 trading of elastic
BRHAARAR ERER fabric and elastic
1,881,200,000,000 webbing
HE HEREEEIAN
R REAS
Best Pacific International BVI Hong Kong Ordlinary US$100 100 100 Investment holding
Sri Lanka (Pannala) Limited  E£EELEE B LER 100 %R RERR
Best Pacific Textiles Sri Lanka Sri Lanka Ordinary Sri Lankan 7% 75 Manufacturing and
Lanka (Pvt) Limited HERES HE2FE rupee 4,715,125,600 trading of elastic
(‘BPTL)) LR 4,715,125,600 fabric and elastic
HEFREL webbing
HERBEEUAN
EHRELAS
Best Pacific International BVI Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100 100 Investment holding
Sri Lanka (Thulhirya) EBRUES &b LBR100 £ RERR
Limited
Trischel Fabric (Private) Sri Lanka Sri Lanka Ordinary US$68,695,779 51 51 Manufacturing and
Limited GRS GRS (2019: US$66,195,779) tracing of elastic
(‘Trischel) L% 68,695,779 fabric
(ZZ-nE: HERERELRY
66,195,779%7T) H
NexTex Innovations BVI Haong Kong Ordinary US$100 100 100 Investment holding
Intemational Company ~ EBEZEE &b LAR00ET (Noteii) ~ ®AER
Limited (B3
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DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

40. MIBRTBZ=FH1E (&)

Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company

as at 31 December

Charter capital/ K2H
Place of Paid up RT=A=1-H
incorporation/ Place of share capital/ iR R ILA
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital 2020 2019 Principal activities
MR/ 1:3-v. 9
WEARER Y Bewd BRRE/EMER  —3-%F —Z-NF  IEER
% %
NexTex Innovations Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 100 Investment holding
Incorporation Limited % e EER1,000%T Noteii)  HEER
BRNENFARAA (Pt zFii)
NexTex Innovations Inc. The United States ~ The United States Ordlinary US$0.02 100 100 Marketing
of America of America LER000ET (Noteil) &
X8l X8 (P zFii)
Notes: BisE -

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, other than BPT
Holdings which is a directly wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, all of the above subsidiaries are
indirectly held by the Company.

(ii) Dongguan BPT, Dongguan NHE and Dongguan
BPI were established in the PRC in form of wholly
foreign-owned enterprise.

(iii) These companies were set up by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries had issued any
debt securities at the end of the reporting period.

BRBERIERERAR / —E-_SFFR
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(ii)

RZE-EFR-_T-NF+=-A=
+—B BRRBESHEBIERARNATE
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40. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 4

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shares details of non-wholly-owned

0. MBARZFE (&)

BEEAFEREZZHZENBR
DI

TRAXNGSEHEEEANFEBRELR 2

subsidiaries of the Group that have material non- 2 EWNBARFE
controlling interests:
Place of incorporation Proportion of ownership and
and principal place of voting rights held by (Loss) profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary  business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
MR LBER FEREEEELZ
WEARER TRERIY FeERLARRE AREFERER (B8) 7 i FBRER
As at 31 December Year ended 31 December As at 31 December
R+=A=t-H BETZR=1-HL%E Rt=A=+-A
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZRIEF “TNE RIRE ENE ZBIEF ENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Tén Tin Tén Fin
BPTL Sri Lanka 25% 25% (9,168) (7,958 37,688 46,991
TS
Trischel Sri Lanka 49% 49% 592 6,313 46,190 36,192
LTS
(8,576) (1,645) 83,878 83,183

Summarised financial information in respect of
each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material
non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

BEEREARE FEREENAEEE
MEBARNBMBERBAETIMT
DA B 755 S il 4 5% 81 /9 0 4 8 A
HEH °

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

2020 2019

i —TNE

BPTL HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FAT

Current assets RBEE 67,558 74,496
Non-current assets FERBEE 411,997 338,814
Current liabilities mBRE (290,446) (85,591)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (38,354) (139,756)
Equity attribute to owners of the Company RABHE AEE#EE 113,067 140,972
Non-controlling interests of BPTL BPTLI IR i 2 37,688 46,991

2060 BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020



40.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A
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DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. B RIZFHE (&)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries BEEREEREZZIIEZERB D
that have material non-controlling interests FEE (&)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEE
2020 2019
S 23 —T-NF
BPTL (Continued) (4&) HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET TET
Revenue ION 84,963 20,539
Loss for the year FEEE (36,673) (31,831)
Loss attribute to owners of the Company RRFHEE AELEE (27,505) (23,873)
Loss attribute to the non-controliing interests ~ BPTLIEIE R i as EL 1B
of BPTL (9,168) (7,958)
Loss for the year FEEE (36,673) (31,831)
Other comprehensive (expense) income KARHEAEAEGEMEZR
attribute to owners of the Company (F%) Wz (400) 7
Other comprehensive (expense) income BPTLIEIRAR #E 25 FE (R E b
attribute to non-controlling interests of BPTL 2m () Wk (135) 3
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEHEME2E (FAX) K&
for the year (535) 10
Total comprehensive expense attribute to NAREAEENEE
owners of the Company ik 1a %8 (27,905) (23,866)
Total comprehensive expense attribute to BPTLIFERREREIE 2 E
non-controlling interests of BPTL R (9,303) (7,955)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEIHEREY AR (37,208) (31,821)
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—EFEt_A=1T—HULHFE

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. B RIZFHE (&)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries BEEREEREZZIIEZERB D
that have material non-controlling interests THE (&)
(Continued)
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-—H
2020 2019
—EEF T—NF
Trischel HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Current assets REEE 193,460 175,112
Non-current assets EREEE 179,104 178,117
Current liabilities mEAE (251,509) (158,963)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE (26,791) (120,405)
Equity attribute to owners of the Company RAFEE AEGER 48,074 37,669
Non-controlling interests of Trischel TrischelJEZ fr i 46,190 36,192

Year ended 31 December

BE+-H=+—-HLEE

2020 2019
i —_T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Revenue ON 259,798 314,407
Profit for the year FERF 1,209 12,883
Profit attribute to owners of RAEHRE AEEEF
the Company 617 6,570
Profit attribute to the non-controlling interests ~ Trischel3E1% AR s & 125 7
of Trischel 592 6,313
Profit for the year FEHN 1,209 12,883
Other comprehensive (expense) income RRBEB AFEREM
attribute to owners of the Company 2@ (Fx) Wz (157) 65
Other comprehensive (expense) income Trischel I i A 2 15 EL At
attribute to non-controlling interests of 2 (A%) W
Trischel (149) 62
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the FEHEMA2E (Fx) WS
year (306) 127
Total comprehensive income attribute to KAGEEAEERE
owners of the Company WS 4a%E 460 6,635
Total comprehensive income attribute to non-  TrischelZEE A AE RS FE(G
controlling interests of Trischel 2EKEAE 443 6,375
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEEY A 903 13,010
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41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 4. BMETHELECEBNYER
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s TRAASERMETDELACEEE
liabilities arising from financing activities, including 5 REReRIIERSES - 7
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising BEBEEZBENABRESREERN
from financing activities are those for which cash IARKRERERRNAEEGZERE
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in MEXRIBERAMETIRERECLE
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows & o
as cash flows from financing activities.
Bank and
Dividends other Lease
payable  borrowings* liabilities Total
/IR
EfRE Hifas HEEE @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TR TR THER THER
At 1 January 2019 R-E-NF—A—H - 1,794,158 86,130 1,880,288
Financing cash flows BMERSNE (69,667) 294,249 (14,431) 210,151
Dividend declared (Note 14) EERRE (iE14) 69,667 - - 69,667
Finance costs (Note 9) BB (FiEto) - 97,798 1,701 99,499
Decrease in accrued interest FERTFIS R - (120) - (120)
Exchange adjustments B 5 R - 1,010 - 1,010
At 31 December 2019 and R-ZE—N%E
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—-8%
“E-FF—Hf—H - 2,187,095 73,400 2,260,495
Financing cash flows BMERENE (60,309) 22,948 (20,034) (57,395)
Dividend declared (Note 14) BEERRS (Fiit14) 60,309 - - 60,309
Finance costs (Note 9) BEMAK (IH79) - 75,072 5,131 80,203
New leases entered/lease modified ] ¥ E /TAEEET - - 31,635 31,635
Decrease in accrued interest FERT RIS R - (811) - (811)
Exchange adjustments 5 R - 2,217 - 2,217
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-TF
+-A=+—-H - 2,286,521 90,132 2,376,653
# Changes in the Group's bank overdraft are excluded # AEBERITBES 2 EEBIWARFTA

as they are not classified as financing activities in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI o

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

42. INFORMATION ABOUT THE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

42. FRAAXRRAFBARRKRER

2020 2019
—ECEH —ZT-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FET
Non-current assets REBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries R B AFFELETIRE 105,883 94,765
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEMH B A EIFRIA 555,696 521,833
661,579 616,598
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments  E {0 EINNTE - 1248 %
B RIE 240 260
Bank balances and cash IRITESREIRS 94 163
334 423
Current liability =R
Other payables HAib R IR 6 5
Net current assets REBEEZRE 328 418
Net assets EEFRE 661,907 617,016
Capital and reserves EXRFE
Share capital (Note 31) B (B&E31) 10,398 10,398
Reserves 5 651,509 606,618
661,907 617,016
Composition of reserves (Note) AR (ME)
2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHEIT
Share premium IR E 593,250 593,250
Retained profits REB 5 A 58,259 13,368
651,509 606,618

Note: Movements of respective reserves, except for
retained profits which is disclosed below, are set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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42.

43.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

INFORMATION ABOUT THE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

42. FBEXRRRHBRRKRER (&)

(Continued)
Movement in retained profits of the Company RN TR B BRI B
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Balance at the beginning of year FHEERR 13,368 24,966
Profit and total comprehensive ARF s F &
income for the year FHEHEERR 105,200 58,069
Dividends recognised as distribution R IKE AR
(Note 14) (FF5E14) (60,309) (69,667)
Balance at the end of year FREER 58,259 13,368
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING 43. HEHREE

PERIOD

On 29 January 2021, Trischel (a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into an Assets
Sale and Purchase Agreement (“Assets Sale
and Purchase Agreement”) with Textprint Lanka
(Private) Limited (“Textprint”) (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of MAS Holdings (Private) Limited,
being the non-controlling shareholder of Trischel) in
relation to the sales and purchase of assets which
consisted of (i) fixed assets which mainly included
printing machines, washing machines, boilers,
steamers, fabric inspection machines, dryers and
other equipment for printing synthetic fabrics and
the associated finishing processes currently used at
the manufacturing plant of Textprint (the “Plant”),
as well as (i) inventory of Textprint for printing
business as recorded in the management accounts
of Textprint as at 31 January 2021. Pursuant to the
Assets Sale and Purchase Agreement, Textprint
shall transfer up to 252 of its employees to Trischel.

BRBERIERERAR / —E-_SFFR

R_E_—-—F—HAZ_+tNhAB"
Trischel (R R RIHIEZEME R F])
EiTextprint Lanka (Private) Limited
([ Textprint ]) (MAS Holdings (Private)
Limited#) &1 3 2 E @ 2 7 - TIMAS
Holdings (Private) Limited & Trischelf
EIERKR) IV EEEE W= (&
EEEWR]) NEBHEEEE -
HABENBEEEE  FEBFEHER
Textprint® & E ([ EL) £ A8
ENFEME - JL/GH - 008 - 25091 - &
Vit - e R B AR - A
BB EE R BRI TIT
o PN Textprintid =& = —4F—
A=1+—HBHEERBMLEARED
EEB TextprintFE - RIBEEEER
#:% * Textprint/B A1 Trischel#® #f & &
%2652% B8 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR AT A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ—Z-_FEF+-_A=+—HILtFE

43.

2066

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

The consideration for the transactions
contemplated under the Assets Sale and Purchase
Agreement is estimated to be no more than
US$4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$31,200,000). The consideration shall also be
subject to deduction on account of unpaid utility
bills relating to the Plant, outstanding staff related
costs, wages and/or existing or pending claims of
the transferring employees. Pursuant to the Assets
Sale and Purchase Agreement, Trischel shall pay
US$2,199,650.33 (equivalent to approximately
HK$17,157,000) to Textprint on the date of
completion.

Completion of this transaction had taken place on
1 February 2021. Details of this transaction were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
29 January 2021. The directors of the Company
are in the process of assessing the financial impact
of such transaction to the consolidated financial
statements in the next reporting period.

43.

BREMEEE (4)

EEEEHRBTNRETHRINAR
B L5t AT #8384,000,000% 7T (&
7 #931,200,0008 7T) e Z R E IR A
BREREEBHRZNKEE - K
BEMBTHERA  TE8K, 5#E
BEMNRARFRRE - REEE
B = %% - TrischelZB R 5 5k B Hi A
TextprintsZ 112,199,650.333 7T (#H &
RH#I17,157,000/87T) °

I

>

.y
ok =5 3

uE

OH]

ZRXRHGERTE-_—F-_H—H=
e BAZXIHNFBEENARAR
HHAE-_ZT-_—F—A=-_+NLBEHA
Lo ARRIEZTREFTHZRZIE T
—REHNSGRE N BEBRERNTEZE -

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY
hFEFHENRE

AEEBEDEMBFREZA RS EERE
REMETIERRE BEMNAEBEREBWT

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, prepared on
the basis as set out herein, is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=+—HLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EZEE —ZT-NF ZE-NF ET—+tF T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FET FET FEIT
(Note i) (Note ii)
(Bi&E) (B i)
Results ¥
Revenue IgN 3,494,274 3,637,762 3,212,625 2,794,811 2,469,106
Profit for the year FRERA 249,193 299,079 280,232 303,635 456,251
Earnings per share FRAF
- Basic (HK cents) - B (&) 24.79 28.92 27.34 29.45 44.37
- Diluted (HK cents) - #58 (B) N/A RiE A 28.92 27.29 29.29 44.00
At 31 December
R+=A=+-—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—ECIEFE O —B-hF ZE-N\F E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx FET FHET FHEIT FEIT
(Note i) (Note ii)
(B&Ei) (B =i
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Current assets FEEE 3,018,630 2,596,408 2,227,922 1,669,337 1,647,522
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,308,217 3,268,819 2,960,513 2,545,561 1,540,349
Total assets BEAE 6,326,847 5865227 5188435 4,214,898 3,187,871
Current liabilities FEas 2,224,353 2589414 1,707,791 924,990 800,253
Non-current liabilities FERBERE 1,084,313 660,735 1,023,224 089,246 485,853
Total liabilities aERE 3,308,666 3,250,149 2,731,015 1,914,236 1,286,106
Equity attributable to ZA/NSEZ DN
owners of the Company FE(h R 2,934,303 2,531,895 2,372,657 2,301,246 1,901,765
Non-controlling interests IEiERr s 83,878 83,183 84,763 (584) -
Total equity R 3,018,181 2615078 2,457,420 2,300,662 1,901,765
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY
hLFEFHENRE

Notes:

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
applied HKFRS 16 “Leases”. Accordingly, certain comparative
financial information for the year ended 31 December 2016,
2017 and 2018 may not be comparable as such comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 17 “Leases”.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had
applied HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. Accordingly,
certain comparative financial information for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2017 may not be comparable as
such comparative information was prepared under HKAS 39
“Financial instruments — Recognition and Measurement”.

—F
=
At

=

BE-2-NF+-A=+—HIFE.
AREEEATEI SRS LA 68 [
& Fit BE-F-~% —F—L£%
R-E—N\F{_A=+—RIFEZET
HLARE T AR T B AR A (ELE - B L
AHTREEAE I RAE TR B R

BHE-_Z2—)\F+_A=1+—HIEFE ' &
EECEAET B HREERFR [
TA] - At BREE-_ZT—RER_ZF
—t+E+ - A=+ —RIEEzETHEH
BERDRIBEE BT ERIZEIR [T
B -ERARHEIRE  ZSHBRERAEE
HOEPBELLE -
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